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1. Evidence of Contract Formation

“[TThe question of whether a contract exists is one of fact[.]”42 “Basic contract principles
require, for an enforceable contract, an offer and acceptance, meeting of the minds, and
consideration.™ A contract can be formed when the parties have agreed to the material terms,
even though the contract’s exact language is not finalized until later.*

An abundance of admissible evidence has been produced and discovered in this
proceeding supporting the Executor’s claim that the late Milton I. Schwartz and the School
entered into an agreement for perpetual naming rights. In fact, the School has zero competent and
admissible to evidence to refute this.

The Schwartz naming rights agreement was formed in 1989. Mr. Schwartz himself
testified in an affidavit before his death that he donated $500,000 (not $1 million) to the School
“for which it would guarantee that its name would change in perpetuity to the MILTON L
SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY.” See Statement of Disputed Facts, at § 1, supra. The
School’s internal records show that Mr. Schwartz did, in fact, pay 100% of his pledge. /d. at § 4.

Agents of the School with authority to bind the School have admitted to the existence of
the naming rights agreement. Dr. Lubin, the school’s Headmaster from approximately 1979 to
1994, has testified that Mr. Schwartz “made a large gift to the school [and that] the school has

borne his name since 1989... in consideration of that grant.” /d. at 4 6. Dr. Lubin further testified

that she “personally solicited Mr. Schwartz’s donation to the [School], the very donation resulting
in the [S]chool being named for him. Id at § 7. Dr. Lubin further testiﬁed the School’s
amendment to its Bylaws was consistent with her understanding that Mr. Schwartz received
perpetual naming rights to the School. Id. at 8.

The School’s former Headmaster is the not the only agent of the School who has admitted
under oath of the formation and existence of the Schwartz Naming Rights Agreement. Leonard

Schwarzer, Esq. was a member of the School’s board when Mr. Schwartz and the School entered

2 May v. Anderson, 121 Nev. 668, 672, 119 P.3d 1254, 1257 (2005)
P
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in to the naming rights agreement. Id. at § 9. Mr. Schwartzer has testified that the he has a specific
recollection that the name of the School was changed to the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy
in perpetuity for the donation. /d.

The School’s former Executive Director, Roberta Sabbath, who participated in the
negotiation with Mr. Schwartz when she was on the School’s board, has also testified that she
physically received the check from Mr. Schwartz and that the money was to “name the building
after him in perpetuity, and he was very specific about that.” /d.

2. Evidence of Breach

In December 2007, the School resolved changed its legal name from The Milton L
Schwartz Hebrew Academy to The Dr. Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson Educational Institute.
See Statement of Disputed Facts, at § 18. On March 21, 2008, the School did, in fact, change its
legal name. Id. The School does not dispute this. In addition to changing its legal name, the
School also renamed grades 5-8 the Adelson Middle School /d Then, in 2013, the School
renamed grades K-4 (which it had kept as the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy per its own
resolution) to the Adelson Lowef School. Id., at § 20. There is, therefore, no genuine dispute that
the School materially breached the Schwartz Naming Rights Agreement.

3. Damages

The Estate is damaged as it no longer has the benefit of its bargain with the School. The
Estate submits that the appropriate remedy for the breach is specific performance of the
agreement. Under Nevada law, however, the Court does not address thls remedy until after the
jury has made a finding of breach. The Estate also submits that Mr. Schwartz made substantial
gifts of money to the School between 1989 and 2007 which were made in reliance on the naming
rights agreement. Principal alone, Mr. Schwartz gave the School $555,903.75 in reliance on that
agreement. See Statement of Disputed Facts, at § 22.

4. The School’s $1 million red herring.
The School claims that summary judgment must be granted because there is conflicting

testimony concerning the amount of money pledged by Mr. Schwartz. All they have managed to
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do is raise disputes of fact which support the Estate’s position that summary judgement should be
denied. |

Before he died, Mr. Schwartz testified that he “solicited contributions from Paul Sogg and
Robert Cohen and [t]hat as a result of [his] efforts, Paul Sogg pledged to donate $300,000 and ...
Robert Cohen pledged to donate $100,000.” See Statement of Disputed Facts, at § 5. Mr.
Schwartz further testified that both his $500,000 and the Sogg/Cohen donations were conditions
precedent to the donation of the School’s land from Summerlin. /d Mr. Schwartz never testified
that his naming rights were conditioned upon obtaining another $500,000 from other donors. Mr.
Schwartz also did not say this in his interview with Dr. Adelson that he pledged $1 million. In
fact, he said quite the opposite. Mr. Schwartz said that Dr. Lubin requested $1 million from him
but that he could not afford making a $1 million gift.* He therefore decided to give Dr. Lubin
$500,000. Id.

The School also conveniently ignores the fact that the best evidence of amounts pledged
and paid is its own internal records. During discovery, the School produced an internal document
titled “THE HEBREW ACADEMY BUILDING FUND PLEDGES JULY 1, 1988 THROUGH
FEBRUARY 21, 1990.” This document establishes that the total amount Mr. Schwartz pledged
was $500,000 and that he paid his pledge in full. See Statement of Disputed Facts, at 9 4.

Jonathan Schwartz never testified that the naming rights agreement was $1 million nor has
his testimony been inconsistent as the School unpersuasively argues. The Verified Petition for
Declaratory relief states: “In August 1989, Milton Schwartz donated $500,000 to the [School] in
return for which the [School] would guarantee that its name would change in perpetuity to the
“Milton L. Schwartz Hebrew Academy.””*® During his deposition, Jonathan Schwartz testified that
it was his understanding that his father gave $500,000 and that he helped raise another
35500,000.47 Jonathan further testified that he based his belief on what his father told him and what

%5 See School’s Motion for Summary Judgment, at Exhibit 19.

46 See Petition for Declaratory Relief, on file with Court, at p. 2.

*7 See Jonathan Schwartz Deposition Transcript, at 14:17-16:11, a true and correct copy being
attached hereto as Exhibit X.
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he had heard from other board members. /d. Jonathan’s testimony is not the best evidence of the
agreement as his belief was largely formed on conversations he had with others. The best
evidence of the agreement is the testimony of Mr. Schwartz, the Bylaws, the testimony of the

School’s agents during the relevant time period, and the School’s internal records.

5. The Schwartz Naming Rights Agreement is evidenced by several writings
which collectively formed a written contract.

The School claims that, because there is no official document titled “naming rights
agreement,” the agreement, if any, must have been an oral agreement.

As a preliminary matter, the School’s effort to attack the agreement by raising the issue of
whether it was oral or written is a collateral issue. The School’s own board members have
admitted to and acknowledged the existence of the Schwartz Naming Rights Agreement and its
material terms. The material terms were that Mr. Schwartz would donate $500,000 in exchange
for the School agreeing to name itself the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy in perpetuity. The
agreement was formed for the purpose of funding the construction of the new school on
Hilipointe‘ Clearly, the intent of the parties was to name the new school (which at the time was

one building) the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy:

Q. Okay. So at that meeting, then, you and Mrs. Lubin had gone there to
discuss about a land donation for, I presume, the Hebrew Academy.

A. Dr. Lubin and I went there. She had — Dr. Lubin and I went there to firm

up this agreement with the idea that property would be purchased and a

building would be built.

Okay. And as a result of that meeting, Milton, you said, gave a check for a

million dollars?

Yes.

Okay.

Yes.

And what was your understanding as to what that million dollars was to be

used for?

It was to name the building after him in perpetuity, and he was very

specific about that.”*®

> RPPLo» R

Notwithstanding the abundance of testimonial evidence and admissions that the Schwartz

Naming Rights Agreement was indeed very real, and notwithstanding the fact that both parties to

8 See Sabbath Deposition, Ex. I, at 15:13-16:3.
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the agreement fully performed, the following documents evidence collectively in writing the
material terms of the Schwartz Naming Rights Agreement:

A. Three (3) checks drawn on Milton I. Schwartz’s accounts, dated August 14, 1989,
August 14, 1989 and August 23, 1989, made payable to the Hebrew Academy in the
collective amount of $500,000.00.%

B. School’s August 14, 1989 Board meeting minutes, which thanks Mr. Schwartz for his
donation and evidences that the School resolved to send a letter to Mr. Schwartz
“stating the Academy will be named after him.”°

C. The School’s Bylaws were amended in 1990 to reflect that the School resolved to
change the legal name of the School to the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy in
perpetuity.5 L

D. The School’s Articles of Incorporation were amended in 1990 to change the legal

name of the School to the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy.>”

002005

6. The statute of frauds does not apply because writings exist which prove the
existence of the Agreement. Moreover, even if the Agreement were
completely oral, both parties performed.

First, the statute of frauds does not apply because separate writings may be considered
together to establish a sufficient writing or memorandum.> As established in the previous section,
several writings, when reviewed together, set forth the existence of a legally enforceable
agreement.

Second, performance removes an oral agreement from the statue of frauds.”* Here, both
parties fully performed. Mr. Schwartz tendered the $500,000 to the School; and the School

changed its name to The Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy “in perpetuity.”

* See School’s Motion for Summary Judgment, at Exhibit 8.

*% See School’s Motion for Summary Judgment, at Exhibit 10.

>l See 1990 Amended Bylaws, a true and correct copy being attached hereto as Exhibit .

52 See School’s Motion for Summary Judgment, at Exhibit 11.

zi Edwards Industries, Inc. v. DTE/BTE, Inc., 112 Nev. 1025, 1032-33, 923 P.2d 569 574 (1996)
Id
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Third, the School should be estopped from asserting the statute of frauds defense. To
constitute equitable estoppel, “the party relying on it must be influenced by the acts or silence of
the other and it must appear that the acts or conduct of the party estopped caused the party relying
to act as he would not have acted or he cannot complain that he was deceived to his prejudice.”5~5
Here, the evidence in the record establishes that Mr. Schwartz relied on the School’s promise to

name the School after him in perpetuity. He would not have donated the $500,000 otherwise. The

Court, therefore, should preclude the School from asserting the defense.

B. Even if the Jury Finds That no Contract was Formed, Mr. Schwartz Nevertheless
‘Relied on the School’s Promise to his Detriment.

“Broadly speaking, Nevada follows the doctrine of promissory estoppel articulated in the

Restatement (Second) of Contracts.””® The Restatement describes promissory estoppel as follows:

A promise which the promisor should reasonably expect to induce
action or forbearance on the part of the promisee or a third person
and which does induce such action or forbearance is binding if
injustice can be avoided only by enforcement of the promise. The
remedy granted for breach may be limited as justice requires.’’

“To establish promissory estoppel four elements must exist: (1) the party to be estopped
must be apprised of the true facts; (2) he must intend that his conduct shall be acted upon, or must
so act that the party asserting estoppel has the right to believe it was so intended; (3) the party
asserting the estoppel must be ignorant of the true state of facts; (4) he must have relied to his
detriment on the conduct of the party to be estopped.”58

The School contends that the doctrine of promissory estoppel precludes entry of summary
judgment because it “lacks essential terms and because Milton Schwartz did not pay the full

donation that he promised to pay.”59

55 Id. (citing Zunino v. Paramore, 83 Nev. 506, 509, 435 P.2d 196, 197 (1967)).

36 Dynalectric Co. of Nevada, Inc. v. Clark & Sullivan Constructors, Inc., 127 Nev. 480, 483, 255
P.3d 286, 288 (2011)

37 Restatement (Second) of Contracts § 90(1) (1981).

58 Pinkv. Busch, 100 Nev. 684, 689, 691 P.2d 456, 459—60 (1984) (citations omitted).

7 See School’s Motion for Summary Judgment, at p- 21.
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As to the latter contention, the School’s assertion relies on their take on the facts.
Repeatedly, the School in its motion misses the point of Rule 56. The purpose of a motion for
summary judgment is to get rid of claims that aren’t supported by any evidence; not to ask the
court to consider weight and credibility of evidence. Mr. Schwartz testified under penalty of
perjury that he gave $500,000 as consideration for the School’s promise. He never promised $1
million of his own money nor was the naming rights contingent upon him securing another
$500,000 from other people. There is some conflicting evidence on this point. Dr. Sabbath, for
example, testified that shé thought Mr. Schwartz handed Dr. Lubin a check for $1 million. Dr.
Lubin testified that she received a check for $500,000 and that Mr. Schwartz owed an additional
$500,000. The School’s own records, on the other hand, show that the total amount pledged was
$500,000 and that all of it was paid. Notably, the School performed which evidences the
likelihood that, whatever the amount was, it was paid because why would the School have
performed otherwise.

As to the former contention, the promise does not lack essential terms. The School’s
counsel clearly has an idea and an opinion as to what it thinks ought to have been included in a
naming rights agreement.GO Counsel’s opinion, however, is irrelevant. Importantly, none of the
witnesses in this case who were board members at the time the Agreement was entered into have
testified that they were uncertain as to what its essential terms were. The name of the School (and
at that time the School held itself out to the world by its corporate name) was to be The Milton .

Schwartz Hebrew Academy in perpetuity.

1. Assuming that the Schwart; Naming Rights Agreement is not a legally
enforceable contract under Nevada law, both the School and Mr. Schwartz
believed it was at the time it was negotiated.

The “true facts™ in this case are that the School changed its name “in perpetuity” to the
Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy because of the generous donation that Mr. Schwartz made.
According to Dr. Sabbath, Mr. Schwartz was “very specific” about requiring naming rights for his

donation. If the Court later determines that this bargained for exchange somehow cannot be

50 See MSJ at p. 20.
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enforced under a contract theory, it is clear that both parties believed that such an agreement was

Mlegally enforceable.

2. By receiving and depositing Mr. Schwartz’s checks, the School clearly
evidenced an intent that it would perform on its promise and maintain Mr.
Schwartz’s naming rights in perpetuity.

The School’s conduct demonstrates that it acted as if the Schwartz Naming Rights
Agreement was legally enforceable. In fact, the School did not cease to operate as the Milton I.

Schwartz Hebrew Academy until after Mr. Schwartz passed away.

3. Mpr. Schwartz Clearly believed that the Schwartz; Naming Rights Agreement
was legally enforceable.

Mr. Schwartz would not have insisted that the School be named after him “in perpetuity”
if he knew or believed that “in perpetuity” was not legally enforceable.

C. The Issue of Whether the Court Will Award Specific Performance is not yet Ripe.

“[Iln a case where legal claims are tried by a jury and equitable claims are tried by a
judge, and those claims are based on the same facts, the trial Judge must follow the jury’s implicit
or explicit factual determinations in dec:1d1ng the equitable claims. =61 “The trial court must do so

in determining both liability and relief on the equitable claims.®

51 Teutscher v. Woodson, 835 F.3d 936, 944 (9th Cir. 2016) (quotations omitted) (citing L.A.
Police Protective League v. Gates, 995 F.2d 1469, 1473 (9th Cir. 1993)).

214 (citing Miller v. Fairchild Indus., 885 F.2d 498, 506-07 (9th Cir. 1989) (holding that the
district court in deciding a Title VII equitable claim will be bound by all factual determinations
made by the jury in deciding the plaintiff’s legal claims)). See also Johnstech Int'l Corp. v. JF
Microtechnology SDN BHD, 3:14-CV-02864-JD, 2018 WL 3036759, at *1 (N.D. Cal. June 19,
2018) (holding that the trial court may not make findings of fact contrary to the jury’s express or
implied factual determinations where equitable claims are predicated on the same facts as the
legal claims that were submitted to the jury at trial). It should be noted that these cases held as
such because the Seventh Amendment to the United States Constitution provides that “in suits at
common law, where the value in controversy shall exceed twenty dollars, the right of trial by jury
shall be preserved, and no fact tried by a jury, shall be otherwise re-examined in any Court of the
United States, than according to the rules of the common law.” The Supreme Court of Nevada has
held, however, that “the right to a trial by jury under the Nevada Constitution is coextensive with
that guaranteed by the federal constitution.” Blanton v. North Las Vegas Mun. Court., 103 Nev.
623, 629 (1987). Notwithstanding, Nevada does permit a trial court to first adjudicate equitable
claims before submitting the legal claims to a jury. See Awada v. Shuffle Master, Inc., 123 Nev.
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1 Before the Court can consider whether it is willing to consider the remedy of specific
performance, the jury must first determine whether (1) there was a legally enforceable agreement;
(2) whether the parties performed; and (3) whether there was a breach.”® Moreover, the issue of
whether damages or specific performance is the best remedy for the breach can and should also be

determined by the jury. See NRCP 39(c).64

D. In the Modern Era, The Majority of Jurisdictions Treat Charitable Pledges as
Enforceable Under Contract and Promissory Estoppel Principles; not Under
Inter Vivos Gift Theories.

In Nevada, there have not been any cases that specifically address the enforceability

Nl N e e L

charitable naming rights agreements. However, other courts in the United States have enforced
10}| charitable pledges between parties based on (1) contract theory, (2) promissory estoppel, or (3) a
11|| hybrid of (1) and (2).

12 Under general contract theory, a contract requires three elements in order to be

13{| enforceable between parties: (1) a promise, (2) acceptance, and (3) consideration. In cases

002009

14|| involving charitable pledges, whether written or unwritten, usually elements (1) and (2) have been
15]| met, but from a pure contract theory, the pledges do no;[ meet elemeﬁt (3), Since charitable
16|| pledges, by their nature, are made out of generosity, rather than in exchange for goods or services.
17|| However, despite the lack of formal consideration in almost all cases involving charitable
181! pledges, various courts have deemed that certain promises, benefits, and rights that are received
19| by pledgors in exchange for their charitable pledges will satisfy the element of consideration,
20| resulting in an enforceable contract between the parties.

21 In Massachusetts Eye & Ear Infirmary v. Eugene B. Casey Foundation (2006), the U.S.

22| District Court for the District of Massachusetts, in applying Massachusetts law, found that “in
23

24| 612, 624, 173 P.3d 707, 714 (2007). In this case, however, there has been no bifurcation of the
equitable and legal claims.
25(|%* See Serpa v. Darling, 107 Nev. 299, 305, 810 P.2d 778, 782 (1991) (Specific performance is
available as a remedy “when: (1) the terms of the contract are definite and certain; (2) the remedy

26! at law is inadequate; (3) the appellant has tendered performance; and (4) the court is willing to
27 &rder it.”).

“The decision whether to grant a request for an advisory jury is within the district court’s
28|| discretion.” Harmon v. Tanner Motor Tours, 79 Nev. 4, 20, 377 P.2d 622, 630-31 (1963).

23 of 27
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accepting the Foundation’s gift of a projected $2,000,000.00, MEEI understood that the clear
language of the schedule of payments required that it use those funds only ‘to do the Voice
Restoration Research Program’...Even if this Court were to apply the traditional standard for
evaluating consideration, those facts tend to demonstrate that consideration was given for the
gift.” 417 F.Supp.2d 192.

In East Carolina University Foundation, Inc. v. First Citizens Bank & Trust Company
(2014), the Court of Appeals of North Carolina stated the following in a case involving not only a
charitable pledge to a university, but also the pledgor’s designation of the use of the scholarship
funds and the naming of the endowment: “Our Supreme Court has held that an exchange of a
pledge and a promise to designate funds as directed constitutes sufficient consideration to support
a contract.” 767 S.E.2d 150.

In Matter of Versailles Foundation, Inc. (1994), the Supreme Court, Appellate Division,
First Department, New York, stated that under New York law, “it is well settled that charitable
pledges ‘are enforceable on the ground that they constitute an offer of a unilateral contract which,
when accepted by the charity by incurﬁng liability in reliance thereon, becomes a binding
obligation.” 202 A.D.2d 334.

Based on the reasoning in the cases cited above, this Court should adopt the contract
theory for enforceable pledges in this case because there was absolute and certain consideration
exchanged: the School received $500,000 and Mr. Schwartz received perpetual naming rights to
the School.

Alternatively, for the reasons set forth supra, this Court could deem Mr. Schwartz’s
donation as enforceable based on promissory estoppel. Promissory estoppel is a theory on which
the majority of courts that use the theory will enforce a promise which the promisor should
reasonably expect to induce action or forbearance on the part of the promisee or a third person
and which does induce such action or forbearance is binding if injustice can be avoided only by
enforcemenf of the promise. For example, in Matter of the Estate of Timko v. Oral Roberts

Evahgelisz‘ic Association (1974), where a decedent had promised to pay off the future mortgage

24 of 27
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on a building and a charity relied upon the decedent’s promise by placing a down payment on the

—

building, the Court of Appeals of Michigan held that “the doctrine of promissory estoppel is
applicable to enforce a voluntary unilateral promise to make a charitable contribution.” 215

N.W.2d 750.

E. As Demonstrated, Ample Evidence Exists in the Record to Establish that Mr.
Schwartz Fully Funded His Promised Donation of $500,000.00, and a Bargained
for Exchange Occurred. Accordingly, the Estate’s Fourth (offset of bequest under
will), Sixth (revocation of gift and constructive trust) Seventh (specific
performance) and Eighth (injunctive relief) Claims for Relief Should not be
Dismissed.

NoR S = R s

The School seeks summary judgment on the Estate’s claims for offset of bequest under

will, revocation of the gift and constructive trust, specific performance, and injunctive relief

—
)

because it claims Mr. Schwartz’s gift was not fully funded and/or there is no legally enforceable

—
—

contract. Again, this argument relies on the School’s self-serving selection of the facts. Multiple

—
[\

witnesses have testified that the gift was $500,000, not $1,000,000; multiple documents

—
()

demonstrate that Mr. Schwartz’s pledge was $500,000; and the School’s own performance

002011

—
B

evidences that it received the total amount pledged by Mr. Schwartz because it did, in fact, name- +

—
N

itself after Mr. Schwartz in perpetuity. Accordingly, summary judgment should be denied on all

—
(=)

of these claims.

—
~1

V.
18

19
20

COUNTERMOTION

EDCR 2.20(f) states:

An opposition to a motion which contains a motion related to the same subject
matter will be considered as a counter-motion. A counter-motion will be heard
and decided at the same time set for the hearing of the original motion and no
separate notice of motion is required.

21
22

23 The School’s Motion for Summary Judgement generally asserts that there are no genuine
24||issues of material fact that a jury would need to determine to afford relief on the merits of the
25|| Estate’s claims. In addition to opposing the School’s motion on grounds that genuine issues of
26| material fact exist for all claims for relief, the Estate submits that this Court should decide in its

27||ruling whether the jury should hear and consider the Estate’s equitable claim for specific

28

25 0f 27
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performance. The Estate’s request for an advisory jury under NRCP 39(c), therefore, is within the

same subject matter as the School’s underlying Motion for Summary Judgment.

NRCP 39(c) provides:

Advisory Jury and Trial by Consent. In all actions not triable of right by a
jury the court upon motion may try any issue with an advisory jury or, the court,
with the consent of all parties, may order a trial with a jury whose verdict has the
same effect as if trial by jury had been a matter of right.

A request for an advisory jury as to issues to which parties are not entitled to a jury as a matter of
right is addressed to this Court’s discretion.”

The Estate has brought both legal and equitable claims égainst the School, all of which are
scheduled to be adjudicated in a trial by jury on Augﬁst 20, 2018. The equitable and legal claims
have not been bifurcated. Accordingly, good cause exists to issue an order declaring that all
claims of all parties in this proceeding shall be determined by the jury.

VL
CONCLUSIQN

0012

002012

‘For the above and foregoing reasons, the Court should-deny the School’s Motion in its |

entirety and grant the Estate’s Countermotion.
DATED this 6™ day of July, 2018.
SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD.
/s/ -- Alexander G. LeVeque

Alan D. Freer (#7706)
afreer@sdfnvlaw.com

Alexander G. LeVeque (#11183)
aleveque@sdinvlaw.com

9060 West Cheyenne Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89129
Telephone: (702) 853-5483
Facsimile: (702) 853-5485
Attorneys for A. Jonathan Schwartz

5 Harmon v. Tanner Motor Tours of Nev., Ltd., 79 Nev. 4, 20, 377 P.2d 622, 630 (1963).
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE |

I hereby certify that on the __ day of July, 2018, service of the foregoing OPPOSITION
TO MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT REGARDING BREACH OF CONTRACT was
electronically served on counsel for the Dr. Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson Educational Institute

via the Court’s electronic filing system.

/s/ - Sherry Curtin-Keast

An employee of Solomon Dwiggins & Freer, Ltd.
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SUPPLEMENTAL AFFIDAVIT OF MILTON I. SCHWARTZ

STATE OF NEVADA )
} ss.:
COUNTY OF CLARK )

MILTON I. SCHWARTZ, being first duly sworn, upon oath, deposes
and says:

1. This Affidavit is made of my own perscnal knowledge
except where stated on information and belief, and as to those matters,
I believe them to be true, and if called as a witness, I would
confidently testify thereto.

2. That Affiant hereby affirms under penalty of perjury that
the assertions of this Affidavit are true.

3. This Affidavit is submitted in support of Plaintiff's

Reply to Defendant's Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion for Declaratory

Judgment and Injunctive Relief; Plaintiff's Opposition to Defendant's

Countermotion for Sanctions; Plaintiff's Opposition to Defendant's
Countermotion to Dismiss or, in the Alternative, cor a More Definite
Statement; and Plaintiff's Countermotion to Strike Defendant's
Opposition.

4. That on or about August of 1989, Affiant donated $500,000
to the Hebrew Academy in return for which it would guarantee that its
name would change in perpetuity to the MILTON I. SCHWARTZ HEBREW
ACADEMY. Affiant was first elected Chairman of the Board of Directors
in the August 1989 Board of Directors meeting. Affiant was reelected
Chairman of the Board of the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Acadeny in June

of 1991.

5. That Affiant has been instrumental in bringing large sums
of money into the MILTON I SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY from personal
LAY OFFICE OF DANIEL RARXS

32 East Caraon, Suite TIR
Las Vegns, Nevada 89101 (T(R2) 3860536

OBJ Ex. Page 2 of 55
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donations and donations of friends and business acquaintances of
affiant. That as a result of the actions of Tamar Lubin, and the
Defendants, many of the people that donated money will no longer donate
money to the MILTON I. SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY. As a result, the MILTON
I. SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY will suffer severe financial problems.

6. That as a result of the actions of the Defendant, the
MILTON 1. SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY has suffered and will continue to
suffer irreparable harm. That as a result of the actions of the
Defendant and in particular of Tamar Lubin, there has been a high
turnover of school teachers at the Hebrew Academy. This caused the loss
of highly qualified teachers that had the respect of the parents and
children and has caused and will continue to cause irreparable damage to
the MILTON I. SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY. In addition, Tamar Lubin has
repeatedly lied to the Board of Directors. She informed the Board of
Directors in May of 1992 that all teachers would be returning in
September to the Academy and she had informed the Luard of Directors
that the teachers would receive their contracts. However, neither of
these statements were true at the time she made them. At least two
teachers were terminated immediately subsequent to her reassuring the
Board of Directors that all teachers would return in September of 1592.

7. It was the intention of some of the Directors, including
affiant, to not renew Tamar Lubin's contract that is up for renewal on
June 3, 1993. This decision was the result of numerous complaints that
were received by the Directors concerning the actions of Tamar Lubin.
One graphic example is that one student became nervous and upset and
vomited. Tamar Lubin required that student to sit in his vomit and not
move. This type of abuse should not occur today. A letter concerning
that incident was given to Affiant and is attached as Exhibit "10" to
LAV OFFICE OF DANIEL MARKS

302 Esst CArson, suite T2 2
Las Yegns, Nevada 89107 (702) 3860536
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this Motion. 1In addition, other letters and complaints concerning Ms.
Tamar Lubin are attached to this Motion as Exhibit "11" and were the
basis of the Board's concerns with renewing the contract.

8. That Affiant believes that the Defendant is in the
process of negotiating a long term contract with Tamar Lubin to be the
Administrator of the MILTON I. SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY and that this
action will cause irreparable harm to the MILTON I. SCHWARTZ HEBREW
ACADEMY.

9. That Defendant's rely on the fact that there had been
approximately ten more students enrolled in the Academy to demonstrate
that they have not harmed the Academy. However, three (3) of the
private schools in the Las Vegas area that compete with the Academy,
Temple Beth Sholom, Las Vegas Day School and the Meadows are operating
at near capacity and have a waiting list to get in and the Hebrew
Academy is only operating at approximately 40% of its capacity._ _That as
a result of the actions of Tamar Luhin, many parents uave removed their
children from the MILTON I. SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY to enroll them in
either the Meadows, Temple Beth Sholom, the Las Vegas Day School, or to
place them in public school. As a result, the MILTON I. SCEWARTZ HEBREW
ACADEMY is suffering irreparable harm as long as Tamar Lubin remains
employed. Attached to this Motion as Exhibit " * are true and correct
copies of petitions from parents that have either removed their children
or are considering removing their children from the MILTON I. SCHWARTZ
HEBREW ACADEMY as a result of the actions of Tamar Lubin. Two of the
former directors of the Hebrew Academy, Sam Ventura and Dr. Neville
Pokroy, have informed Affiant that at least fifty (50} students that
were removed from the school are waiting to return to the MILTON I.
SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY as soon as Tamar Lubin leaves.

LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL MARKS

A2 East Carson, Sufte 702 3
Las Vegas, Nevada 39107 (702) 3860536

002017

002017

RS

OBJ Ex. Page 4 of 55

T g2017



8T0200

10. That +the minutes of the May 21st meeting, that are
attached as Exhibit "B" to the Defendant's Opposition To Plaintiff's
Motion For Declaratory Judgment And Injunctive Relief And Countermotion
For Sanctions; Countermotion To Dismiss Or, In The Alternative, For A
More Definite Statement are not a true and correct copy of the minutes
of the meeting that occurred on May 21, 1992.

11. That at the May 21, 1992 meeting of the Board of
Directors, it was determined that a conflict existed hetween the Bylaws

which mandated the time required for the nominating committee to give

its report and the time that elections could occur after that report was

given. That as a result, it was resolved at the May 21st meeting that
the only way elections could occur in the June meetings was that new
Bylaws would be approved at the beginning of the June meeting and a

provision in the new Bylaws would delete the time period which must

Once the new Bylaws were approved, the elections cculd be held during
the June meetings. Otherwise, elections could not be held until the
July meeting.

12. That on or about June 10, 1992, Affiant was notified by
Dr. Edward Goldman that the nominating committee had decided that due to
the conflict in the Bylaws and the discussion that occurred at the May
21, 1992 Board meeting, that the elections should be put off until the
July Board meeting. That as a result of this conversation, Affiant
drafted the letter dated June 11, 1992. Affiant sent that letter to
each of the board members of the MILTON 1. SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY

indicating to them that the elections would not occur at the June

meeting.

13. That during the June 18, 1992 meeting of the Board of

LAY OFFICE OF DANIEL MARXS
32 East Carson, Suite 72
Las Yegas, Nevade 89101 (T(2) 3850534

OBJ Ex. Page 5 of 55
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Directors, the Directors did not vote on the Bylaws. That at the June
meeting, Affiant strenuously objected to the fact that elections were
going on.

14. That Affiant was specifically requested by Lenard
Schwartzér, a member of the Defendant, the Second Board of Directors, to
not file this suit until after the fundraisers and Jewish holidays
occurred. In addition, Affiant attempted to arrange a meeting with
members of the Defendant, the Second Board of Directors, to resolve this
dispute. However, the meeting never took place because Tamar Lubin was
acting in bad faith and refused to allow the meeting to occur.

15. That on May 21, 1992, the Board of Directors of the
MILTON I. SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY consisted of Milton I. Schwartz,
Michael Novick, Dan Goldfarb, Cynthia Michaels, Frederick Berkley, Dr.
Edward Goldman, Scott Higginson, Dr. Tamar Lubin, Lenard Schwartzer,
Robert Rikita, Ira Sternberg, Geri Rent;hler, Don”$thesinger,band Dr.
Richard Ellis. In addition, that Roberta Sabbath and .r. Neville Pokroy
were Honorary Members of the Board of Directors. Honorary Members can
advise the Board of Directors but they cannot vote.

16. That on July 16, 1992, Affiant called a meeting of the
Board of Directors at Affiant's home because Affiant was not allowed on
the premises of the MILTON I. SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY. That at that
meeting the Board of Directors first voted for new Bylaws which removed
the requirement that the Board wait thirty (30) days after receiving the
Nominating Committee's report to hold an election.

17. That as of November 5, 1992, the Plaintiff's Board of

Directors consisted of: Milton I. Schwartz, Mike Novick, AaAbigail

Richlin, Frederick Berkley, Dr. Edward Goldman, Phyllis Darling, Sam

Ventura, Dr. Alvin Blumberg, Roger Soime, Wendy Roselinsky, Ira

LAV OFFICE OF DAMIEL MARKS
302 Emxt Carson, Suite TO2
Les Vegas, Nevada BYI01 (TIR) 38451536
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Sternberg, Bob Rakita, Dr. Richard Ellis, Scott Higginsen and Dr. Tamar
Lubin. However, Ira Sternberg, Bob Rakita, Dr. Richard Ellis, Scott
Higginson and Dr. Tamar Lubin have not acknowledged the past three (3)
Board notices Affiant sent out, nor did they attend the July, August or
November Board meetings, nor did they return telephone calls.

18. That Affiant was informed by Dr. Edward Goldman, the
Assistant Superintendent, Administrative Operations and Staff Relations
of the Clark County School Distriect, and a member of the Board of
Directors, that there is an inadequate degree of critical skills
teaching in the upper classes. 1In addition, Affiant was told that if
this is not corrected the education of the students who attend the
MILTON I. SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY will suffer irreparable harm.

FURTHER AFFIART SAYETH NAUGHT.

\
-

TR Y PN
)

MILTON I. SCHWARTZ

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before

me this 72 day of February, 1993

./‘
TS e,

"NOTARY PUBLIC |

GrAtE SANDERSG
N T I N )

LAW OFFICE Of DAMIEL MAXCS
32 gast Carson, Suite 7R
Las Yegas, Nevada 8901 (TO2) 3360538
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P ' SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL AFFIDAVIT OF MILTOR Y. SBCEWARTZ

STATE OF NEVADA )
: 8§
COUNTY OF CLARK }

H MIFSON I. SCHWART%, being first duly sworn, upon ocarn

deposes and says:

i, This Affidavit of made of my own personal knawieug
eiccept where stated on information and belief, and. as to thos
matters, Affiant believes them to be true, and if called as
witness, Affiant would competently testify thereto. .

2. - That Affiant hereby affirms under penaléy ot p;rju:
that the asserticns of this Affidavi£ are trua. |

3. This Affidavit is submitted in support of Plaintiff’
Second Reply to Defendants’® Supplemental Poiﬁts and Authorities i
Opposition %o Plaintiff's Motion for Declaratory Judgment ar

Injunctive Rellef.

} . 7 oo
F b That Affiant has been a member of the Board ¢

Directors of the MILTON I. SCHWNARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY since 19u%, ar
the Board of Directors have never allowed the use. of proxies at ii
meetings.
5. ‘3{11&1: aifiant denated §$500,000 to the Hebrew "Abaael
with the understanding that the school would be renamed the MILAX
T. SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY in perpetuity. That subsequent to ti
donation being made the By-Laws were changed to specifically reries
that fact and that as a result of‘the change, Article I, Paragra
1 of the By-Laws read "The name of this corporation is the Mxtiw
I. Schwartz Bebrew Academy (bereinafter referred to as The Acacem

"and shall remain so in perpetuity.n®

/1!
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6. That Affiant solicited contributions from Paul Sog-

and Robert Cchen. That as a result of Affiant's efforté, Paul sog

| pledged. to domate $300,000, and that as a result of Affiant’

efforts Robert Cohen pledged to donate $100,000.
7. That Summerlin only donated 17 acres for the Hebre

e

Academy after Affiant donated $500,000, and Paul swg.tpledged an
donated $300,000 and Robert Cohen pledged and donated $100,000.
8. That the donation of §500,000 by Affiant was

condition precedent to the donation of the land by Summeriin; tha

Affiant believeg that the donation of $400,000 by Mr. Sogg ana mr
Cohen was also a condition precedent to the donation of the tlana o
Summerlin. '

FURTEER AFFIANT SAYETH NAUGHT.

'WITTON 1. SCHWARTE

SWORN and SUBSCRIBED to before me
.1‘-
- this _ 3 = day of March, 19%3.

-

n ,.;J‘GZZ::«%», ””’fc/’t»u%e?/&,
Hotaxy Public 7

TaAY PUBLIC  §
S‘-}Kzfgof NEVADA |
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BYLARS OF

THE MILTON I. SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEXY

ARTICLE I
NAME AND OFFICE

1. Hame: The name of this c¢orporation is The Miltonm I.
Schwartz Hebrew Academy (hereinafter referred to as The dcadeny)

and shall remain so in perpetuity.

2. Qoffice: The principal office of the corporation shall be.

.

at 9700 W. Hillpointe Road, Las Vegas, Nevada.

ARTICLE II
TRUBTEES
1. The governing board of the corporation shall be known as
the Board of Trustees and the membership~of the Boafd of Trustees
shall constitute the corporation.

2. The Board of Trus;ges'shall'ba compcsed of fourteen

members elscted by the écardAcf Trustees and the school head.

©3. In the ‘event the paxents of the students of The Acadenmy
form a parent-teacher organization with dues paying menmbers
representing at least fifty percgnt'of the student body, which
holds regqular meetings, such organization shall ke entiEWed.to one
reprnsentaLLVe to the Board of Trustees at the diseretlon of the
Board of Trusktees and, dependent upon the act1V1ty level and
sarvices rendered to The Academy by the parent-teacher '
organization. '

4. In the event of a vacancy durlng the term of a trustee,

the Board of Trustees shall appOLnt .after due consultatlon w’th

the nominating committee, a person to £ill tﬁe unexpired term.

e 4 EST-00097

002025

002025

002025



920200

5. Election of members of .the Board of Trustees‘shallhbe
conducted during the reqular Jure meeting of the corporation or as
soon thereafter as possible, . |

| '6'.'W"'fh—é'electj:cn‘ of the Chairman of the Board . of. Trustees,
president, vice presidént, secretary and ftreasurer's office§ in
both the corporation and the Board of Trustees shall be held at the
first meeting of the original Board of Trustees for a c;e—year
tern. ‘Subsequent eiections shall be héld in conjunction with the
annual June trustee elections, |

7. If, for,any reason, any frustee,is not elected in the
time and manner provided for by these Bylaws, such trustee shall
continue to sexve until -such time as his successor has been
eleéteé. ‘

8. A functignal quorum of trustees shall consist of forty

percent of the total number of trustees then serving, except dufing

such periods‘of time when the total number of trustees aétuélly
sexrving is twelve or less, in which event a quorum shall consist of
a majority of such trustees, ‘

5. In the event a trustee falls to attend three consecutive
meetings of the Board of Trustees, the Chalrman shall direct a
letter te be sent to the last known address of such trustée,
reguesting a written confirmation as to whether or hot?he/she
desires to continue to sexrve. In the event that the confi?mation
Jetter is not received by the chairman pricr to 'a ;fourth
consecutive meeting, which such trustee has falled to atteﬁd,.ﬁhg

office of the trustee shall be deemed thereafter vacant. -In”the

{es\7218200%\gylans.les 2

- ' EST-00098 j;

002026

‘002026

002026



,20200

absence of the chairman, the secretary or treasurer wmay dire;:t such
a letter.

' 10. The Board of Trustees wmay, from time to time, elect a
person to serve as an ){énorér'y trusted, “aAn honcira.ry trustee shall
be entitled to attend and participate in all meetings of the Board
of Trustees but shall have not vote. .An honorary trustee shall
serve until removed by the Board of Trustees.

A ARTICLE III -
1. The Chairman shall preside over all meetings of tﬁé Board
of Trustees. In cagse of his/her absence, a chalrman sélecited:.:by_

-

Board members present shall preside.

; ARTICLE IV
COMMITTEER
1. Chaiyrmen: BAll chairmen of committees shall be chosen by

the president annually for oné year terms during which each
chairman of each committee shall preside over committee affairs, be
responsible for active disposal, of committee business and be
required teo dgive adequate notice to committee members of all

committee meetings.

2. Executive Committee: The Executive Committee shall

manage the interim business and affairs of the ,corpoféizian,
excepting the Board's power to adopt, amend or repeal pylaws. The
Boaxrd of 'fl;ustees- shall have the power to p'rescribe’ the maaner in
which proceedings of the exéquf.ivé committee and ofher committees
shall be conducted. The executive committee shall be compqséd af

the president, the vice president, the treasurer and the secretary.

lesi 72182003 \Bylaus, les
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The executive committee shall ke the primary management meéhanism

between meetings of the Board of Trustees,

3. Nominating Committee: Members of this committes sﬁall be

appointed - by- the corporate president -and the committee -shall -

consist of three trustees. The committee shall submit a f£ull
report to the Board of Trustees no later than thirty daye in
advance o©of the June elecFion. Any trustee in good standihg may
fraely submit additional nominations, provided that. such
nominations are submitted in writing to the nominating committee
and toc the rémaining members‘éflthevBoard.of Trustees no later than
thirty days prior to the annual election. ‘There shall be no

nomination from the floor at £he time of the elections.

4. Student ‘Aid Committee; The student aid committee shall

be appointed by the president and shall consist of 'a minimum of
three members of the Board of Trustees. This committee s§al1
review and consider all applications received by the AcaQemy from
any child enrolling in the Academy séeking a reduction in tuition
fees. ) .

5. corporate Officers: The elected officers of ﬁhg

corporation shall be the same as the officers of the Board of

Trustees. |

6. Vacancies: The Board of Trustees cf the Academy'shgll
alone determine when a vacancy exists in zny corporate or Boa;d
position appearing onlthg annual election slate, and shall report

all such vacancies, from time to time, to the chairman of the

i i : s o i ni er
nominating committee, who shall immediately convene b.s/h

ies\TZ?ﬁ@OOS\BYiaus, {as

£ST-00100

002028

002028

002028



620200

— et
U

committee for the purpose of receiving and submittiné
recommandations €o the Board of Trustess in order t5 £ill such
vacancies, |

7. Removal o Trustee: --dny -trustee. may ks __rgmm{éd from

office through an affirmative vote by two—thirds of the total
members of the Board, pursuant to a motion registered in pérson at
any regilar or special meeting called for that purpese; an adeguate
basis for removal shall consist of any conduct det'rimentai to the
interest of the corporation. Any trustee, properly proposed to be
removed because of conduct detrimental to the cofporatidn, shzall be

entitled to at least five days notice in writing by maill of the

‘meeting during which such removal 1s to be voted upon and shall he

entitled to appear before and be heard at such meeting.

6. cOmpensatién and Expenses: Trustees shall not receive
any salary or compensation for tﬁeir seﬁiceS'as Trustee,"-;nor any
compensation for expenses incurred in connection with sﬁch
services. ;

9. Standing Committees: The following committees shall be
dasignated permanent committees: .

a. fund-raising

o. Nominating

<. Student
d. Building Fund
10. Other Committees: The president may establish and
appoint members in good standing to additional committees, from
{25\ 72182003\ Bylsus. l2s 5
PN
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time to time, as he/she or +the Board of Trustees may deam
appropriate. ‘
ARTICLE V

- - DESCRIPTION. AND DUTIES OF OFFICERS QF THE BOARD. ... ...

1. Chairman of the Board: The Chairman shall preside at all

meetings opf the Board of Trustees. One person may hold the
position of Chairman and President.

2. President: The president shall preside at all meetings

[a]

cf the Board of Trustees. He/she 1s authorized to exercise general

charge and supervision of the affairs of the corperation and shail
be dez=med invested with adequate authority to perform such other
duties as may be assigned to him/her by the Board of Trustses.

He/she shall serve two consecutive terms.

3. . Vice Prasident: At the request of the president or in

the event of his absence or disability, the vice president shall
perform the duties and possass‘and éxercise the ccrrelativeipowers
of the president. . To the extent authorized by law, the vice
prasident may be invested'with-such other powers as the Béarc}.of

Trustees may determine, and perform such other dutiés as may be

“assigned to him/her by the Board of Trustees.

4. Secreéarv: The secretary shall attend and keé.p the
minutes of all meetings of the Board of Trustees. Ee/she shall

keep an alphabetiecally arranged record containing names of all
members of the corporation, showing their places of résidence; such
racord shall be Open‘er public and member inspection as prescribad

py law, He/she shall perfom all duties generally incidental to

EST-00102
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the office of secretary, although such duties are subject fc the
control of the Board of Trustees, additional dutias baeing preperiy

assignable by thie Board to the secretary.

&.  Ixéadirsfi’ The treasurer shall maintain all financial

records of the corporation and shall supervise .and he responsible

for those persons whose duty it will be to receive and disburse all

corpcratg-funds and maintain complete records of accounts. The

treasurer is additionally charged with the: preparatian and

submission of an annual financial statement and a budget to the

Soard of Trustees.

ARTICLE VI

KEETINGS OE THE BOARD OF‘TRQBTEES
‘The Board of Trustees shall meet monthly in accordaﬂcé with a

regular basis to be ‘determined by Board resolutiﬁn. additional
mestings may be héld at the call of the~presi§ént upoi Oné-weERLS
notice., Such notice shall be given in writing if possible;.ér
otherwise by telephone. >ﬁeétings may be held at the call of the
Chairman without regard to the aforementioned notice requiremeﬁts,
although éubjact to good faith duty to attempt notification of all
trustees. '

ARTICLE VII

ELECTIONS

Except in the case of votiné'by acclamation, all voting shall

be by secret ballot and no ballot shall be deemed valid ﬁnleés it

{es\ 72182003 \By (aws. &5
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contains a vote for a number of candidates equal to the number of
vacancies to be filled. A majority of valid ballots cast shall be
required to elect a trustee to office.

e i : L wa v S0 e 0

AHENDMENTE

1.  The Board of Trustees shall have the power to: make,

alter, amend and yepeal the bylaws of the corporation by

affirmative vote of a majority of the full board at a ﬁeeting duly .

noticed therefor.
ARTICLE IX

RULES

1. The Board of Trustees may adopt ‘such Rules of Order and
Procedure for the conduct of the business of its meetings as they
deem appropriates, provided that- such Rules are not inconsistent

with thése bylavws.

2.  In the absence of specific Rules adopted hy the Bo%i‘d fdf
Trustees and in all cases not covered by these bylaws, all
deliberations and procedures shall be governed by Robert's Rules of
Crder, Reviéed.

 KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENT:

That we, the undersigned, being a majority of 21l the persons
appointed in the Amended Articles of Incorporaticn to act as the
first Board of Trustees of The Hebrew Academy hereby assent .-1_:0 the

foregoing bylaws and adopt the same as the bylaws of said

corporation.

les\T248200\ Byl awg, les
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IN WITHESS WHEREQF, we have hereunto set our hands this / g

day of [Prca lon . 19507

3
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NAME

o e i s 3 U W A0t 4 o A et b v

HILTON I. SCHUARTZ
2. ELLIOTT KLATN
GERI RENTCHLER'
‘LENARD SCHWARTZER
FRED BERKLEY

;'§AH VENTURA
 GEORGE RUDTAK -

. ROBERTA SABBATH
0R. NEVILLE POKROY

T.H.A. BOARD: BUILDING
“ FUND PLEDGES (SUB-TOTAL)

Roberk Cohen

DR. STANLEY AMES

 G€0200

. R. BELLIVEAU -
" CHIC HECHT

R SPECTOR

DR. DALE GLICKEN

PAUL SDGG

ﬂSCAR RLTERNITZ

LINDA STERLING ROSEN
DR. DENCKER .
DR. RICHARD ELLIS

T.H.A. “OTHER®" BUILDING
" FUND PLEDBES (SUB-TOTAL)

"T.H.A. BOARD AND -
“OTHER" B.F.PLEDGES
. GRAND TOTALS -

S W e e o ot s ik

e e

$500,000
$ 14,400
$  NONE
$ 2,000
$ 2,500
$ 2,500
$ 50,000

$ 2,000

THE HEBREW ACADEMY BUILDING FUND PLEDGES
JULY 1, 1988 THROUGH FEBRUARY 21, 1990

PAID
$500,000
$ 8,650
$  NONE
$ 2,000
$ 2,500
$  NONE
$ 25,000

$ 2,000

e e o e

e e o e

$  NONE

$  NONE

$ 2,500

$ 25,0060

$  NONE

Y W o o St R A8 Bt AR v o e A e s Y S e R e e T AT e e

e ket ot s 7 e e S 8 Lt o b A e e e

$ 2,000
$3oo,oooi;
$ 6,000G
$ 25,000

$ 1,000

$ 1,000
$ 2,000
$ 2,500
$ 5,000

$ 2,000

$100,000 -

$  NORE

'$  NONE

$ 1,000

$ 2,500
$  NONE

$ NONE

" $200, 000
$ 6, ooo ‘

$ 25;000-

$ NONE

o o Y o - St e R A s e e Sl T ot Pt S M i S o A Wt T T e g S ot e ey

At 4 1 i e i e o s T kB Y B o S P W T e 4 e e B o A e ¥ N Sy PO o g Wt S Ty

i e ot

e ket s

e e s e e

s e e e
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Clark County, Nevada;-

SCOTT MICHAEL CANTOR, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 001713 y
GRAZIADEI & CANTOR, LTD. Bz 11 41y Py Q3
302 E. Carson Avenue, Suite 400

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 >
(702) 477-7733

Attorney for Defendants

DISTRICT COURT

CLARX COUNTY, NEVADA

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS of the
MILTON I. SCHWARTZ HEEREW CASE NO. A314725
ACADEMY, DEPT. NO. III
DOCKET NO. "E"
Plaintiff,
vs.

THE SECOND BOARD OF DIRECTORS

of the MILTON I. SCHWARTZ

HEBREW ACADEMY; IRA STERNBERG; DATE OF HEAR.NG:
GERI RENTCHLER; ROBERT DISMAN; TIME OF HEARING:
ROBERTA SABBATH; RICHARD ELLIS

SCOTT HIGGINSON; BOE RAKITA;

and TAMAR LUBIN,

Defendants.

AFFIDAVIT CF TAMAR LUBIN
aka TAMAR LUBIN SAPOSHNIK

STATE OF NEVADA )

) 882
COUNTY OF CLARK )

TAMAR LUBIN, als0 known as TAMAR LUBIN SAPOSHNIK, being
first duly sworn upon her oath, deposes and says:

1. That I am an individual of legal years raesiding in

I am familiar with all facts related in

this Affidavit and I am competent to testify thereto of my own

personal knowledge.

2. That I make this Affidavit in Opposition to the

REPLY Ex. Page 2 of 48

002037

EST-00205

002037

002037



8€0200

002038

Plaintiff‘s Motion for Injunctive and peclaratory Relief and in
support of the Defendants’ Countermotions,

3., That I am currently a member of the Board of Trustees
of the MILTON I. SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY and the School Head or

Administrator. As such, I am in charge of the administration of

all schocl programs and functions, finance, budgeting, fund

SIS

raising, purchasing, scheduling, testing, recruitment,

curricular development, programming, student progress -and

AR

B

activities, staff and personnel development and monitoring,
evaluation and improvement of all schocl programs. I have
served in the capacity as School Head since 1979,

4, 1 received my Bachelor of Arts Degree from the Stata
University of New York, at Rochester, New York. in Education and
Lingquistics in 1974. I recelved a Masters of Education Degree

from the University of Rochester, at Rochester, New York, in

002038

Educational Administration and Curriculum Development in 1975,
I received my Doctor of Education Degree from the University of
Rochester, at Rochester, New York, in Educational

Administration, Curriculum Development and Special Education in
1979.

5. I have been certified by the New York State Department

of Education and the Nevada State Department of Education in
Administration and Supervision of grades Kindergarten through
12, in Special Education of grades Kindergarten through 12, in

Elementary and Junior High School Education and, by the New York

State Department of Education, in Hebrew, grades 7 through 12.

6, I have been a teacher since 1952. Between 1952 and

1969, I taught school, first at the Redman School, London,

REPLY Ex. Page 3 of 48
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England, then, fourth and eighth grades and at Community High
School, Rochester, New York, then, 1lth and 12th grades and
adult education., From 1974 to 1976, I was assistant principle of
Sinai and Hillel Day Schools, Rochester, New York. My
responsibilities included assisting in gtaff development,
assembly of resource materials, the demonstration of their use
in the classrooms, development of a rescurce center, the
devising and supervision of remedial and gifted programs and the
preparation of the annual budget and menthly financial
statements.

7. PFrom 1976 to 1977, I was an instructor at Brockport
Elementary School, Brockport State University, Brockport, New
York, providing an educational program for raci:lly diverse
students at the primary level in an open plan setting. From
1976 to 1979, I was an instructor in undergraduate courses of
the University of Rochester, New York in intermediate and
advanced literature.

8. In 1984, I was the recipient of an Educationpal
Excellence Award by the Clark County School Distriect. In 1987,
1 was a founding member of the Jewish Community Day School

Network of America. In 1987, I was a founder of the Asgociation

of Private and Parochial Schools of Nevada and have served as

its President from 1988 to the present. In 1988, I secured 17

acres of land for the campus of the Hebrew Academy and, in 1989,
developed the new campus construction and fund raising programs.
The first phase campus was completed in December, 1990,

9. In 1990, I was named in "Who's Who in American

Education” and honored by the new elementary campus being named

3

REPLY Ex. Page 4 of 48
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the "The Tamar Lubin-Saposhnik Elementary School;* in 1987 and
1988, I was named in "Who*s Who in World Jewry."

10. In 1891, I was honored as the recipient of the Women

of Achievement Award for Education from the Chamber of Commerce

in Southern Nevada.

11. Since my association with the Hebrew Academy, the

student population has mere than quadrupled. I was virtually

single-handedly responsible for securing the Nevada State School
License and receilved the Nevada State Teachers Grant for
Excellence. The Academy has been awarded first, second and
third prizes at the City’s annual science faire and, on my own
initiative, the school has been accredited by the Noxthwest
Assoclation of Schools and Colleges since 1386, the first
Seuthern Nevada elementary school to be so honored and only the

second in the State of Nevada, Under my administration, the

002040

school has also received the Presidential Academic Fitness Award
for outstanding academic achievement, and, in 1988, became the
only member of the National Asscciation of Independent Schools
from Nevada, and placed first in the Nevada State "National
Geographic" geography contest.

12. As stated above, I have served as President of the

Assoclation of Private and Parochia)l Schools of Nevada since

1988. 1In 1585, I offered a seminar on "Women in School

Administration® at the annual conference of the National

Association of Elementary School Principles. From 1980 to 1983,

I offered courses in "Women in Administratien® at the University

of Nevada Las Vegas, From 1979 to the Present, I have served as

REPLY Ex. Page 5 of 48
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a member and, in 1983, the Treasurer of the Board of Trustees of
the Las Vegas Symphony.

13. I have prepared research papers on *Strategies for
Remedial Reading: a perceptual deficit theoxry-an organizaticnal
approach; " "Intelligence.Testingx Uses and Abuses and Their
Pducational and Social Implications;" "The Administrators’ Role
in School Improvement;" "The Art and Science of Teacher
Evaluaiion;" "Financing Educational Excellence;" and "Women in
School Adminigtration.”

14. I have published several articles in newspapers and
magazines and have made radlo and television appearances
regarding schooling, early childhood education centers and
private versus public education. For certifirates, articles and
studies regarding my credentials and personal and professional
accomplishments and those of the school, .please see Exhibit
group CC.

15. In August of 1973, I arrived to Las Vegas from
RoOchester, New York, to head a private Hebrew day schocl. What
I found was utter chaocgs. Hovering was the tragic aftermath of a
kidnaping, a bus fatality, a $94,000.00 budget deficit, and
total administrative and educational mismanagement. (My
predecessor was not a credentialed school administrator). As if
these conditions were not enough, there wers no programs, no

facilities, no funds, no faculty and worst of all, there was no

support, but rather an overwhelming community psyche completely

set against the establishment of a Hebrew day school in its

midat, Jewish leaders and Jewish institutionsz shunned the

school and one requested a written disclaimer.

REPLY Ex. Page 6 of 48
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16. It is needless to state that what was required at the

outset was nothing short of a miracle, I chose to stay and I

gave the school all 1 had: blood, sweat, tears, unrelenting

1

2

3

4 drive, tenacity and profound commitment.

5 17. Thirteen and a half years later, The Hebrew Academy is
6|l a well-established, accredited and highly reputable institution
7 of learning. It secured its own campus in Summerlin, more than
811 quadrupled its student population, retained a core of master

9 teachers, formulated a comprehensive curriculum and created an
0 ethos. The Las Vegas community is the benefieciary. To date,
11 Jewish leaders and Jewish institutions are not only pleaséd to
12 associate with The Academy, they even seek credit for its

13|l profound accomplishments.

14 18, TFollowing is a brief history of th- school: N
15 a) Founded in 1973, the Hebrew Academy, a state E%
16 licensed school, was the first non-profit, non-parochial 8
17 elementary private school in Las Vegas, Hbused at Temple
18 Beth Sholom, the school opened with 57 students in
19 kindergarten through 6th grade.
20 b) During the past decade, The Academy has expanded
21 its programs and facilities to accommodate its ever growing
22 student population. In 1983, the school relocated to the
23 Temple's Community Center on Bracken Avenue and added 7th,
24 8th and 9th grades. 1In 1986, The Hebrew Academy became the
25 only accredited elementary school in Las Vegas by the
: 26 Northwest Association of Schools and Colleges and joined
27 the National Association of Independent Schools as a full
23 member school.
o
] 6
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¢y In 1987, as the founding School Head, I began
negotiations with Summerlin, a division of Summa
Corporation, for the grant of a parcel of land for a campus
for The Academy and launched a major fund raising campaign.
Two years later, the school was gifted a 17-acre land grant
for the construction of its new campus. In the summer of
1990, The Academy’s new facility was completed and renamed
The Milton I, Schwartz Hebrew Academy.

d) Through the years, The Academy has grown and
changed while retaining its character of tradition, ethics
and excellence that has made it one of the finest schools
in the State, A reflection of this success is its new
rampus for Pre-K through 10th grade in 1993-94 school year,
In addition to a superior academic core curriculum, the new
facility houses the Early Childhood Development Institute,
a unique learning program for 3 and ¢ year olds, the first
of its kind in Nevada, and provides four foreign languages:
Hebrew, Spanish, French and Japanese, and very elaborate
computer and science programs.

e) The new campus includes an auditorium, a large and
well-equipped library, a science lab and a computer center,
8 spacious teacher’s lounge, and a student book shop.

Future school improvements, according to its master plan,

will include a complete gymnasium, tennis courts, athletic

fields and an Olympic size swimming pool, The academic

program will expand to include grades 10-12 during tha
years 1593-1985, respectively, thus providing a complete

institution of learning, Pre-K through high school. Second

REPLY Ex. Page 8 of 48
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phase of the school's master plan is now in progress; it
includes athletic courts, expansion of the auditorium to a
capacity of 700 and the addition of a swimming pool to
enhance tha anticipated new summer Program for next school

year.

P kD TR D

19. Milton Schwartz became elected to tha Board of

e T

Trustees of the Hebrew Academy after making a larga gift to the

v, T

school. Also in consideration of that grant, the school has

borne his name since 1989. In the first year of his

e
e

administration, the student body, which had been enrolled prior

e f3F

-t
i

to his election to the Board, numbered 250 students. In the
first two years of recruitment under his chairmanship, the

enrellment of the Bchool dropped from 250 students to 215

LRSS

students. Since Mr. Schwartz lost his re-election bid to the

1
r
3,
hy
L

§

i
:
-
&

chajirmanship of the Board and a member of the Board of Trustees,

002044

recruitment has succeeded in raising enrollment tg 225 students.

Based upon the current recruitment figures, we anticipate having

o tae 5 ® e 2
T,

280 students in the Academy for the next school term.

20. When Mr. Schwartz first became chairman, the school

accommodated children in grades Kindergarten through eighth

R e ot « v
N R

PR e
AR L e AR

grade; since he has left the chairmanship, we have expanded

from pre-Kindergarten through grade nine and, next year, we will

-

educate students in pre-Kindergarten through grads ten.
21,

a

I personally solicited Mr. Schwartz'’'s donation to the

Academy, the very donation resulting in the school being named

for him, Prior to Mr. Schwartz’s chairmanship, I initiated

contributlons from Paul Sogg, from Robert Cohen, from Georqga

Rudiak and others, Although these contributions were initiated

REPLY Ex. Page 9 of 48
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prior to Mr., Schwartz’s chairmanship, they were pald during his

chalrmanship in the amount of $300,000.00, $100,000.00 and

$50,000.00, respectively. During the period of contribution

o o N

initiation prior to his chairmanship, I also initlated other

pledges, totaling approximately $150,000.00, which were also

(414

paid under his chairmanship. These funds were solicited

specifically for the school building fund, a fund which was

established prior to his association with the school.

v e N O

22. I have attended each meeting of the Board of Trustees
10|| since my assoclation with the school in 1575.

11 23, I was presaﬁt at the Board of Trustees meeting of May
12{f 21, 1992, At that meeting, the Board unanimously voted to hold

13{| elections of the Trustees and the Officers of the Academy on

14|t June 18, 1992. This vote was made pursuant to Article II,

002045

15 Sectlon 5 of the By-Laws, which establishes the "reqular June
ig{| meeting® as the date for—-the election of Trustees. - C e
17 24, June 18, 1992, was determined to be the date of the

18 "regular" June meeting pursuvant to Board action of January,

19)] 1992, establishing the third Thursday of each month as the

20 “"regular” meeting date. .

21 25, I received a letter from Mr. Schwartz, under date of

oo|f May 13, 19592, a copy of which was sent to all Board members,

23|| indlcating that the Trustees’ election would be held at the June
24 Board meeting, pursuant to the By-Laws.

25 26. The Board, at no time, authorized Mr., Schwartz to

oG|] cancel, postpone or delay the elections of June 18, 1992.

27 27. At the meeting of May 21, 1992, Mr. Schwartz appointed

28|l @ By-Laws committee consisting of Dr. Edward Goldman, Lenard

REPLY Ex. Page 10 of 48
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Schwartzer, Don Schlesinger and Fred Berkley. He directed the
committee to meet, to consider proposed amendments to the By-
Laws and to report the proposed amendments to himself and to the
Board at the June 18, 1992 meeting. At no time did either he,
Dr. Goldman or any other member of the Board state, suggest or
inguire as to whether the elections set for June 18, 1992 should
be postponed in the event that recdmmendations were not made at
the June 18 meeting or in the event that recommendations offered
at the June 18 meeting were not acted upon.

28. At the preceding Board meeting, April 16, 1992, Mr.
Schwartz appeinted a nominating committee and named Dr. Goldman
as its chair. Pursuant to the By-Laws, the nominating committee
was to report nominations to the Board and officerships at least
30 days prior to the election of the Trustees and Officers. bDx,
Goldman failed to do this and, instead, offered a slate of
~candidates at the May 21, 1992 meeting.

25, Previously, pursuant to Article II, Section 10 of the
By-Laws, I made nominations to the Board. My nominations were
the only timely nominations. However, the Board voted
unanimously to waive the 30 day report regquirement to allow the
nominating committee’s nominees to stand election on June 18,
1992. Had the Board not done so, Mr. Schwartz, whom I did not
nominate and who was nominated only by the nominating committee,
would not have been eligible to stand election.

30. As the School Head, I have always conferred with the

President ox Chairman, as she or he har been variously called,

to set a proposed agenda for the upcoming Board of Trustees

meetings. This habit continued under Mr. Schwartz's
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chairmanship. In the event that I could not meet with Mr.
Schwartz personally, we discussed the proposed agenda by
telephone. On three occasions after May 21, 1992, and prior to
his issuance of the agenda of June 11, 1952, I telephoned him to

discuss the agenda. Twilce, my secretary was told by his that he

had been contacted and would phone me back; he did not. The
third time, I was informed that the agenda had already been
mailed and that it was too late, This was the first time since
1575 that an agenda for a Board of Trustees meeting had been
prepared without my participaﬁion.

31. I attended the regular meeting of June 18, 1992, which
had also been scheduled for the election of Trustees and
Officers. Milton Schwartz made several proposz’s to postpone

the election. Each proposal was entertained by the Board,

discussed and rejected. Mr. Schwartz became frustrated. He

002047

first tried to unilaterally adjourn the meeting, without putting

the motion for adjournment to a vote. Two attorney members of
the Board, Lenard Schwartzer and Don Schlesinger, consulted

Roberts Rules of Order, newly revised (1990 Edition) and advised

him that they were of the opinion that he did not have authority

to adjourn the meeting without a vote of the Board. When his

efforts to adjourn the meeting failed, he threatened to hire

counsel to move to set aside the elections if they were to be

held that day. He claimed variously that the meeting was

illegal, that the elections were illegal and that he was

"confused*.

32, Mr, Schwartz indicated that his agenda did not call

for elections and Mr. Schlesinger and Mr. Schwartzer, again,
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consulted Hoberts Rules of Order and were of the opinion that an
agenda was only a suggestion for business to be conducted at the
meeting and was not binding unless approved by the vote of the
Board.

33, The resolution of~Mr. Schwartz’s efforts to adjourn
the meeting or to continue the electlon were not hurried. At
Mr. Schlesinger’s request, the meeting was twice adjournedvto
allow parties to caucus, to discuss and to air their views
amongst each other.

34, The election proceeded and ballots were distributed.
Mr. Schwartz stayed through the counting of the ballots and,
with others, oversaw the counting of the ballots by the
elections committee. Mr. Schwartz tock a ballet, stated that he
would not vote for officers but he would vote for directors and
marked a ballot. That ballot was collected with the others.

35. FNot only did Mr. Schwartz oversee the counting of the

ballots but, although he was a candidate for election to an

office, he was one of four people to actually count the ballots,
When the tally was made, he stormed out of the meeting without
adjourning it. The meeting was eventually adjourned by Daniel
Goldfarb, then the highest ranking officer remaining at the
meeting.

36. Mr. Schwartz lost his election by a nargin of seven

votes to two votes in favor of Mr. Sternberg. All contested

officers’ elections were decided by at least a three vote

margin.

37. MAfter the election, there was an orderly transition of

business toc the new Board. Mr, Schwartz did not come to the
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school or, to wy knowledge, make any overt effort to conduct
business in behalf of the Academy; he made no contact with the
administrative offices, with me as School Head or, to my
knowledge, any assistant in the Administrative offices.

38. At the conclusion of Mr. Schwartz’s term on June 30,
1992, the Academy had total assets of somewhat more than
$383,000.00. As of December 31, 1992, a perlod of six months
under the cperation cf the Defendant Board, the Academy’s assets
totaled nearly $483,000.00.

39. Under the administration of the Defendant Board, the
Academy secured a new loan, paying-off an existing loan with a
fluctuating rate of interest with no ceiling. The new loan is
fully amortized over 30 years, thus avoiding the need to
negotiation terms for payment of tha balloo.. payment reduction 4
years hence. The lcoan also made additional cash available to

commence second-phase construction, construction regquired

pursuant to the Academy’s agreement with Suma Corporation as a

condition for Summerlin’s grant of the 17 acres for the school's

campus.
40. I have read the Affidavits of Milton Schwartz and
others filed by the Plaintiff and must express my genuine sghock

and dismay that intentional misstatements have been madae in such

a cavaljier fashion. In response to the various allegations that

I am detrimental to the Academy or that the current Board is

about to cause immediate harm, I advise the Court, as follows.

4l. At no time befora the June 18, 1992 election did Mr.

Schwartz or Mr. Novick express to me, either directly or

indirectly, at any meeting of the Board or at any time outside

13
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of the Board meeting, their desire to tarminate me as

Administrator or to not renew my contract; and the only

reference made in any of the minutes of any Board member being

diseatisfied with me was made at a March, 1991, Board meeting
chaired by Mr, Schwartz. Mr. Schwartz disclosed that two
directors wanted me fired and stated clearly that he did not
count himself among their suppoxters. In fact, Mr. Schwartz had
provided me with a letter of recommendation, a copy of which has
been attached to Defendants’ Supplemental Opposition as Exhibit
Q.

42. The allegation that the Defendant Board did nothing to
try to resolve the conflict which Mr. Schwartz has created is
false. Lenard Schwartzer attempted to arrange mediation between
Mr, Schwartz and the Defendant Board. After consultation among
each other and our counsel, the Defendant Board agreed to

mediation by Mr. Schwartzer and Mr. Novick, at Mr. Schwartzer's

”office. We agreed th&tizhe méetin§ would be without the benefit |

of counsel, as the aim was to come to some mutually agreeable
resolution of the dispute, not a trial of the dispute by de
facto litigation. The date originally set for the meeting wasg
canceled because Mr, Schwartz was out of town at the Republican
National Convention. When he returned, we were then advised
that Mr. Schwartz wished to change the location of the meeting

to his office and to bring his counsel to show us that the

election was illegal and to mediate from that premige,

(Please

Eee Mr. Schwartzer’s letter, Exhibit N), It was the Board’s
consensus that Mg, Schwartz was not attempting to mediate in

good-faith and was doing axactly what we were told would not ba

14
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done in such a mediation, attempt a de facto litigation of the

legal issues.

43. 1In 1991, a list was left in the administrative offices

with the name of a Trustee, Dr. Neville Pokroy, at the top. The
1ist contained the names of parents of various students and

purported to be a list of parents who were dissatisfied with my

administration. This was found during the student recruitment
period aﬁd, at my instruction, my secretary, Julie James,
telephoned each parent on the list to inquire as to their
dissatigsfaction, Julie James reported to me that, to a person,
the parents contacted indicated that they had not spoken with
Dr. Pokroy, had not given any consent to their names being used
regarding my administration and had no seriour complaints about
my administration. Incidently, Dr. Pokroy was one of the first

parents that term to re-enroll his children in the Academy and

002051

~ provided me with a letter of referaence which is attached hereto —%~
as Exhibit DD; other laudatory parents’ lettars attached as

group Exhibit EE. See also Affidavit of Julie James, Exhibit
AA.

44, The allegation that I somehow abused a child by making

him s5it in his own vomit is insidious. I was in the

administrative office with Julie James when a student from the

sixth grade class came into the office. He reported that the

teacher needed help because a student had vomited. The sub-

contracted janitor, Bud Scurlock, was not available. Julie and

I went to the classroom and found this young student sitting at

his desk with a lapful of vomit. The vomit covered not only him

but his desk and books, Rather than having the student stand up

15
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and causing more of a mess, 1 asked him to sit still while

cleaning supplies were brought to the classroom. The othex

_students were running about the classroom and I tried to agsist

the teacher in restoring order by having them sit in their
seats. When the cleaning materials were brought into the
classroom, I attended te cleaning the student first, so as to
get the vomit off of his person without spreading it onto the
floor, the furniture and other students and, then, had Julie
escort him immediately to the office and call his parents. 1
then cleaned the rest of the mess.

45, This allegation has been made by Bud Scurlock, who is
the husband of the only teacher who was not offered a contract
renewal for the following school term. Mrs. Scurlock was not
asked to return because she was a divisive forre among the
faculty and had caused rifts between various teachers, which

made their adherence to the curriculum and their

" responsibilities strained and difficult.

46. Before discussing the non-renewal of herxr contract, I
made every effort to mediate between Mrs. Scurlock and the other
teachexr with whom she had primary disagreements. Although the

other teacher was amenable to compromise, Mrs. Scurlock was not.

47. The allegation that I represented that all teachers

would be rehired for the next term is false. I gave a report to

the chairman at the April, 1992 meeting and was asked to
reiterate the report by the chairman at the May, 1982 meeting.
I indicated that, at that time, (May, 1992), and as the case

actually was, all the teachers were expressing eagerness for

contract renewals. (See Exhibit B). Contract renewals were not
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cffered until after the consideration of the budget in June,
1932. See Memo #16 to all teachers, Exhibit FF. Thereafter,
the dECiBion was made not to afford Mrs. Scurlock a renewal
contract for the reasons stated, above. Three othexr teachers
who had been offered renewals chose not to renew, two because
they had made plans to move out-of-state and one who wap offered
a better paying position at the Clark County School District,
The Academy employs a total of twenty teachers and our turn-over
has been on average with other local private schools and the
Clark County School District.

48, With regard to contract and other isaues, the teachers
had expressed the desire to meet directly with members of the
Board, without my presence or Mr. Schwartz's presence. Bud
Scurlock reported this desire to Mr. Schwartz. Schwartz called
the teacher forward who had initiated this proposal and informed
her that she Tould not Have such a meéting at *my“school.” A
letter which this teacher wrote regarding this Incident is
attached hereto as Exhibit GG. Therefore, the meeting was held
at a teacher’s private home and Schwartz faxed notes to the
Board members advising them not to attend that meeting.

49. Therefore, any misunderstanding or concern regarding
the contract procedure was a direct result of Mr. Schwartz’s
refusal to allow the teachers to air their concerns openly and

directly to the members of the Board. In this regard, it is

interesting that Mr, Schwartz’'s former wife, Joanne Stevens
r

appeared at the Teachers Appreciation dinner after dining with
Mr. Schwartz and attempted to distribute pamphlets implying that

somehow I was responsible for contract problems with the

17
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teachers. To this day, I find her allegations somewhat

abstruse. Stevens appeared at the dinner in a state of
intoxication and was aggressive, bordering on the violent, I
was concerned that she was about to hit me and another member of
the Board, Geri Rentchler. Stevens was required to settle down
or leave by the owners of the house and some oOther members of
the Board in attendance, To this day, I am not sure of what her
complaints were or how I was alleged to have been responsible
for them.

50. The pamphlets which Stevens distributed contained
copies of teacher employment contracts which could only have
come from the administrﬁtive files or from someone with access
thereto. I overheard her state at that confrontation that she
had just come from a dinner meeting with her former husband,
Milton Schwartz. The day prior to this confrontation, she had
come to the administrative offices to register her daughter and
‘complimeﬁtégw;}”;dmihiéifgfién ofrthe AéadEmy. ”ééé‘;ffida§it OE
Terry Bothmann, Exhibit mm.

51. The Plaintiff attaches a Petition of Parents in behalf
of Jackie Edery. The signatures obtained on that Petition were
solicited by a 6th grade student, who was asked to solicit

signatures on the Petition. A copy of that student’s letter is

attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit HH, After
Edery‘s termination for incompetence and misrepresenting his
credentials, he considered litigation against the Academy, then

decided not to litigate and, before he left town, met with me

‘personally to apologize for his misrepresentation and the
problems which hls dismissal had caused,

Mr, Schwartz, who now

18
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opposes ma on the Jackie Edery issue, previously supported me.
The minutes of the Board of Trustees' meeting of March 26, 1331,

a copy of which is attached as Exhibit 8 to the Defendants’

Supplemental Opposition states clearly at page 2r "Mr. Schwartz

prought up the Jackie Edery issue and stated that Dr. Lubin has

the right to hire and fire teachers.” At the June 25, 1351
Board meeting, the Board considered actually payling Edery, who
had brought claims by his attorney, Dan Marks, but that Motion
was tabled upon my representation that Edery had met with me and

apologized over the incident. A copy of the June 25, 1531

minutes are attached hereto as Exhibit II.
S2. Mr. Scurlock, the school’s janitor, who has made a
variety of allegations against me, accused me of harassing

Edward Cusato and Cathy Ballog regarding their friendship.

002055

Attached hereto and made a part hereof as group Exhibit JJ, are
“letters and other data  found in Mr. Cusato’s computer file.
This relationship was s0 notorious that even students were

commenting about it but, at no time, did I harass either Mr.

Cusato or Ms. Ballog, Their relationship was their own business

s0 long as it did not interfere with their professional
responsibilitijes.

53. Scurlock has also accused me of ranting and raging at

a child’s parent, George Shipman. At no time did such an event

occur and Mr. Shipman‘s letter under date of March 5, 1983, is
attached hereto as Exhibit KK,
54,

Throughout the Plaintiff’s documents, it alleges that

Parents are clamoring for my dismissal. A careful review of the

lists relied on by the Plaintiff shows that they have simply
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duplicated and reduplicated names and that the number of parents
are actually very few. However, once complaining parents were
advised as to the true facts, rather than the rumors and

suspicions which abounded; their complaints were assuaged. For

example, attached hereto as Exhibit LL is a letter from one of
the parents, Debra Rein, asking that her name be retracted.
Several other parents called in to retract their statements of
dissatisfaction.

S5, 1Ira Martel’s horrendous letter is attached as an

Exhibit to the Plaintiff’s documents. My response is attached

hereto as Exhibit MM.

56. In April, 1992, the 6th Edition of "Trustee Handbook”
by Barbara Hadley Stanton, published by the Na“.onal Association
of Independent Schools, of which the Academy is a full member,

was adopted by the Board unanimously to govern the Board's

002056

operations, policies, actions and relationship of the Board
viz., the administrative staff, faculty and, etc. Since its
adoption, Mr, Schwartz has consistently voiced opposition to the
policies established by the National Association of Independent
Schools, despite the fact that he has absolutely no formal
training or edncation in that regard. I can only describe Hr.
Schwartz's efforts of that of "micromanaging" the affairs of the
Academy from a position of ignorance regarding school
curriculum, administration, policies and functions. For

example, the quidelines for organizing and running committees

provides that the School Head should be and ex officio member by

virtue of his or her office of all committess but HMr, Schwartz

has unilaterally pravented me from attending various committees

20
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functions, particularly the nominating committee and By-Laws
committee,

57. The guldelines alsc recommend that, if there is a
conflict between the Chair and the Administrative head, the
chair should consider resigning. (Trustee Handbook, page 56).

58, I have found the Plaintlff’s tactic of exaggeration an
overstatement very interesting. For example, in the minutes of
March 26, 1991, Exhibit S to the Defendants’ Supplemental
Opposition, it is clear that only two Board members expressed a
desire to fire me. In Milton Schwartz’s Supplemental Affidavit,
these two Directors become "some of the Directors". 1In the body
of the Plaintiff’s Reply, Plaintiff’s counsel argues that these
two Directors, who became "some Directors" in M-, Schwartz's
Affidavit, are now "many" Directors.

59. Mr. Schwartz also alleges that the Academy is only

running at 40% capacity, implying that the school is 60% vacant.

However, a comparison of Jewish Community Day Schools for the
school term 1990-1991, the last period for which I have figures,
shows that in Jewish communities with a Jewish population
egquivalent to that of Clark County, the Academy 1s the school
with the largest population of students. The only metropolitan

areas with larger student populations in day schools included

New York City, New York, San Francisco, California, Pittsburgh,

Pennsylvania, San Diego, California, West Palm Beach, Florida,

Denver, Colorado, and Cincinnati, Ohic, all of which have much

larger Jewish populations than Clark County. A copy of the

Jewish Community Day School Study for the 1950-1591 term is

attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit NN.
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60. The Plaintiff relies upon a letter from Carol Woolley

to attack my competency and credibility. However, the facts are
that Carol Woolley was a teacher who was not competent. Many
parents expressed negative concerns about this teacher and, one

of them, Sarah Rohde, observed Mrs. Woolley in the classroom and

prepared a report to me under date of December 3, 1930, a copy

of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 00. Mrs. Rohde found

Woolley to appear frustrated with students’ behavior, nagged at
them, scolded them and lectured them about behavior or poor
classwork and concluded that almost all of the attention she
gave the students was negative. Conversély, the studénts who
sat quietly and did their work, following all classroom rules,
recelved no praise or attention for doing well. The students
who received negative attention did not change their behavior

because of Woolley’'s threats or warnings.

002058

§1. Dr. Neville Pokroy was the Trustee who was most vocal
in his concern aﬁﬁut ﬁs. woolley. Nevertheléés;dit wﬁé Df.
Pokroy, himself, who solicited Woolley's letter which has been
attached to the Plaintiff‘s Reply. I attempted to work with
Woolley based upon the Rohde report and comments and feedback

from other parents and based upon my own evaluation. Mrs.

Woolley chose to resign for, in her own words, "medical reasons®

as of February 22, 1991. A copy of Mrs. Woolley’s resignation

under date of February 21, 1991, is attached hereto as Exhibit
PP,

62. The Plaintiff has attempted to portray me as being a

cause of dissention with the teachers when, in fact, it was the

Board of Trustees, as a whole, under the express quidance of Mr.

22
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Schwartz, that,was the cause of most teacher complaints.
Attached heretE and made a part hereof as Exhibit QQ, is a copy
of a letter signed by 13 of the then 16 teachers at the Acadenmy,

who expressed unrest imposed upon the faculty staff and

administration by Mr. Schwartz, acting through the Board, and

who, at the same time, were "totally supportive of Dr., Lubin,
her leadership, philosophies and policies of the Academy."

63. I have always endeavored to discharge my duties and
respongibilities as the Head Administrator of the Hebrew
Academy, and I do not believe I am exaggerating when I say that
the success of the Academy and its rapid growth and development
have been due primarily to my singularly devoted efforts. It is
unfortunate that Mr. Schwartz has confused his >wn sense of
self-importance with that of the Academy's students without

regard for the best interests of the students or the future of

the Academy. -

1002059

64. Lastly, I wish to note that not one member of the
fugitive Board has a child enrolled at the Hebrew Academy.

FURTHERMORE, your Affiant sayeth ngught.

. Lul#v\ cqaoli~——:hi
TAMAR LUBIN, also known as
TAMAR LUBIN SAPOSHNIX

SUBSCRI and SWORN to before me

ofary PubXic in and for said
County and State

T e
SHARON STREFTCALOWELL
by Appsentimt Expires Sy 18, |04
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Tamar Lubin Saposhnik, Ph.D., Volume I
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In the Matter of the Estate of Milton I. Schwartz

Page 1 Page 3
1 DISTRICT COURT 1 INDEX
2 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 2| WITNESS PAGE
3 31 TAMAR LUBIN SAPOSHNIK, Ph.D.
4| In the Matter of the Estate of ) 4| Examination by Mr. LeVeque 4
C No. 07P061300
< | MILTON L SCHW. ase No. s Examination by Mr. Kemp 82
) De t. No.: 26/Probate
6 Deceased. 5) ) 6
7 7
8 8| EXHIBITS MARXKED
2 9] 1  Amended Deposition Subpoena Duces Tecum 4
10 10f 2 Photocopy of Book "From Chaos to Order" 20
11 11} 3 August4, 1989 Board Meeting Minutes 32
12 DEPOSITION OF TAMAR LUBIN SAPOSHNIK, Ph.D. 12| 4 August 307 1990 Letter and Attachment 36
13 13] 5 October 18, 1990 Board Meeting Minutes 40
4 Las Jgféﬁ:st at Summerlin 14 6  Bylaws of The Milton 1. Schwartz Hebrew
15 IOiOI West Charle%ton Boulevard 15 Academy
16 as Vegas, Nevada 89135 7 Arbitration Exemption: Declaratory
16 Judgment 55
7 On Thursday, .Tune 9, 2016 17 June 18, 1992 Board Meeting Minutes 56
18 AL9:3 18| 9 December 16, 1992 Board Meeting Minutes 59
19 19| 10 January 14, 1993 Board Meeting Minutes 64
20 . .
201 11 Supplemental Affidavit of Milton 1.
21 - Schwartz 66
22 s 12 August 25, 1994 Board Meeting Minutes 71
23 s 13 May 7, 1996 Board Meeting Minutes 74
24 2s 14 May 19, 1996 Board Meeting Minutes 77 S
25| Reported by: Sarah M. Winn-Boddie, CCR No. 868 ”c 15 May 23, 1996 Letter 79 8
o
Page 2 Page 4 o
1| APPEARANCES: 1 THURSDAY, JUNE 9, 2016; LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
2| For A. Jonathan Schwartz, Executor of the Estate of 2 9:36 am.
5 Milton I. Schwartz: 5 o
-000-
ALEXANDER G. LeVEQUE, ESQ.
4 Solomon Dwiggins & Freer 4 | Whereupon,
9060 West Cheyenne Avenue . . .
5 L702V8% evada 89129 5| (In an off-the-record discussion held prior to the
6 (702) 6 | commencement of the proceedings, counsel agreed to waive the
7 %:I?rtl "glte .Dr. Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson Educational { 7} court reporter's requirements under Rule 30(b){4) of the
g e WILLIAM S. KEMP, ESQ. 8| Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure.)
Kenap Jones_& Coulthard
9 Howar d Hughes Parkway 9| Whereupon,
10 as Nevada §9169 10
&6 3%5 5000 N TAMAR LUBIN SAPOSHNIK, Ph.D.,
11
having been first duly swormn to testify to the truth, the
12 12
whole truth, and nothing but the truth, was examined and
13 ek ko 13
testified as follows:
14 14
15 15 MR. LeVEQUE: Could you mark this as Exhibit 1,
16 16| please?
17 17 (Exhibit 1 marked for identification.)
18 18 MR. LeVEQUE: Thank you.
19 19 EXAMINATION
20 20| BY MR. LeVEQUE:
21 21 Q. Good moming, Doctor. Could you please state and
22 22| spell your full name for the record?
23 23 A. Tamar, T-a-m-a-1, Lubin, L-u-b-i-n, Saposhnik,
24 24| S-a-p-o-s-h-n-i-k.
25 25 Q. Thank you very much.
702-476-4500 OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 1
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In the Matter of the Estate of Milton 1. Schwartz

Page 45 Page 47
1 A. Okay. 1 MR. KEMP: Same objection.
2 Q. Do you understand what a personal guaranteeisona | 2 THE WITNESS: Yes.
3| loan? 3| BY MR. LeVEQUE:
4 A. Of course. 4 Q. I'm going to direct you to the last page of this
5 Q. Okay. Do you have a recollection if Mr. Schwartz 5 | exhibit, which is page 9.
6 | personally guaranteed a construction loan by a bank for the 6 A. Yes.
71 initial construction of the school? 7 Q. And you see that it's dated -- can you read the
8 A. 1 think so, yes. 8| date?
9 Q. Okay. 9 A. Yeah. 19th day of December, 1990.
10 (Off-the-record discussion.) 10 Q. Okay. Can you find your signature in here?
11 MR. LeVEQUE: We'l go off the record. 11 A. Yes.
12 (Recess taken from 10:26 a.m. to 10:30 a.m.) 12 Q. Which one is it?
13 (Exhibit 6 marked for identification.) 13 A. The bottom.
14| BY MR. LeVEQUE: 14 Q. So the signature on this document is your signature,
15 Q. Allright, Doctor. Showing you what's been marked |15 correct?
16 | as Exhibit 6 to your deposition, do you recognize this 16 A. Yeah. It's my sigﬁature.
17| document? 17 Q. Allright. Let me ask you a hypothetical question.
18 A. Yeah. 18] Do you believe that if Mr. Schwartz did not make the
19 Q. Okay. And what do you recognize it to be? 19§ half-million-dollar gift that he made and that he did not
20 A. Well, it's a -- the bylaws for the name of Milton I. 20| solicit the $300,000 gift from Mr. Sogg -
21} Schwartz. 21 A. Mm-hmm.
22 Q. Allright. First page of Exhibit 6, do you see the 22 Q. - do you believe that the school would have been
23| first article where it says "Article I, name and office"? 23| able to have been built on the loan that -- excuse me -- on
24 Do you see that? 24| the land that was provided by the Howard Hughes Corporation?
25 A. Mm-hmm. Yes. 25 MR. KEMP: Form. Foundation.
Page 46 Page 48
1 Q. And you see that it states "Name: The name of this 1 THE WITNESS: Probably.
2 [ corporation is The Milton I. Schwartz" -- 2| BY MR. LeVEQUE:
3 A. Yes. 3 Q. Okay.
4 Q. --"Hebrew Academy" -- 4 A. Unless somebody from heaven would come and dropped a
5 A. Mm-hmm. 5| million dollars.
6 Q. Letme finish. I'm sorry. 6 Q. Well, let me make sure I understand your answer. Do
7 A. Okay. 7| you think it would have happened or do you think it would not
8 Q. Open parentheses, "hereinafter referred to as The 8 | have happened?
9| Academy," close parentheses, "and shall remain so in 9 A. Probably not, but how can one say to certainty --
10| perpetuity"? 10 Q. Fair enough.
11 (Reporter interjection.) 11| . A. --youknow? Like what if somebody comes from
12| BY MR. LeVEQUE: 12 | somewhere and says, Oh, guess what?
13 Q. Do you see where I read that? 13 Q. Fair enough.
14 A. Yes. 14 Allright. From the time that Mr. Schwartz became
15 Q. Okay. Now, is this bylaw consistent with your 15 | chairman of the board, which was, as we've seen, in August of
16 | understanding that Mr. Schwartz received in exchange for his |16 | 1989, through the school year that ended in 1991, what's your
17 | initial gift of $500,000 the naming of the school rights to be |17 recollection of enrollment at the school? Did it increase?
18| held — 18| Did it decrease? Do you remember?
19 A. Yes. 19 A. Itusually increases, so it increased, not
20 Q. --in perpetuity? 20| decreased.
21 MR. KEMP: Form. 21 Q. Okay. Was there any year -- well, let me ask you
22 THE WITNESS: Yes. 22 | this: When did you stop working for the school?
23| BY MR. LeVEQUE: 23 A. Td say 1980-something. I'm not sure the last -
24 Q. Okay. And Ibelieve you testified that your 24| it's probably somewhere. I don't want to say a date that --
25| understanding what perpetuity means is forever and ever? 25 Q. No, I understand.
702-476-4500 OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LL.C Page: 12
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Samuel Ventura In the Matter of the Estate of Milton 1. Schwartz
Page 1 Page 3
1 DISTRICT COURT 1 EXHIBITS
2 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 27 NUMBER PAGE
3 31" otice of Taking Deposition of Sam . 4
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11 11 Bates stamped ACR0%207 < Ag“404211
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- DEPOSITION OF SAMUEL VENTURA |**| " “{tgﬁ%g r;vgggcglgogvg%m us, The 46
iy Taken on Monday, July 11,2016 b o Mimutes, Eeypa 2, 0085
15 at 1:37 p.m. "6"  The Milton I. Schwartz Hetrew 47
16 At Solomon, Dwiggins & Freer, Ltd. 15 Afc%rggtlges €50, ut1ac1)ns20§ tge oard
- 9060 West Cheyenne Avenue 16 Bates stamf)e(f Ar%ia/426% 2 AC404270
17| "7"  The Miltgn I. Schwartz Hebr 48
18 Las Vegas, Nevada 18 %c%dengl %{Iéﬁoﬁlt%vgg 0 % oard
rustees a ,
19 1o Bates stamf)eg Ar(%ﬁ4565 - AC404267
20 20 "g" Petition for Declaratory Relief 49
2 21
22 22
23 23 ©
24 24 8
25| Reported By: Ewa Barnes, CCR No. 889 - ~
o
Page 2 Page 4 ©
1| APPEARANCES OF COUNSEL: 1 LAS VEGAS, NEVADA; MONDAY, JULY 11, 2016
2 2 1:37P.M.
For A. Jonathan Schwartz, Executor of the Estate of
3| Milton L. Schwartz 3 -0-
4 SOLOMON, DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD. 4| Whereupon —
Baf: Alexander G. LeVeque, Esq.
5 % 6% West %hey%%ngeﬁifgnue 5 SAMUEL VENTURA,
6 (;ags%; %%?72?1%/2 6 the witness herein, having been first
7 gleveque@sdfnvlg\);.com 7 duly swom, was examined and testified
8 8 as follows:
For The Dr. Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson Educational
9| Institute: 9
10 KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP 10 EXAMINATION
By: David T, Blake, Esq.
11 3 %OV Howard Hughs Bdiaway, 17th Floor 11| BY MR. LEVEQUE:
12 gags%i?%%%gg(g(}] ; 2 12 Q. Good afternoon. Could you please state and
13 d.blake l_cernpj or?é(s.com 13| spell your name for the record.
14 14 A. Samuel Ventura, last name is V-e-n-t-u-r-a.
15 15 Q. Thank you.
16 [NDEX 16 Could you mark this Exhibit 1, please.
17 17 (Exhibit 1 was marked.)
WITNESS PAGE
18 SAMUEL VENTURA 18| BY MR. LEVEQUE:
19 . nation by Mr. LeV 4 19 Q. Okay. Mr. Ventura, what's been handed to you as
20 Eﬁg%ggtigg b; Mr. B?akeeque ) 36 20| an exhibit to your deposition, and this is the notice for
21 21| your deposition today, if you could pick it up, I just want
22 221 to ask you a couple questions about it.
23 23 A. Yeah.
24 24 Q. This document is actually two things. It'sa
25 25| notice of deposition. That's the first document. And then
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Samuel Ventura In the Matter of the Estate of Milton 1. Schwartz
Page 13 Page 15
1 A. Paul Sogg. Paul B. Sogg. Yes, I see him. 1} Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy and shall remain so in
2 Q. Do you remember Mr. Sogg donating a significant 2} perpetuity.
3| amount of money to the school as well for the construction? 3 Do you see that?
4 A. Yes, 1do. 4 A. Yes.
5 Q. Do you know if Mr. Schwartz facilitated in any 5 Q. Was this part of the agreement that the school
6| way the donation from Mr. Sogg? 6| had with Mr. Schwartz, that the bylaws would be amended to
7 MR. BLAKE: Objection. Form and foundation. 71 reflect that the school would be known in perpetuity as the
8 THE WITNESS: It's a small town. Mr. Paul B. 8! Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy?
91 Sogg was a longtime friend of mine. Before he passed away, | 9 MR. BLAKE: Objection. Form. Foundation.
10| he sold me his business. It was a self storage. SoIdo 10| Calls for a legal conclusion, and also mischaracterizes his
11| know Paul Sogg very well. 11| testimony.
12| BY MR. LEVEQUE: 12 Go ahead and answer.
13 Q. Okay. 13| BY MR. LEVEQUE:
14 A. T'm not sure, and I don't know if 14 Q. If you can remember it.
15| Mr. Schwartz -- I knew he donated $300,000. I'm tryingto |15 A. Tdon't think I remember that far.
16| recall. No,Idon't recall, and I don't remember if 16 MR. LEVEQUE: Can you read it back?
17| Mr. Schwartz is the gentleman or managed to talk to Paul to {17| BY MR. LEVEQUE:
18| put the money. Ireally don't. 18 Q. I'llrestate. Was the money and the bylaws part
19 Q. Allright. That's fair enough. You do recall, 19 of the deal between the school and Mr. Schwartz concerning
20| though, that in exchange for the half million dollars that 20} the naming rights?
21| Mr. Schwartz donated to the school, the school was named 21 MR. BLAKE: Objection. Form and foundation.
22| after him; correct? 22| Calls for a legal conclusion.
23 A. That's correct. 23 You can answer.
24 MR. BLAKE: Objection. Form. Foundation. 24 THE WITNESS: Yes.
25 THE WITNESS: Sorry. 258 /i
Page 14 Page 16
1| BY MR. LEVEQUE: 1; BY MR. LEVEQUE:
2 Q. Okay. Was it your understanding that it was an 2 Q. Do yourecall some time in 1992 a lawsuit being
3] agreement between the school with respect to the naming 3| filed by a group of people who claimed to be the board and
4| rights, that in exchange for Mr. Schwartz's pledge of half 4 another group of people who claimed to be the board and
5| a million dollars, the school as consideration would name 51 eventually got resolved, but there was a lawsuit between
6| the school after him? 6| the two boards?
7 MR. BLAKE: Objection. Form, foundation, and 7 A. No, I don't recall.
8| calls for a legal conclusion. 8 Q. Okay. Do you recall there being a fundamental
9 You can answer. 9| disagreement between Mr. Schwartz and Dr. Lubin on how to
10 THE WITNESS: Yes. 10} run the school?
11 (Exhibit 3 was marked.) 11 A. Yes,Ido.
12| BY MR. LEVEQUE: 12 Q. Do you remember the school, I think I want to
13 Q. Okay. I'm showing you what's been marked as 13| say around 1993, 1994, took off the name Milton I. Schwartz
14| Exhibit 3 to your deposition, Mr. Ventura, are bylaws from {14( from the Hebrew Academy as a result of that dispute between
15] the school. This version of bylaws was the enacted bylaws |15] the two?
16} of 1990. 16 A. Yes, Ido.
17 If you could turn to the last page of Exhibit 3, 17 Q. And do yourecall that Dr. Lubin was -- her
18| T think I see your signature, but I just want to confirm. 18| employment was terminated by the school?
19 A. Yeah. Signature is here. 19 A. Y was not -- when she was terminated, I was not
20 Q. Is it the one that is one, two, three -- fourth 20| aboard member. Iresigned maybe two months before that or
21| from the bottom? 21] maybe -- I don't remember the timing. A few months, maybe
22 A. Yes. 22} avyear or something. I was the first gentleman who
23 Q. Okay. And if you go to the first page of 231 resigned and pulled the children out of the school because
24| Exhibit 3, the first article talks about the naming of the 24| of the way the school was running by Tamar Lubin.
25| school, where it says: The name of the corporation is The |25 Q. Okay.
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Page 1 Page 3
1 DISTRICT COURT 1 INDEX
2 COUNTY OF CLARK, NEVADA 2| WITNESS PAGE
3 3| LENARD E. SCHWARTZER, ESQ.
4| In the Matter of the Estate of ) Case No. P061300 4 Examination by Mr. Freer 1 42
5{ MILTON . SCHWARTZ, ) Dept. No.: 26/Probate | 5| famination % Me {ouvillier )21
6 Deceased. ) ) 6
7 7
8 8 EXHIBITS
? $|NUMBER  DESCRIPTION MARKED
10 10(6 February 19, 2014 Affidavit of 6
11 ervice; February 18, 2014 Amended
11 Deposmon Subpoend (Duces Tecum)
12 127 1 17,1992 Letter, Schwartzer 14
13 15 chwartz, EST-00189
14 14
15 DEPOSITION OF LENARD E. SCHWARTZER, ESQ. |, ¢
16 Taken on Tuesday, February 25,2014 16
17 At 1:00 p.m. 17
18 At 9060 West Cheyenne Avenue 15
19 Las Vegas, Nevada 19
20
20
21
21
22
22
> 23
24| Reported by: Carla N. Bywaters, CCR 866 va 'C\)
25| Job No. 8969 o
25 AN
o
Page 2 Page 4 o
1| APPEARANCES: 1 PROCEEDINGS
2| For A. Jonathan Schwartz: 2 (Witness sworn.)
3 ALAND. FREER, ES%) 3 THE WITNESS: And Lenard is spelled
Solomon Dwig gans & Freer, Ltd. . .
4 West Ch eyenne rofessional Centré 4| L-e-n-a-r-d, middle initial E., Schwartzer,
9060 West Cheyenne Avenue
5 Las Vegas, Nevada 89129 5| S-c-h-w-a-1-t-z-e-1. If you need to contact me, my law
6 6| office would be best. That's Schwartzer and McPherson
For The Dr Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson Educational .
7 Institute: 712850 South Jones Boulevard, Suite No. 1, Las Vegas,
8 II\J/IAX}I\éIILIANO D. COUVILLIER 111, ESQ. 8| Nevada 89146, and the telephone there is (702)228-7590.
1onel Sa
5| 30050y SOuttf?’ourth Sooa 9 LENARD E. SCHWARTZER, ESQ.,
uite 1
10 Las Vegas Nevada 89101 10 having been first duly sworn, was
11 11 examined and testified as follows:
Also Present:
12 12 EXAMINATION
A. JONATHAN SCHWARTZ
13 13| BY MR. FREER:
14 KOROE X E R ox ¥ 14| Q. Thank you, Mr. Schwartzer.
15 15; A. I've been here before.
16 16f Q. You've had your deposition taken before?
17 17{ A. I've had my deposition taken before, and I've
18 18| taken many depositions.
19 19| Q. Great. Is there any -- I'm going to dispense
20 20| with asking you the standard questions. Is there
21 21| anything today that would affect your testimony that
22 22| you're about to give?
23 23] A. NotthatI could think of other than we're
24 24| asking things that happened about 14 years ago.
25 25| Q. Youdon't have a memory like a steel trap?
702-476-4500 OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 1
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Page 5 Page 7
1| A. Arusted steel trap, probably, but — 1| you were served with?
2] Q. Well-- 2| A. T'was served with the document marked as
3] A. Tmean, Idohave memory of that time and 3| Exhibit 6 except for the cover page, which is the
4| period, yes. 4| Affidavit of Service.
5f Q. Okay. Iappreciate it. Are you aware of why 5[ Q. Good. If youwould turn to page 3 of that
6 | you're here today for your deposition? 6 | deposition subpoena, there's a list of items to be
7| A. Yes. Ispoke to Mr. Luszeck, and he informed 7| produced.
8 [ me that there's a dispute with regard to the estate 8 A. Yes.
9| providing more funds to the school over the issue of 91 Q. Andwe had asked that you bring with you any
10| whether or not the school, the lower school, would 10| documents you had on file concerning, you know, naming
11| retain the name The Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy. [11!issues and the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy. Did
12 MR. COUVILLIER: And I would just like to add, 12{ you have a chance to review those requested items?
13| from our perspective, is whether there's a gift 131 A. Yes,Idid.
14| provided for under Mr. Schwartz's will, whether that 14| Q. Did you have any documents responsive to
15| contains a provision that the school be named in 15| those?
16| perpetuity. 16| A. No. I spent sometime looking at my office and
17 THE WITNESS: Iknow there's another side to 17| at home, and I did not find any files or any documents
18] the story. There's two attorneys, at least two 18 that would correspond to the items requested to be
19| attorneys involved. If there were three attorneys, 19| produced. IfI had documents that were m computers,
20| there would be three sides to the story. 20| I'm now two law firms away from where I was in the
21| BY MR. FREER: 211 1990 -- early 1990s.
221 Q. That's true. Do you have any knowledge or 22 So that wasn't retained on the computer in my
23| opinion as to what your understanding is concerning the 23] office or at the comp -- and probably I'm three
24| dispute? 24| computers away on the computer at home, and I looked
25| A. Conceming the probate dispute, whether the 25| for files relating to the Hebrew Academy at home, and
Page 6 Page 8
1} gift should be made or not, I have no opinion. And I 1} to tell you the truth, the only ones I could find was
2 [ wouldn't since I'm not a -- my practice has been mostly | 2| my son's report cards, certificates, and things like
3| in the area of bankruptcy for the last years, it's -- I 3| that.
4| wouldn't opine on probate matters. Ilimitmy practice | 4| Q. So 14 years is beyond your retention policy?
5| to business, commercial, and bankruptcy matters. 5/ A. Both at home and in the office; although, I
6] Q. Okay. Other than speaking with Mr. Luszeck at | €] probably could have asked my mother, and she'll find
7| my firm, have you had any conversations with anybody | 7| things of mine from 40 years ago.
8] else concerning the litigation, the naming issues or 8| Q. Allrnght. Did you ever serve on the board of
9| the probate? 9| the Hebrew Academy?
101 A, Withmy wife. 10} A, Yes,Idid.
11| Q. I'will notask as to the communications with 11| Q. Okay. And how long did you serve?
12| you and your wife. All right. Do you recall being 12| A. Idon't remember the specific number of years.
13| served with a subpoena in this matter? 13| I'would guess eight years, and the reason why I think
14 A, Yes, I was. 14| it's eight years is because my son attended the school
15| Q. Okay. AndI'll just go ahead and have that 15| for approximately nine years. And I went on the board
16§ marked. If you would pass that over to the court 16} early on when he started attending the school, and I
17| reporter, please. 17 left either the year he went to high school at another
18 (Exhibit No. 6 was marked for 18| school or the year before that. I'm not sure which.
19 identification.) 191 Q. Okay. And using that as a marker,
20 Q. I'm handing you what's been marked as Exhibit |20| approximately, what years would that have been?
21| No. 6 which on the first page is an Affidavit of 21| A. That would have been probably around '95 --
22| Service and then thereafter follows an Amended 22| well, '85, '86 -- no - '86, '87 to '92.
23| Deposition Subpoena Duces Tecum. 231 Q. Okay.
241  A. Yes. 24 A. The only reason I guess I would date it not
25| Q. Is whatI've handed you consistent with what 251 being longer than '92 is because I was given a copy of
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Page 9

a letter that was written that said I was -- by me that
said I was no longer on the board in '92.

Q. Okay. Allright. Do you recall being on the
board at or about the time the Hebrew Academy switched
its name to the Milton 1. Schwartz Hebrew Academy?

A. Yes.

Q. What do you recall with respect to the name
change? .

A. Tdon't have any specific recollection of a
board meeting where that was done. Ido have a
specific recollection that the name of the school was
changed to the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy at the
time the school was moving to the new location on
Hillpointe because Mr. Schwartz donated a very large
sum and arranged for the balance of the financing for
the construction of the new school building.

And it was -- was then and today - my
understanding that the school would be named the Milton
1. Schwartz Hebrew Academy in perpetuity in light of
that financial donation and his -- you know, I got the
impression he guaranteed the loans with the bank.

Q. Okay. You used the phrase "in perpetuity.”
‘What is your understanding as to why that term "in

v @ I o W N
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Page 11

Q. Okay. It's 14 -- well, it's more than. We're
talking about what, 1995, '96, so it's almost 20 years
ago.

A. Butit was my firm ~ it is my firm impression
and recollection today that the words "in perpetuity"
were used more than once, not merely by me, in the
discussions.

MR. FREER: Okay. Would you hand him

Exhibit 4, please.
BY MR. FREER:

Q. I'm handing you what's been marked Exhibit
No. 4 for identification purposes. It's the Bylaws of
The Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy, Bates number
EST-00097 through 105. If you would, would you turn to
the back, and let me know if you identify your
signature on that document?

A. On the second line of the last page, it looks
like my signature.

Q. Okay. I'll give you a minute to look at it.
Do you recall this document or do you recall signing
this document?

A. Imight have even drafted this document, but I
don't recall it one way or the other.

24 | perpetuity” came about? 24| Q. That was my next question. Q
251 A. Well, it came about because in the discussions 25| A. Imean, there's a good chance I drafted the 8
Page 10 Page 12 8
1| that was had with Milton when he was discussing with 1{ docurnent. -
2 [ board members, and I don't remember at a board meeting. 2| Q. Okay. Butyou don't have any specific
3| I just remember it was part of the discussions, and we 3| recollection as you sit here right now?
4| had non-board meetings where there would be several 41 A. Thisis 25 years - this is 24 years ago. 1
5 | board members meet with Milton. 5| just would not be able to say specifically I remember
6 There were times when I would discuss things 6 | doing this particular document.
7| with Milton, because I think at some point in time, I 71 Q. Okay. I'll turn your attention to
8| did legal work for the school on a pro bono basis, and 8| paragraph 1, and I'll read it aloud. It says, "The
9| I was considered the attorney (indicating) for the S| name of this corporation is the Milton I. Schwartz
10| board. 10| Hebrew Academy hereinafter referred to as The Academy
11 We used the term "in perpetuity,” because 11| and shall remain so in perpetuity.”
12| since it was by far the largest amount of money anybody 12 Does that paragraph comport with your
13| had ever donated to the school at the time, and it made 13| recollection and understanding of the nammg of the
14/ it possible to build the new school on Hillpointe. 14§ school?
15| Without that donation, there wouldn't be -- there 15 MR. COUVILLIER: I'm going to raise an
16| wouldn't have been a school built. 16| objection, Mr. Schwartzer, if you would, please. 1
17] Q. Okay. 17| object on the grounds that this line of questioning
18| A. So, in consideration of that, it was our 18| violates the Court's November 12, 2013 order again, the
19 understanding and I believe it was our agreement that 19

NONNNN
Sw NP o

25

the school would be named the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew
Academy as long as it was a Hebrew day school.

Q. Okay. Do you ever recall Milton usmg the
term "in perpetuity"?

A. Tdon't have any recollection of specific

conversations from that period of time.

NN
W NP O

25

order which limits the discovery in this first phase of
the discovery as to whether the purpose or conditions
of the bequest in Section 2.3 of Mr. Milton L.
Schwartz's will, dated 2005, was for the school to be
named the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy in
perpetuity as it's raised in the First Claim for

Relief.
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Page 13 Page 15
1 And, therefore, asking about documents and 1 MR. COUVILLIER: Again, I'll raise the
2| bylaws that occurred decades before the will was 2| objection as to relevance. This document has nothing
3| executed are not relevant to the question or to the 3| to do with Milton I. Schwartz's 2004 will.
41 issue and violate the scope of the Court's order and, 4 THE WITNESS: I recognize this as a letter
5] therefore, improper. 5| that I wrote. I don't specifically recall writing this
6 MR. FREER: And I will incorporate by 6| letter, either, but it does appear to be on the formal
7| reference my response raised in the prior deposition of | 7| stationery of the law firm I was at in 1992, and it
8| Neville Pokroy, but summarized as essentially our 8| does appear to have my signature on it.
91 position is, it is relevant to ascertaining the 9! BY MR. FREER:
10| decedent's understanding and mindset at the time he 10| Q. Okay. And I will refer your attention to the
11| executed the will in 2004. 11| last sentence on that letter: "It's your school, it
12 MR. COUVILLIER: Well, we believe that his |12 has your name on it forever, I know you will do the
13| mindset is reflected on the actual words of the will. 13| right thing."
14 MR. FREER: That being said, I will have the 14 Do you have any recollection of drafting that
15| reporter read the question back to you again - 15| sentence?
16 THE WITNESS: Okay. 16 MR. COUVILLIER: Same objection.
17 MR. FREER: -- and then you can answer. 17 THE WITNESS: 1don't - the answer is: I
18 (Record read.) 18| don't recall writing this letter in 1992, but it
19 THE WITNESS: Yes, it does comport with my |19 comports with my understanding that the name of the
20| recollection concerning the naming of the school and, |29|school was going to be the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew
21| particularly, that it shall remain so in perpetuity. 21| Academy forever or in perpetuity, whichever term I
22| BY MR. FREER: 22| would use at the time.
23| Q. Okay. 23| BY MR. FREER:
24 Do you have any knowledge or understanding as [24| Q. Okay. Do you recall having any discussions
25| to what the term "in perpetuity" may have meant to 25| with Milt concerning this document?
Page 14 Page 16
1| Milton L. Schwartz in connection with the naming ofthe | 1| A. Not - I don't recall having any -- where does
2| school? 21 it specif -~ I don't have any specific recollection of
3 MR. COUVILLIER: Same objection as to 3] discussing this document with Milt, no.
4| relevance and violation of the Court's order. 4| Q. Okay. Do you have any recollection of
5 THE WITNESS: My recollection is that all the 51 discussing the contents of that document with Milton?
6| parties at the time understood that in perpetuity meant 6 A. No. Idon't even remember why the document
7| forever. I mean, it's not a difficult English word or 7| was written. ’
8| unusual English word. It's not a legal -- legalism or 8| Q. Okay.
9| anything. It meant what its common English meaningis. | 9| A. Iwas at that time still, I would consider,
10| It's forever. I guess lawyers use it because they all 10} friendly with Mr. Schwartz; although, we're not
11| had to learn the rule against perpetuities in law 11| friends. We didn't go out to dinner or do things
12| school or something like that. 121 together, but we were friendly, and I was friendly with
13| BY MR. FREER: 13| Ira Sternberg who was, at the time, the president of
14| Q. Ialways thought lawyers used in perpetuity 14| the board of trustees.
15 because they could charge more by the word. Let the 15 And, again, I was friendly with Mr. Sternberg,
16 | record reflect that was a joke. 16| but we didn't if we had lunch together more than once,
17 MR. FREER: Hand that to the court reporter, 17! more than a couple of times, I don't recall it. His
18| please. Is this No. 7? 18| son was a schoolmate of my son, so in the eight years
19 (Exhibit No. 7 was marked for 19| that my son was in the school, we had certainly
20 identification.) 20| interacted numerous times.
21| BY MR. FREER: 21 And it appears from the letter that there was
22| Q. Mur. Schwartzer, I'm handing you what's been 22| some kind of issue between the board and Mr. Schwartz,
23 [ marked as Exhibit No. 7. It's a letter that purports 23| and I would very much want that kind of thing to be
241 to be from you to Milton I. Schwartz dated July 17, 24| smoothed over.
25(1992. Do you recall this document? 25( Q. Okay. Do you know whether Mr. Schwartz ever
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Page 17 Page 19
1| referred to the school as "my school"? 1| A. Inthe period of time where T was on the
2 MR. COUVILLIER: Same objection. 2| board, it never came up, so the answer is no.
3 THE WITNESS: I would think so, because I 3| Q. During your tenure on the board, there was
4| would refer to — if [ was speaking to him, I would 4| never any indication that the school would change its
51 call it his school or your school, if I was speaking to 5| name or drop Milton's name from the --
6| Milton Schwartz, and I think he would think of it as 6| A. No. It's my -- T know that -- I'm trying ~-
7] his school because he's -- besides the money, he had 7| I'm not -- I'm very vague about the time that
8| spent a lot of time and effort making the school be. 8| Mr. Adelson started becoming a major donor to.the
9| successful. I mean, it went from a much -- very small | ¢| school and the campus. But it was, if you ask me my
10| school to a much larger school due to his efforts. 10| impression, my impression was it was always going to be
11| BY MR. FREER: 11| the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy on the Sheldon
12y Q. Okay. You mentioned having discussions with [12|and Miriam Adelson campus.
13| Milton about the school. When is the last time you 13| Q. Does that distinction that you just discussed
14| recall having a discussion with Milton about the 14| have to do with the lower school and the upper school?
15| school? 15| A. Well, there wasn't really an upper school at
16| A. The last time I spoke to Milton was at the 16| the time I was on the board, and that's part of the
17| gala. 17| reason why I ceased being on the board is because there
18 Q. Okay. 18| were about 20 students -- when my son was in the eighth
18| A, AndIlooked up that in papers I did have in 19| grade, there were about 20 students in the eighth grade
202007, I believe, and I spoke with Mr. Schwartz at that. |20/ class, and they were trying to start the high school.
21| I was very happy, too, that he was being honored. I 21 And my son did not want to go to high school
22| thought it was well deserved, of course, and I went up |22 with a very small class and we agreed with him, and he
23| to him at the party, at that gala, and met -- talked to 23| went to public high school. And Tamar-Lubin was very
24| him for a few moments about how wonderful that his |24 | upset with that decision, and it wound up resulting in
25| school had continued to grow. 25| our youngest daughter leaving Hebrew Academy after
Page 18 Page 20
1 And I believe at that point in time he ” 1| kindergarten and going to the Las Vegas Day School.
2| introduced me to Mr. Adelson who was the other honoree | 2 Q. Did Milton ever discuss his estate plan with
3| or something at that gala and -- 3| you?
4] Q. Do yourecall anything that Milton said to you 4] A. No.
5 | during that conversation? 5| Q. Didhe ever discuss -- did you ever have any
6] A. Other than "thank you very much," I don't. 61 discussions with Milton concerning his leaving a
71 Q. Okay. 7{ bequest to the school?
8 A. Idon't Ireallydon't. It wasnota--it 8 A. No.
9 | was a two- to five-minute discussion at most. He had 9| Q. Didyou ever have any discussions with Milton
10| lots of people coming up to him and speaking to him at 10| concerning conditioning gifts or bequests?
11| the gala. 11| A. No. He had his — had his own attorneys. 1
121 Q. Prior to that, do you have a recollection of 12| mean, I was never his -- I never was his attorney. I,
13 when the last time you spoke to Mr. Schwartz about the |13 on occasion, acted as the attorney for the school, but
141 school? 14} I was never Milton's attorney.
15| A. No,I--TIdon't. Tjustdon't recall any 1s MR. FREER: Okay. I think we're just about
16| actual discussions with him about the school. Twould 16| done. I'm going to take a quick break, go talk to my
17| see Mr. Schwartz on occasion usually at fundraising 17| client for a moment --
18| functions over the years. He donated to lots of things 18 THE WITNESS: Sure.
19| and I was aware of that, and I can't -- I don't recall 19 MR. FREER: -- and then we may be back to wrap
20| any specific discussions post board membership te the 20| up my portion of the deposition.
21] gala. 21 (Recess taken.)
221 Q. Okay. Did you ever have any discussions with 22 MR. FREER: Allright. Let's go back on
23| Milton concerning removing his name off of the school? |23/ record.
24| A. Itnever came up. 24 Mr. Schwartzer, I have no further questions
25| Q. Okay. 25| for you at this time. I will reserve my right to call
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Page 21

Page 23

- 002075

1| you back as a witness. If the Court allows the 1] BY MR. COUVILLIER:
2| broadening of discovery, we may end up calling youback | 2| Q. So you're not aware of whether he amended his
3| to discuss other issues that are consistent with other 31 will at any point in time?
4| claims in defense that have been raised in this matter, 4| A. No,Iam not.
51 and at this point, I'll pass the witness. 5/ Q. Did you know Mr. Schwartz in 2004, in February
6 MR. COUVILLIER: Thank you. 6| of 20047
7 EXAMINATION 71 A. Well, I knew him before and I knew him after,
8| BY MR. COUVILLIER: » 8| so I had to know him in between. -
9l Q. Mr. Schwartzer, have you ever seen a copy of 9| Q. ButImean did you see him often?
10| Mr. Schwartz's will -- 10| A. Ididnot see him often. I believe I would
11| A. No. 11| have seen him occasionally at charity dinners. I might
12| Q. --lastwill and test -- okay. Has anyone 12| have seen him at a restaurant. If T did, I would go
13| ever told you that Mr. Schwartz had a will? 13| over and say hello.
14{ A. Only by the fact that there's a probate 14} Q. Justin passing and sort of -
15| litigation going on about the will has informed me 15| A. Inpassing, but I don't recall having any
16} about that. o 16| business meetings or legal meetings or I don't even
17| Q. So just through this matter here? 17| know recall having lunch with him in that period of
18| A. Iprobably heard about this litigation before 18| time; although, [ may have.
19| I was subpoenaed, either through newspapers or through |19 Q. Did he seem to you to be in good health?
20| people in the Jewish community who knew it was going |20 A. For a man his age, yes.
21| on. 21| Q. And did he seem to you to be of sound mind?
22| Q. Has anyone ever discussed the contents of 22| A. Yes. I have never known him not to be of
23] Mr. Schwartz's will with you? 231 sound mind.
24| A. Only to the extent that I spoke with 24| Q. He was a sharp gentleman, wasn't he?
25§ Mr. Luszeck. 25| A. He's a smart guy, and he appeared smart, and
- Page 22 - Page 24
1| Q. Andwhatdidhe tell you about the will? 1| he appeared -- had verbal and -- -
2| A. Hetold me exactly what I said at the 2| Q. Youhad mentioned earlier that you had the —
3| beginning, which is there's a dispute over whether a 3| it was your impression that the Milton I. Schwartz
4| gift in the will should be made if the school hasn't 4| Hebrew Academy was to be located within or inside the
5| retained the name the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew 5| Adelson campus?
6| Academy, and that's the only portion of the will I have 6f A. Yes.
7| any knowledge of whatsoever. The only other knowledge | 7| Q. How did you develop that impression?
811 have of Mr. Schwartz's personal finances are probably 8l A. Well, to be begin with, the school was always
9| the things that came up in the Supreme Court decision 9| going to be named the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew
10| regarding his divorce. 10| Academy, and my understanding is the name of the whole
11| Q. From Abigail? 11 | ground area at some point in time became -- began to be
12| A. From Abigail, and I was aware over the years 12| called the Adelson campus.
13| that he was in the taxicab business and the hospital 13 1 think that's what's public knowledge, that
14| business. I was aware that he was partners with 14| it was called the Adelson campus, and I have a vague
15| Mr. Liatus. At some points in time in the taxicab 151 recollection of the building at the school having on
16| business because I have some litigation, actually, with 16| like the pediment or something the Milton I. Schwartz
17{ this firm here that was -- that I became aware of 17} Hebrew Academy. So that's why I would think it was the
18| regarding the daugh -- Mr. Ray Liatus's daughter. 18| Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy on the Adelson
19 MR. COUVILLIER: I think we were all involved |19} campus.
20| in that litigation. 20| Q. Were you aware that the school had changed its
21 MR. FREER: I wasn't involved in that one. 21| name to the Hebrew Academy in 19947
22 THE WITNESS: So I'm just saying, that's 22| A. Idon'trecall that. T might have been aware
23| general knowledge, no specific knowledge of 23| at the time because I probably was on the board at the
24| Mr. Schwartz's finances and no knowledge of the terms 24| time, but I don't recall that. My recollection is that
25| of his will other than what I have just told you. 25| I always -- when Michael started, which would have been
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Page 25 Page 27
1{ in kindergarten, so about 1987, '88, it was the Hebrew 1 CERTIFICATE OF WITNESS
2} Academy. Idon't recall it having any other name 2
31{ before being called the Hebrew Academy. 3|PAGE LINE CHANGE REASON
4] Q. And then, at one point, it changed to the 4
5| Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy? 5
6 A. Yes. That, Iremember. I know we did that. 6
7| Q. Doyou recall it changing back to just being 7
8| known as the Hebrew Academny? 8
91 A. No, Idon't recall that. That did not occur 9
10§ when I was on the board, and I don't -- I don't know 10
11| that it changed its name to this day. 11
12 MR. COUVILLIER: Mr. Schwartzer, I don't have 12
13| any further questions subject to the right to recall if 13
14 | the Court allows us to proceed forward and reopen 14 rREEEE
15| discovery. I thank you for your time. 15 I, LENARD E. SCHWARTZER, ESQ., witness herein, do
. hereby certify and declare under penalty of perjury the
16 EXAMINATION 16 | within and foregoing transcription to be my deposition
in said action; that I%xave reag, corrected, and do
17| BY MR. FREER: 17| hereby affix my signature to said deposition.
18{ Q. Ijusthave one follow-up question for you, 18
19 | Mr. Schwartzer. When you were talking about the 19
20| Adelson Educational Campus, the Milton I. Schwartz 20 ? -
. X Witness Date
21| Hebrew Academy being located on that campus, did any of {21
22| those discussions occur during your tenure as a board 22
23| member or was that after the fact? 23 ©
24} A, Ican'trecall if it wa -- I don't know -- I 24 '5
251 don't recall when the campus began to be called the 25 S
Page 26 Page 28 o
1| Adelson Educational Campus. I don't recall that coming 1 REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE
2| up when we changed the name of the school to the Milton | 2| STATE OF NEVADA )
s8
3| I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy, and I don't recall that 3| COUNTY O)F CLARK )
4| ever coming up when I was on the board. 4 I, Carla N. Bywaters, a duly certified court
reporter licensed in and for the State of Nevada, do
5[ Q. Okay. 5| hereby certify:
61 A. My vague recollection is that occurred after [ 6 That I reported the takiné of the d%%osition of .
the witness, LENARD E. SCHWARTZER, ESQ., at the time
7] was on the board. 7| and place aforesaid;
8| Q. Okay. 8|  That prior to bein§ examined, the witness was b
me duly sworn to tes 1ft§£t0 the truth, the whole truth,
S| A. It'samore recent event. 9| and nothing but the truth;
10 MR. FREER: I have no further questions. 10| That] thereafter transcribed my shorthand notes
into typewriting and that the typewritten transcript of
11 MR. COUVILLIER: Thank you. 11| said depositions a complete, true and accurate record
. of testimony provided by the witness at said time to
12 (Deposition was recessed at 1:46 p.m.) 12| the best of my ability.
13 13 I further certify (1) that I am not a relative,
employee or independent contractor of counsel of any of
14 14 | the pafties involved in said action; nor a person
financially interested in the action; nor do I have any
15 15 | other relal 10nsh1¥ with any of the parties or with
counsel of any of the parties involved in the action
16 16| that may reasonably cause my impartiahity to be
questioned; and (2) that transcript review pursuant to
17 17| NRCP 30(e) was not requested.
18 18 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand m
the Countg of Clark, State of Nevada, this 10th day of
19 19 February 2014.
20 20
21 21
22 22
23 23
Carla N. Bywafers, CCK8006
24 24
25 25
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1 happen at another location?

2 A. It happened at his home. We went to visit him

3 at his home.

4 Q. Okay. Was there anybody else there?

5 A. No, it was the three of us.

6 0. Okay.

7 A. My best recollection.

8 Q. Do you recall how long that meeting lasted?

9 A. It was a cordial meeting. He handed us a

10 million dollars.

11 Q. Okay.

12 Al It was long enough. S

O

13 Q. Okay. So at that meeting, then, you and §
14 Mrs. Lubin had gone there to discuss about a land

15 donation for, I presume, the Hebrew Academy?

16 A. Dr. Lubin and I went there. She had --

17 Dr. Lubin and I went there to meet him and to firm up

18 this agreement with the idea that property would be

19 purchased and a building would be built.

20 Q. Okay. And as a result of that meeting,

21 Milton, you said, gave a check for a million dollars?

22 A. Yes.

23 0. Okay.

24 A. Yes.

25 Q. And what was your understanding as to what
702-476-4500 OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 15
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1 that million dollars was to be used for?
2 A. It was to name the building after him in
3 perpetuity, and he was very specific about that.
4 Q. Okay. Would you mind describing to me how
5 that conversation went?
6 MR. KRAMETBAUER: If you remember.
7 MR. COUVILLIER: And, Jeff, let me --
8 Dr. Sabbath, I'm sorry, I need to interpose an
9 objection. TI'll object to the course of questioning
10 here as it is irrelevant, and it violates the Court's
11 November 12, 2013 order which limited discovery to only
12 the preliminary issue of whether the purpose and
13 condition of the bequest under Section 2.3 of
14 Mr. Milton I. Schwartz's will of 2004 was for the
15 school to be named the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew
16 Academy in perpetuity, which is also contained in the
17 Executor's First Claim for Relief, and any question
18 regarding any agreements or discussions or any source
19 that happened a decade before that will are not
20 relevant and a violation of the order.
21 BY MR. LUSZECK:
22 Q. We obviously disagree and believe that any
23 agreement between Milton and the school to have the
24 school named after him in perpetuity is relevant and is
25 within the scope of the order.
702-476-4500 OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 16
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1 MR. KRAMETBAUER: Can you go ahead and repeat
2 the question.
3 MR. LUSZECK: I can't, but she can.
4 (Record read.)
5 THE WITNESS: When you say "how the
6 conversation went," what do you mean by that?
7 BY MR. LUSZECK:
8 Q. What was discussed during the conversation?
9 Obviously, you testified that you and Dr. Lubin went
10 over there to talk about some type of land donation for
11 the Hebrew Academy, and my understanding is, is that
12 Milton made a donation for a million dollars at that S
O
N
13 time. S
14 A. Uh-huh.
15 Q. And there was some type of agreement, I
16 believe you testified to, that the school would be
17 named after him in perpetuity. So I'm just curious if
18 you recall any of the specific conversation that took
19 place during that meeting?
20 A. I don't --
21 MR. COUVILLIER: I'll object. Same objection
22 as to relevance --
23 THE WITNESS: Oh.
24 MR. COUVILLIER: -- and mischaracterization of
25 the witness's previous testimony. He's summarizing
702-476-4500 OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 17
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10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

what he believed your testimony was, but we'll let the

record reflect what your testimony was with respect to

his previous question.

THE WITNESS: I don't even remember what my

testimony was, which --

all down.

MR. KRAMETBAUER: That's okay.

MR. COUVILLIER: That's why she's taking it

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

MR. KRAMETBAUER: Is there a question pending?

MR. LUSZECK: There was, vyeah.

MR. KRAMETBAUER: Okay.

BY MR. LUSZECK:

Q.

okay, and we've gone over this a little bit earlier,

Let's just start from the beginning again,

and I apologize if this is confusing.

You previously testified that you and

Dr. Lubin had gone over to Milton's residence to

discuss a donation --

A.

Uh-huh, ves.

-- to the Hebrew Academy?
That is correct.

Is that correct?

That is correct, yeah.

What wasg discussed during that meeting?

002083
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1 MR. COUVILLIER: Same objection. You can
2 answer.
3 THE WITNESS: Okay. But I should answer?
4 MR. KRAMETBAUER: Yeah.
5 THE WITNESS: The specifics are I remember
6 that we -- it was a rather celebratory. We were -- he
7 handed us the check, and that's what I remember.
8 BY MR. LUSZECK:
9 Q. Okay.
10 A. It was celebratory.
11 Q. Okay. And when he handed you the check, was
12 there an agreement that the Hebrew Academy would be S
O
13 named the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy in §
14 perpetuity?
15 MR. COUVILLIER: Objection. Same objection.
16 It violates the purpose and scope of the Court's
17 November 1i2th order.
18 MR. KRAMETBAUER: You can answer the question.
19 THE WITNESS: I know there was a document, and
20 I recall that it was presented as a legal document. I
21 do not recall whether it was at that meeting or some
22 other time, but I recall the legal document which uses
23 the phrase "in perpetuity" for the naming of the Milton
24 I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy.
25 | A\
702-476-4500 OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 19
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1 BY MR. LUSZECK:
2 Q. Okay. Was it your understanding that the
3 Hebrew Academy was going to retain the name of the
4 Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy in perpetuity?
5 MR. COUVILLIER: Same objection. Asked and
6 answered.
7 THE WITNESS: Should I go ahead and answer.
8 MR. KRAMETBAUER: You can answer the question.
9 THE WITNESS: It was, very strongly. It was
10 very important to Milton. I do remember that.
i1 BY MR. LUSZECK:
12 Q. Okay. How do you know that it was important L
O
13 to Milton? o
S
14 A. He expressed it, and I remember him saying
15 make sure that it says in perpetuity, and it -- so that
16 is how I know it was important to him.
17 Q. Okay. Do you recall how many times -- sorry.
18 Will you repeat her response back?
19 (Record read.)
20 0. Do you know approx -- how many times did he
21 express that to you?
22 A. I do not recall how many times.
23 Q. Okay. How would you describe your
24 relationship with Milton? Did you consider him a
25 friend? Was he kind of a business associate?
702-476-4500 OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 20
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1 A. Just give me a moment.
2 Milton was an important community leader, and
3 I was a member of the community.
4 Q. Okay. When was the last time that you spoke
5 with him?
6 A. He called me a few years ago, five years ago
7 maybe, not -- I'm not sure of the exact, called the
8 school and a memo was put on my door at school, and
9 there were -- and sometime passed before I got that
10 note for whatever reason -- it was a Spring Break -- I
11 do not remember.
12 And I did call him back and he said, "Roberta, §
13 do you have anything that's related to the in §
14 perpetuity issue, the naming of the school?"™ I do not
15 remember the exact words, but I understood that to be
16 his request. And I said, "No, Milton, I don't, and I
17 remember him specifically saying, "Oh, that -- I -- I
18 have it or I'm on top of it or -- or it doesn't
19 matter" -- the fact that I didn't have anything --
20 "goodbye." So it was a very short conversation.
21 Q. Okay. Did he indicate to you why he was
22 looking for documentation with that language on it?
23 A. No, he did not.
24 Q. Okay.
25 A No, he did not.
702-476-4500 OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 21
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1 Q. Did you have a discussion with him at that
2 time with respect to the naming rights of the school
3 and whether the school was going to retain the name of
4 Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy in perpetuity?
5 A. No, I did not.
6 MR. COUVILLIER: Same objection. It violates
7 the Court's order. And, Jeff, if I may interpose.
8 What was the time that we're talking about, maybe in
9 terms of years, that this discussion took place; what
10 year was 1it?
11 THE WITNESS: I had said about five years ago,
12 give or take a couple of years. §
13 MR. COUVILLIER: Thank you. §
14 THE WITNESS: I don't know when he‘—— when did
15 he pass away?
16 MR. SCHWARTZ: "7 -- '07.
17 THE WITNESS: '7, so it was longer than five,
18 obviously.
19 MR. KRAMETBAUER: That's okay.
20 THE WITNESS: Okay.
21 BY MR. LUSZECK:
22 Q. Were you still employed by the Hebrew Academy
23 at that time?
24 A. No.
25 Q. Okay. Were you on the board or serving in any
702-476-4500 OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 22
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1 type of capacity with the school at that time?
2 A. No, I was not.
3 Q. Do you know why he called you requesting that
4 information? |
5 A. I thought I answered that. I really didn't
6 know. He simply called asking if I had a document --
7 that document.
8 Q. Okay. Between the time -- strike that.
9 You previously testified that you served as
10 the Interim Director of the school from 1996 to 19997
11 A. I think I said approximately '96 to '99.
12 0. Fair enough. §
N
13 A, I'm sorry. 8
14 0. No. I understand this is a long time ago.
15 A. Thank you.
16 Q. I understand completely. Between 1999 andA
17 that phone call which occurred approximately five years
18 ago that you just testified to --
19 A. Or longer, apparently.
20 Q. Okay.
21 A. Thank you.
22 Q. How many conversations, if any, did you have
23 with Morton between that time between --
24 A. With who?
25 0. -- between approximately 1999 --
702-476-4500 OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 23
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1 MR. SCHWARTZ: Milton.
2 BY MR. LUSZECK:
3 Q. -- or Milton -- between approximately 1999 and
4 approximately five years ago, how many conversations,
5 if any, did you have with Milton during that timeframe?
6 A. Zero.
7 Q. Okay. How long did you serve on the board of
8 directors of the Hebrew Academy?
9 A. That's a good one. This is embarrassing, but
10 I don't remember how many years I served on. My
11 husband was one of the founding board members when the
12 school began. Our son is 38. He started kindergarten, S
O
13 what, 35 years ago, and somewhere along the way, I also g
14 became a board member. Our three children were in the
15 school.
16 Q. Okay .
17 A. So I cannot give you a specific year when I
18 became a board member.
19 0. Okay. Are you aware of any -- are you aware
20 at some point in time the Hebrew Academy changed its
21 name to the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy?
22 A. Yes.
23 Q. Okay. Do you know approximately when that
24 change occurred?
25 A. I do not remember a year.
702-476-4500 OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 24
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1 Q. Okay. %
2 A. I cannot recall a year. %
3 MR. LUSZECK: Can you give her Exhibit 2? %
4 BY MR. LUSZECK: .
5 Q. Dr. Sabbath, the court reporter has handed you
6 what has previously been marked as Exhibit 2, and you
7 can definitely take as much time as you need to review
8 the document. But my question is going to be to you:
9 Have you ever seen that document before? And, by all
10 means, take as much as time as you need to review it.
11 Have you seen that Exhibit 2 before, Dr. Sabbath?
12 A. I don't recall. 8
S
13 Q. Okay. Exhibit 2 purports to be a Minutes of S
14 the Board of Trustees for a Special Meetingrdated
15 August 14th, 1989.
16 A. Right.
17 Q. I realize this was a long time ago.
18 A. Right.
19 Q. However, do you recall if you were present for
20 this meeting?
21 A. I do not recall being there. I see it says I
22 made a motion, but I don't remember --
23 Q. Okay.
24 A. -~ being there.
25 Q. If you go to the third paragraph which starts
702-476-4500 OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 25
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Roberta Sabbath, Ph.D. In the Matter of the Estate of Milton I. Schwartz

1 with George Rudiak -- I don't know if I'm pronouncing

2 that correctly?

3 A Yes, you are.

4 0. It says, "George Rudiak moved that the Board

5 accepts, with thanks, the donations from Milton

6 Schwartz, George and Gertrude Rudiak, and Paul Sogg. A

7 letter should be written to Milton Schwartz stating the

8 Academy will be named after him."

9 A. Uh-huh.

10 Q. Do you recall why it was proposed that a

11 letter be written to Milton to name the academy after
12 him?

13 MR. COUVILLIER: Objection. This violates the
i4 Court's November order, and it's irrelevant to Milton
15 Schwartz's will which occurred 16 years after this

16 purported meeting. It has nothing to do with his will.
17 MR. KRAMETBAUER: Do you remember the

18 question?

19 THE WITNESS: Would you say the question

20 again?

21 MR. LUSZECK: Would you repeat that?

22 (Record read.)

23 THE WITNESS: No, I do not recall.

24 BY MR. LUSZECK:

25 0. How long was the name change supposed to last
702-476-4500 OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 26
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Roberta Sabbath, Ph.D.

002092

In the Matter of the Estate of Milton 1. Schwartz

1 for?
2 MR. COUVILLIER: Same objection.
3 BY MR. LUSZECK:
4 Q. And by the name change, I mean from the Hebrew
5 Academy to the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy?
6 MR. COUVILLIER: Same objection.
7 THE WITNESS: When you say "supposed to," what
8 does "supposed to" mean?
9 BY MR. LUSZECK:
10 Q. Was it your understanding that it was going to
11 be in perpetuity? Was it your understanding that the
12 name change was supposed to be for a temporary period §
13 of time? §
14 MR. COUVILLIER: Same objection. Leading the
15 witness.
16 MR. KRAMETBAUER: You can answer.
17 THE WITNESS: My understanding was that it was
18 for in perpetuity.
19 BY MR. LUSZECK:
20 Q. Do you recall any specific conversations
21 during the board meeting or with any other members of
22 the board of trustee around this time, August 14th,
23 1989, regarding that topic?
24 MR. COUVILLIER: Same objection.
25 MR. KRAMETBAUER: You can answer the question.
702-476-4500 OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC ' Page: 27
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Neville Pokroy, M.D.

002095

In the Matter of the Estate of Milton 1. Schwartz

1 DISTRICT COURT
2 COUNTY OF CLARK, NEVADA
3
4 In the Matter of the Estate of ) Case No. P061300
5 MILTON I. SCHWARTZ, ; Dept. No.: 26/Probate
6 Deceased. ;
)
7
8
9
10
11
12 0
S
13 S
o
14
15 DEPOSITION OF NEVILLE POKROY, M.D.
16 Taken on Tuesday, February 25, 2014
17 At 11:14 a.m.
18 At 9060 West Cheyenne Avenue
19 Las Vegas, Nevada
20
21
22
23
24 Reported by: Carla N. Bywaters, CCR 866
25 Job No. 8969
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Neville Pokroy, M.D.

002096

In the Matter of the Estate of Milton I. Schwartz

1 A. I want to correct myself. My wife knows that
2 I am here.
3 Q. Okay. I'm not going to ask you about any
4 conversations that you had with your wife. Other than
5 your wife, anybody else?
6 A. No.
7 Q. Spoken to anybody other than wife about the
8 litigation?
9 AL No.
10 Q. Okay. Or concerning the naming rights issues?
11 A. No.
12 MR. FREER: Would you please mark that as §
13 Exhibit No. 2. §
14 (Exhibit No. 2 was marked for
15 identification.)
16 / BY MR. FREER:
17 0. Doctor, I've handed you a document labeled
18 Hebrew Academy Minutes of the Board of Trustees,
19 Special Meeting, August 14th, 1989, Bates number
20 EST-00075, and ask you to take a moment to read that
21 document and let me know when you're ready.
22 A. I have read it.
23 Q. Okay. Does that document refresh your
24 recollection at all concerning when you may have served
25 on the board?
702-476-4500 OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 10
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Neville Pokroy, M.D.

002097 -

In the Matter of the Estate of Milton 1. Schwartz

1 A. Yes, it does, indeed.

2 Q. Okay. And what is your best recollection?

3 A. My recollection here -- this is dated 1989 --

4 so, in fact, my time on the board was further past than

5 I had recalled by -- I was out about five or six years.

6 Q. Okay. Do you recall relative to this document

7 approximately how long you had been serving on the

8 board at that point in time?

9 A. Approximately two years.

10 Q. Okay. So you started on the board around

11 19877

12 A. I believe so. §
N

13 0. And working forward on that eight-year period, 3

14 then, you were on the board until approximately 19957

15 A. Yes. I was on the board at the previous

16 location and was instrumental in helping to move the

17 school to the new location.

18 0. Okay. How did you come to be involved with

19 the school?

20 A. I've served on many of the local Jewish and

21 non-Jewish philanthropic organizations and non-profits

22 and believed in the concept of this particular

23 institution, and I had a son in the school prior to

24 this, and at the time I had another son and a daughter

25 in the school.

702-476-4500 OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 11
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Neville Pokroy, M.D.

002098

In the Matter of the Estate of Milton I. Schwartz

1 Q. Okay. Now, it looks like three lines down
2 from identifying those who were present at the meeting
3 is Neville Pokroy. Do you recall being present at this
4 particular meeting?
5 A. Yes.
6 Q. Do you recall what was being discussed at that
7 particular meeting?
8 MR. COUVILLIER: Doctor, before you answer the
9 question, I'm going to assert an objection on the
10 record. I think this is beyond the scope of allowable
11 discovery in this Phase 1.
12 The Court had clarified that the purpose of §
13 discovery in this Phase 1 was to determine whether the §
14 purpose and condition of the bequest under Section 2.3
15 of Milton Schwartz's will dated February of 2005 was
16 whether there was a condition that the school be named
17 the Milton I. Schwartz Academy in perpetuity, which is
18 also the same claim raised in the executor's petition
19 for relief.
20 This document and this line of questioning
21 precedes the will, has no relevance to the will,
22 precedes the will by over a decade, about 15 years, and
23 I object to this line of questioning.
24 MR. FREER: I will just put on the record, the
25 basis for the questions are that Milton I. Schwartz was
702-476-4500 OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 12
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Neville Pokroy, M.D.

002099

In the Matter of the Estate of Milton I. Schwartz

1 present at this meeting and that this line of
2 questioning is relevant as to ascertaining what Milton
3 I. Schwartz's knowledge and understanding was
4 concerning the naming of the school at or about the
5 time he executed the same, and this line of questioning
6 establishes a historical baseline for what Mr. Schwartz
7 understood.
8 MR. COUVILLIER: I think the Court was clear
9 on it, and I'm not going to get into a debate with
10 Mr. Freer. But I do object to it, and I hope we don't
11 spend a lot of line of questioning on the historical
12 aspects, Alan, just, you know, to stick with the will %
N
13 that happenedAin 2005 and Mr. Schwartz's intentions at S
14 the time that he executed the will, which I think is
15 what the Court is looking for.
16 BY MR. FREER:
17 Q. That being said, Mr. Pokroy, at the meeting,
18 was there any discussion about naming the Hebrew
19 Academy after Milton I. Schwartz?
20 A. My recollection, that there was a discussion
21 at that particular moment in time, I don't remember
22 details. But certainly the discussion took place, and
23 indeed, we followed it up by naming the school after
24 Milton I. Schwartz.
25 Q. Do you recall having any discussions with
702-476-4500 OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 13
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Neville Pokroy, M.D.
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In the Matter of the Estate of Milton I. Schwartz

1 Milton at or about that time that the school was going
2 to be named after him?
3 AL Yes.
4 Q. And what is your recollection of those
5 discussions?
6 A. We had a hand in soliciting Mr. Schwartz to
7 help us, because we were given an eviction notice from
8 our previous housing at Beth Sholom. I think they gave
9 us about a year because they needed the space, so we
10 had to find another location. We needed funds. The
11 land in Summerlin had been negotiated by the principal
12 and others, and so we were looking for financial help. §
13 And my wife and I spoke to Milton to encourage him to §
14 be involved, and he said yes.
15 Q. Did Milton ask at that -- did Milton ask about
16 naming the school after him?
17 AL When we solicited him, no, but it clearly was
18 discussed at subsequent meetings, and his name was on
19 the school thereafter.
20 MR. FREER: We'll mark that as Exhibit No. 3.
21 (Exhibit No. 3 was marked for
22 identification.)
23 BY MR. FREER:
24 Q. Now, before we move to Exhibit No. 3, I'm
25 going to draw your attention down to the third
702-476-4500 OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 14
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FIESR LA Para swasuvarnge  CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT OF THE | - -~
U“:}*»~¢hLA~T ARTICLES QF INCORPORATION OF
LI THE HEBREW ACADEMY fyp /9 2 5 Plf "y
A Nevada Non-Profit Corporatlon 37105l
0 _
Gh-‘. Fer 3l l"‘!“-\v
The under51gned being the President and Se%ﬁ?tary of the
1 ‘ a

Board of Trustees of THE HEBREW ACADEMY, hereby certify as
follows:

1. The original Articles of Incorporation were filed in
the Office of the Secretary of State for thé State cf.ﬂeqada on
the 27th day of February, 1980. '

2. That on the l4th day of August, 1988, at a sﬁedial
meeting of the Board of Trustees of said corporation, éuly called
and convened, at which a quorum for the transaction of business
was present, notice of said meeting having been previously wailved
by the Trustees of said corporation in writing, the following
resolution was adopted by the Board of Trustees of said corpora-
tion:

RESOLVED: That it is advisable and in
the best interests of this Corporation that
its Articles of Incorporation be amended by
changing the language of Article I of said
Articles to read as follows:
ARTICLE I
This corporation shall be known as:
THE MILTON I. SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, the President and

Secretary of the Board of Trustees of THE HEBREW ACADEMY, a

Iy
17/
/17

ACA02079
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Nevada non-profit corporation, have executed and acknowledged

these presents this }4$h day of August, 1980, o

' RS

b

MILTON CHWARTZ Presid nt
/""\".:sfk

LENARD E SCHWARTZER, Secrefary

STATE OF NEVADA )
S&1

COUNTY OF CLARK )
. +h %
On this S )~ day of August, 1990, personally appeared-befo;e
me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, MILTON I.
SCHWARTZ, known to me to be the President, and who is authqrized

to execute this instrument on behalf of THE HEBREW ACADEMY, a

002103

Nevada non-profit corporation. He acknowledged to me that he
executed this instrument and, upon oath, did depose and say that
he is the officer of the corporation as designated above, that he
is acquainted with the seal of the corporation, and that the seal
affixed to this instrument is the corporate seal of the Eorpora-
tion; that the signatures on this instrument were made by the
officers of the corporation as indicated after their signatﬁres;
that the corporation executed this instrument freely andAVQlunu
tarily, and for the uses and purposes therein mentioned.: |
WITHESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL,

Kb mn O, Ha e md

NOTARY PUBLIC

Foitment Rm&é in Tl Cocnty
l'y Kepuntmect Eures Rufy 30 1932

g T T Y
e e e

AC402080
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me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, LENARD ﬁ;”’ﬁﬁ” "

": STATE OF NEVADA )

88

.. COUNTY OF CLARK ' )
.on-this _/9 day of August, 1990, personallﬁ'appea;éd.béfore"

1SCHWARTZER known to me to be the Secretary, and who 1s author— 

he is the offlcer of the corporation as d851gnated above, that her

- a Nevada non- proflt corporation. He acknowledged to me that he

executed this instrument and, wupon ocath, d4did depose and say that

o
.....

. is acqualnted with the seal of the corporatlon, and that the seal o

:jafflxed to thls 1nstrument is the corporate seal of the corpora—'

tlon, that the 51gnatures on thls instrument. were made by the

.‘offlcers of the corporatlon as indicated after their SLgnatures,

that the~corporation'executed this 1nstrument*freely a@d‘volun% '

.tarily[ and for the uses and purposes therein,mentionédf

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL

. il '.« )
/-,.\L_/~;,.‘ ey ’ ), '_;,

{ ¥ LL./ ’7} ke 4\1

"NOTARY PUBLIC N oY

1INBA DAUGHERTY

Notary Public - Nevada
Clark County

My lwl;e:p. Apr. 2, 1994

AC402081

‘ized to execute this instrument on behalf of THE - HEBREW ACADEMY,,[;}fl

3o, "
1.
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1] LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL MARKS
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DANIEL MARKS, ESQ., NSB #002003 TR
302 East Carson, #702 A
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 D

(702) 386-0536 ~ FAX: (702) 386-6812 ec ¢f 4 54

Attorney for Plaintiff Py *g?
e
.\,q';\‘
bog \[ ,?A R
DISTRICT COQURT '
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
The Board of Directors of
the MILTON I. SCHWARTZ
HEBREW ACADEMY,
Plaintiff,
,.’ > s / I/? -7
Vs, Case No. DR ;Aﬁ:r
Dept. No.

The Second Board of Directors of Docket

The MILTON I. SCHWARTZ HEBREW
ACADEMY; IRA STERNBERG; GERI
RENTCHLER; ROBERT DISMAN;
ROBERTA SABBATH,; RICHARD ELLIS;
SCOTT HIGGINSON,; BOB RAKITA;
TAMARA LUBIN, and ROES I-X,

ARBITRATION EXEMPTION:
DECLARATORY JUDGMENT

Defendants.

COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

COMES NOW the Plaintiff, through its Counsel, DANIEL MARKS,
ES¢g., and for a complaint against Defendants, alleges as follows:

1. That the Plaintiff, The Board of Directors of the MILTON
1. SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY, (hereinafter ACADEMY) are residents of Clark
County, Nevada.

2. That the Defendants referred to as The Second Board of
Directors of the ACADEMY are residents of Clark County, Nevada.

3. That the ACADEMY 1s a non-profit school organized and

existing under the laws of the State of Nevada.

/T

AW . FFICE OF DANIEL PRARKS
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18

19

20

21

22;:

23

24

25

26
27 .

28

4. That the names and capacities of Defendants ROES I through
X are unknown to Plaintiff at the time of the filing of this Complaint,
and Plaintiff therefore sues said Defendants by such fictitious names.
At such time that the Plaintiff determines the true identities of
Defendants ROE I through X, Plaintiff will amend this Complaint to set
forth the proper names of those Defendants.

5. That on or about the 18th day of June, 1992, the above

named Defendants attempted to elect a Second Board of Directors to take

over the power from the duly elected Board. These Members are as
follows:

President: Ira Sternberqg

Secretary: Gerl Rentchler

Mew Trustees: Robert Disman

Roberta Sabbath

Trustees: Richard Ellis
Scott Higginson
Bob Rakita

Schoeol Head: Tamar Lubiln

6. That pursuant to Nevada law and Robert's Rules of Order,
Plainti1ff is the duly elected Board of Directors of the ACADEMY.

7. That on the 5th day of November, 1992, the Plaintiff, The
Board of Directors of the ACADEMY, held a special meeting and authorized
the filing of this Complaint.

8. That Plaintiff seeks a declaratory judgment declaring it
to be the Board of Trustees of the ACADEMY.

9. That pursuant to NRCP 57, Plaintiff is entitled to a
declaratory judgment because the confusion and illegal actions of the
Second Board have threatened to cause irreparable injury to the

ACADEMY.

0021
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20
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10. That there is a substantial risk that the actions of the
Defendants will cause irreparable injury to the ACADEMY, unless such
actions are preliminarily and permanently enjoined by this Court. The
Plaintiff is without an adequate remedy at law to obtain this relief.

11. That because of the actions~ of the Defendants, the
Plaintiff has been required to retain Counsel to bring this action.
Plaintiff should be awarded attorney's fees plus all costs incurred
herein.

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff, the Board of Directors of the MILTON
1. SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY, pray for the following equitable reliet:

(a) A preliminary injunction, enjoining The

Second Board of Directors of the ACADEMY, 1IRA

STERNBERG, GERI RENTCHLER, ROBERT DISMAN, <OBERTA

SABBATH, RICHARD ELLIS, SCOTT HIGGINSON, BOB

RAKITA, TAMAR LUBIN, and ROES I through X, from

taking any further actions regarding the ACADEMY

without the prior approval of the Board of

Directors of the ACADEMY, or this Court;

(b} A permanent injunction, enjoining The

Second Board of Directors of the ACADEMY,

IRA STERNBERG, GERI RENTCHLER, ROBERT DISMAN,

ROBERTA SABBATH, RICHARD ELLIS, SCOTT HIGGINSON,

BOB RAKITA, TAMAR LUBIN, and ROES I through X, from

taking any further actions regarding the ACADEMY

without the pricr approval of the Board of

Directors of the ACADEMY, or this Court;

(c) A declaratory judgment declaring The

Board of Directors of the ACADEMY to be the

LAV FFICE OF DANIEL MARKS
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LAW OFFICE OF DAMIEL MARKS
302 Fast Carson, Suite 702 4
Mevada 89107 (702) 3860536

I na Vormx

002109

® ¢

legitimate Board of Directors of the ACADEMY;

(d) The Board of Directors of the ACADEMY's
attorney's fees and costs necessary to prosecute
this action;

{e) Any other relief which this Court deems
just and equitable.

DATED this  day of December, 1992.

LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL MARKS

VA

By

DANIEL MARKS, NSB #002003
302 East Carson, Suite 702
Las Vegas, NV 89101
Attorney for Plaintiff
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L I e T e ¢ GRLEARNE —at

F‘LED Filing Fee $25.00
Wﬁn—: OF AMENDMENT OF ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
ST ATE . )
(aftexr organlza:ional meeting}
- 07 19 884
1023 ~$0 _The Milton I. Sohvarts Hekces. Acadeny
CurLA LA SIERETARY OF 8IATE Name of Corparation
”: undersigned..... IIa.. .5 IO 04 ang
He © e uncerzen Ravid-SLer Prasiderd or Vice Prasident (0T Ch.x:l.rman)
Robert Rakita of Tha . Milton.I H
Secrotary or Assistant Sceratary Nnmeo(r:mp‘g«at%g Gbi‘-aw—-aeademy
do hareby certify:

“Fhat the Beard of Directors of sald corporation al a meeting duly conveued, held on thew. 258k

day of_..Allgust ., 1994.., adopted a resplution to amend the original articles as loliows:

Arlicle__.. I __is hereby amended to read as tollows; .

This corporation shall be known as:

THE HEBREW ACADEMY

L4l

RFfFIvED
SEP 291094 | ()
SECnIE: v vy singy, . - _
777
State of MEvisoe
County o, ok 153‘

fo)
Qn M‘/‘wﬁw f3pe 1799 , personatly appeared betore me, a Notary Publie,
LR D Sterebote _wnd MobicC  Roliter  whoacknowlsdged

Hames of He pparing and Skining Doc
that they executed the above instrument.
TTT—— Fegiary [ b
oo TENRY BOTHMANH "™ Fastors o Hotary
) maul;ukg&h ;Am%uq

My epol. exp, bhat. 25, 1083

32919

EST-00237
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LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL MARKS

DANIEL MARKS, ESQ., NSB #002003

KEITH M. LYONS JR., ESQ., NSB #004682
302 East Carson, #702

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

(702) 386-0536 - FAX: (702) 386-6812
Attorney for Plaintiff

FILED

Jn 26 10 5y M4 5y

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY,

MILTON SCHWARTZ, President

of the Board of Directors of

the HEBREW ACADEMY, on behalf of
the Board of Directors of the
HEBREW ACADEMY,

Plaintiffs,

vs.

The Second Board of Directors of
the HEBREW ACADEMY, IRA STEINBERG,
GERI RENTCHLER, ROBERT DISMAN,
ROBERTA SABBATH, RICHARD ELLIS,
SCOTT HIGGINSON, BOB RAKITA,

TAMAR -LUBIN, and ROES I-X,

Defendants.

THE MILTON 1. SCHWARTZ
HEBREW ACADEMY,

Counterclaimant/
Third-Party Plaintiff,

vs.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS of the

MILTON I. SCHWARTZ HEBREW

ACADEMY, (the Plaintiff entity)
Counterdefendants,

and

MILTON I. SCHWARTZ, PHYLLIS

DARLING, ABIGAIL RICHLIN,
MICHAEL NOVICK and ED GOLDMAN,

Third-Party Defendants.

/

LAY OFFICE OF DANIEL MARKS CE-02
302 East Carson, Suite 702

uanu,Mw¢>ENM(H2)§ﬁGE627 w94

NEVADA

Case No. A 314725
Dept. No. vJ
Docket vJ

STIPULATION AND ORDER FOR
DISMISSAI, WITH PREJUDICE

002113
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Plaintiff, MILTON SCHWARTZ, President of the Board

0o
<

of the HEBREW ACADEMY; Counterdefendant, the BGCARD OF DIRECTORS of the

MILTON I. SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY, (the Plaintiff entity); and Third-

Party Defendants, MILTON I. SCHWARTZ, PHYLLIS DARLING, ABIGAIL RICHLIN,
MICHAEL NOVICK and ED GOLDMAN by and through their attorney, DANIEL
MARKS, ESQ., and Defendant, The Second Board of Directors of the HEBREW
ACADEMY, IRA STEINBERG, GERI RENTCHLER, ROBERT DISMAN, ROBERTA SABBATH,

RICHARD ELLIS,K SCOTT HIGGINSON, BOB RAKITA, and TAMAR LUBIN and

| Counterclaimant/Third Party Plaintiff, THE MILTON 1. SCHWARTZ HEBREW

ACADEMY, by and through its attorneys, SCOTT MICHAEL CANTOR, ESQ., and

hereby stipulate as follows:

1. That this Complaint and Counterclaim be dismissed with

prejudice;

2., That each party shall bear its own costs and attorney's

iees;

3., The hearing currently set in front -~f the Discovery

~N 0NN NN NN NN S N~
NN 0N NN N NN NN NS

LAV OFFICE OF DANIEL MARKS
302 East Carson, Suite 702

Las Vegas, Mevada 89101 (702) 386-0536

002114
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Commissioner on the 26th day of July, 1994, at 9:45 A.M., shall be

vacated.

LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL MARKS

ol
ﬁﬁN%EL‘MARxs "ESQ., NSB #002003
302 East Carson, Suite 702
Las Vegas, NV 89101
Attorney for Plaintiff

Mmm:gu&lexk%qL%
" ,

RDER D

SCOTT MICHAEL CANTOR, ESQ.

302 East Carson Ave., Ste. 400.

Las Vegas, NV 89101
Attorney for

o //’TZL/] et

WITH PR

Pursuant to the foregoing Stipulation and good cause appearing

therefore,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the above-entitled action be and the

same is hereby dismissed with prejudice, with each party to bear its own

attorneys fees and costs.

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED that the hearing currently set in front

nf the Discovery Commissioner on the 26th day of July, 1994, at 9:45

A.M., is vacated.

/1

DATED AND DONE this oXol day 9f July,, 994

S

Submitted by:

LAW OFFICE,OFiDANIEL MARKS

. ///

DAgIEL M "“£50., N&B £002003
302 East Carson, Suite 702

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Attorney for Plaintiff

LAV OFFICE OF DANIEL RARKS
302 East Carson, Suite 702
Las vegas, Nevada 89101 (TO2) 3860536

%}@TRICT COURT JUDGE
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THE HEBREW ACADEMY
9700 Weet Hilppirits Road
Los Vegas, Nevada BE13S
Tal; (707} 266-4500 Faw (T02) 255-7232

Dr. fobara Babbath
Schoot Head

May 23, .1_996.

Miltton I, Schwartz
2120 8iYver Ave,
Ias Vegas, WY 82102

Demar BMitton:

on bohalf of myself, Prasident, Geri Remtchler and the entlire
Board ¢f Directors of the Milton L. Schwartz Hebrew Academy, I na
plessed to inform you thut we will immediztely conmence action to
implemant as soon as practicable tha fullow:ng.

X POTE
FMitton 1. Schvartz “Hebrew Ac*aaamy w

{3} .Restove -the marker in front of the HRebrew
cademy- Adentifying it as the ®Milton 1.
clwartz Hebrew Acmiemy e

(4} <Change the Hebrew Academy # Tormal statmm;ry
to ivcivde its full name, the “FRMIYEORNTN.
sBchwayts Hebraw Academy™,. In a Form consistetit
Wwith this Jetberbend and include our full nome

on future bhrochutes.

(8} Wbere practicable, display the full name of
the Hebrew Academy. In print advertising of
safficiant slee, the fnll pawe of the school
will be displayed in a desigh consistant with
the letterhead. where impractical by reasen
of wize, utilization of volse nedis, inforwmal
correspondances, lnformal meworanda, =tvw., and
in snswering the telephope, tha school will
utilize the ghorthand version of its nawma ag
Habhrew Aaadeny or sinply, itz logoe. You can
rest assured it is the intention of the Schoal
Head and the school’s OFficers and Directors
that thae utilization of the school’s full name
will be congsistent with an intent to recognize
ami honor your coptributlon and assistance.

.Aummntm Nmﬂm Asaaalsiion of Sobzte a8 Cellages §
Matroer: Nitiontd Assnciation dmmw

PR 1 88E 1i01g 1 '-“5': FOReEE

toares: Tatn af Hewsde Depptrmont of Fcwiing

NG
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The rasteoralios of the pame of the “Milteon T. Schwarhz Hebraw
Avademy™  lLas  been  taken - as wmallér  of  "menschlackeit®  in
acknowledgerent of your gonfribmtion apd assistance to the Asadenmy;
your continved comitnent to Jewish education yeflacted by the
eatahlishment of the “Jewish Community Day School®™  and last bat
not Ieast, your racent action am a man of "ahaloewm.® ’

Your invitation to me e naw Schoul Head Lo meet and resolve |

differencas and to work with me and the Boarxd to bring rshalom® to

our Jewish community will ssrve as & much peadsd example of Jawish

eadershin,

Plf‘aﬂﬂ acospt onr assurance and compltuenl that we welcome
with joy the establishmant of the Jewish Community Day School which
will provide Jewizh parents a choice Letwsen thﬁ Jowish education
pffersd by tha "Miltom T. schwartz Hehrew Academy? during normal
s=hnal hc&urs and .a echool compogsed entirely of students with a
Jewish pavent and meany more houprs of Jewish edocation than oo be
affarad in & normal schonl day.

You have our pledyge thal we are committed to wake the "MiiLon
I. schwartz Hebiew Acvademy” a source af honor and & placea of Jewish
learning of which you and your femily will always justly be able to
take great pride.

Plaase ﬁf’r‘P[ﬂ‘ ong wishes Fox you and ysux !‘mm]y Lo have 1ang,
ealthy, prosperoie ar ami joyou& lives.

YEry r’HT ly y&u{
\ A \ ”I&‘&H(’ v ¥

LY

Dr. Ro ,rta S&b&e}h

© Sohnel Read
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Dear Friends:

Welcome! It is our pleasure and privilege to chair The Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy Gala. Itis an
inspiration to see so many in the community supporting not only The M.I.S. Hebrew Academy, but also The
Adelson School. At last year’s event, we presented plans to create a world class high school adjacent to The
M.LS. Hebrew Academy. We have now taken all key steps towards reaching this important goal. We are
pleased to announce that the first graduating class of The Adelson School will begin their studies this fall!

Of course, a world class school needs more than superlative facilities, and it is here that head of school Paul
Schiffman has met our extremely ambitious expectations: he searched the country and hired the best and the
brightest educators. Paul 1s fond of saying that there is also a simple final criterion that each teacher must meet:
“They must love children.” Education, after all, is about guiding and nurturing children as well as educating
and preparing them for the future. Many wonderful, extraordinary department heads for The Adelson School
have already begun working full time along with our new Adelson School principal, Paul Mahoney (PhD
UCLA). As our 9% and 10%* grade classes begin their studies this August, we know that these children are
beginning an exceptional journey at a school where a passion for learming, respect for Jewish mores, and a truly
world class education coincide.

Many people have worked hard to create the success of our current Pre-K through 8® grade program and the
beginning of our new high school. Tonight, we come together both to honor our “Pursuit of Excellence”
Award winner and to say thank you to our wonderful teaching and administrative staff, our head of school,
Paul Schiffman, our campus project director, Rhonda Glyman, our Board of Trustees, and to all the committed

- parents who have volunteered their time, intelligence and experience to make our school the very best it can be.

Tonight we honor the visionary behind The Hebrew Academy, Milton 1. Schwartz. It is our privilege to honor
Milton with the “Dr. Miriam and Sheidon G. Adelson In Pursuit of Excellence Award.” With vision and
foresight, Mr. Schwartz and a few others generously answered the need in Las Vegas for a strong secular and
Judaic educational institution for elementary school-aged children by creating and continuously supporting

The Milton L. Schwartz Hebrew Academy. The school, established in 1988, has since expanded to include
preschool through 8% grade. Mr. Schwartz, an entrepreneur extraordinaire, sits on the Board of Trustees and
has generously supported The M.LS. Hebrew Academy’s continued growth. We are truly pleased to bestow this
award upon such a visionary leader of our community. h

. Enjoy the Evening! /
Nﬂ\& §§g@t\ o |
- Dr. Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson Toni andWigctor Chaltiel
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The Adelson School is more
than classes and lessons, more than teachers and books,
it is an Education for Life.

Located adjacent to The M.I.S. Hebrew Academy, The Adelson School opens in the fall of 2007
for grades 9 and 10, with grade 11 opening the fall of 2008 and grade 12 in 2008.

With a major gift, Dr. Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson have made possible a world-class high
school for Las Vegas: The Adelson School provides students with the opportunrty to continue

| their Jewish education and to receive an education for life. The mission is simple: to raise up

- 0 new generation of Jewish leaders for whom Jewish values and tradition

' shape and guide their vision, and for whom knowledge creates possibilities
for.moral action, good character and shalom.

Toklng a holistic opprooch to learning, the educational emphasis academically stimulates each
student while providing emotional and physical support along'the way. Students will see the
relationship of all knowledge to life, to moral vision and tg'the creation of culture, while tearning
invaluableilessonis in critical thinking and ethics rooted in Jewish heritage.

Dr. Mriam & Sheldon G.
Instilled with an education for life, students of The Adelson School will find connections to their past ADE LSON
and a path to their future. They will go on with unparalleled preparation for higher education. SCHOOL

9700 West Hillpointe Road, Las Vegas, Nevada 89134 - Tel 702,255.4500 - Fax 702.255.7232 - www.theadelsonschool.org




The Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy
is dedicated to cultivating a love of leaming
and a sense of self-worth.

The Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy was established in 1988 through the generosity of
“Milten 1. Schwariz and others who answered a need in the Las Vegas community for. a strong

secular and Judaic educational institution for elementary school-aged children. Since then, The
M.LS. Hebrew Academy has expanded to include preschoot through 8th grade. The school is
the only accredited Jewish day schoolin the State of Nevada.

This is a nurturing and safe community where studenis build a strong
academic foundation, love of leamning and self-confidence. High.
academic standards are integrated into a rich and pluralistic Jewish
instruction supporis each student’s development. Just as important as
intellectual growth are social skills, respect for community and Jewish ethics.

“Students in good standing matriculate from The Mitton | Schwartz Hebrew Academy to The
Dr. Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson School, the first Jewish high schoot in the Las Vegas areq.

9700 West Hillpointe Road, Las Vegas, Nevada 89134 - Tel 702.255.4500 - Fax 702.255-7232 - www.lvhebrewacademy.org
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commaunity schools of mixed gender, not effifiated with 4 specific denordoation of
Judedsm. Students in the sohools ghall not be required to pray, Male students zhall be
strangly recommnanded (bt not required) 1o wear a kippa doring yayer and other’

. religious ceramoydes, Also, nosmdmnshallbamqmmdtomma.hppaatanyhme.“

Am!cwkhmbyddemﬂh)ummyandrep]mdwlﬂlﬂmﬂsﬂnmgspwﬂq
language: “The govemipg board of the corporation shall ha known 25 the Board of
. Trustees snd the Board of Trusters shell consive the corporation. The tenn of
wifics of sach Trustee shall be thepe years, The nutaber &f Trustees may for fims fa
time he inoreased or dervedsed by fis Boand of Tristers but in no event shall the
nmber of Trustees be fewer thap seven (7) or more fhan tweaty (20). K for any
mnnaW;hﬂmhcdmhmeMmdmmamvldsd&rhm orin
theBylaws,sumrmmeshnllmunuamsmasTmswcmmlhm of har suocessor
has been alactad,”™

EST-00251

002131

002131

002131



¢€T200

EXHIBIT “V”

002132

002132

002132



€€T200

Deposition of:

Case:

Date:

Paul Schiffman

In the Matter of the Estate of Milton |. Schwartz
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Paul Schiffman In the Matter of the Estate of Milton 1. Schwartz
Page 1 Page 3
1 DISTRICT COURT 1 INDEX
2 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 31 WITNESS EXAMINATION PAGE
3 31 PAUL SCHIFFMAN BY MR. LEVEQUE 7
BY MR. BL. 4
; ; a4 370 T
2 In the Matter of the gstoa%:) 8g lgogase No. 5 BY MR. LEVEQUE 142
| MILTON 1. SCHWARTZ, ) Dept No. 26/Probate | ° EXHIBITS
7
s Deceased. ) . NUMBER DESCRIPTION MARKED
5 ) Exhibit 1 . "The Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew 14
) 9 f\kdca emyTBoar 0 }l“rustees10
eeting; Tuesday, Janua
10 10 2006, KCA6T23Y i 40
11 11| Exhibit 2 e Milton 1. Schwartz Hebrew 28
12 ca my Board of Trustees
12 MeetmGg Tuesday, Ee ruarY
13 DEPOSITION OF PAUL SCHIFFMAN 13 2006, 6:00 P.M.,"’AC401310 16
1 Taken on june 16, 2016 14| Exhibit 3. Letter dated S-8.06 frgm 29
15 By a Certified Court Reporter 15 Bl§1?ganM toa MSear) ebrg\% Academy
16 At1:04 p.m. 16 Pt Members AT
7 AL 9060 West Cheyenne Avenue 17| Exhibit 4 = Document titled "Introducmg 35
18 Las Vegas, Nevada s he only élgpms eh Ag X se(k)lrcl)ol m
18 iy S oo CA0T 43
20 Exhibit 5  "The Mijlton I. Schwartz Hebrew 44
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ste € e
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2
22
23 Exhibit 6  "The M1 n I Schwartz (fbrew 46
. 23 my mam an
24} Reported by Janet C. Trimmer, RPR, CRR, CCR 864 S eldon G, Adelson School
24 Executive Board of Trustees
25| Job No. 17364 . % 83%%%’9%43093 2007,"
0 -
Page 2 Page 4
1| APPEARANCES: 1| EXHIBITS (CONTINUED):
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Page 21 Page 23
1| Milton I. Schwartz -- do you recall any conversations 1[ Q. Butit was after litigation had commenced in
2| where Mr. Schwartz was involved in those discussions? | 2| this case?

3] A. Idonot. 31 A. Yes.
4] Q. Okay. Who was involved in those discussions? 41 Q. And when you say the board asked you, who in
5| A. Iknow thatthe Adelsons were involved. I 5| the board asked you? Do you recall?
6| know that Victor Chaltiel was involved and 6| A. It was a conversation that was directed by
7| board members, but I'm hesitant to say. I don't 7| the board chair, Victor Chaltiel, to follow the
8| remember who was -- else was in the room at those 8| board's wishes.
9| times. 9] Q. Were you present during any of the
10 Q. Okay. Did you provide any input and 10| discussions the board had concerning this issue?
11| suggestions? 11 A. Yes.
12f A, Yes. 12| Q. Allright. Who else do you recall providing
13} Q. Do you recall what those were? 13 input and commentary on that decision amongst the
14| A. Iobjected to the one name of being the 14| other board members?
15| college preparatory academy. I did not like that. 15( A, Ireally can't recall.
16| Q. How come? 16| Q. Okay. Do you recall if Mr. Adelson provided
17} A. Itwasn't going to meet the needs of the 17| any input?
18| school. There would be students who would not be 18 A. Yes, he did.
19| going off to college, in the case of going into the 19( Q. Okay. So you at least recall Mr. Adelson.
20| armed services. 20 What about Dr. Adelson?
21} Q. With respect to the building known as The 21  A. She was not present. She was not on the
22| Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy, did you ever 22 board.
23| develop an understanding with respect to whether the |23 Q. Okay. Mr. Chaltiel?
24 | name of that building was going to be a permanent part 24| A. Yes. It's Chaltiel [pronouncing].
25| of the naming of the school? 25| Q. Chaltiel?
Page 22 Page 24
1| A. No. 1} A. Uh-huh.
2( Q. Okay. When the name of the school was 2| Q. Okay. Irv Steinberg?
3| finally decided upon, was there concurrently any 3| A. Don't remember him being in the room.
4 | discussion of removing the name of The Milton 4| Q. Okay. Actually, that would have been after
51 I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy on the building that housed 5| the fact.
6| 18 months through 4th grade? 6 Okay. Upon the direction to remove the name
7  A. No. 7| from the building, what physical acts did you do to
8 MR. BLAKE: Object to the form of the 8 [ accomplish that directive?
9| question. Vague. 9| A. Ispoke to the head of our custodial
10} BY MR. LEVEQUE: 10} services. I asked him to remove the name and the
11| Q. Butyou are aware that at some point the name 11| picture that was hanging in the school, and asked that
12| of Milton L. Schwartz Hebrew Academy was removed from {12 | that be put into storage in the school and that it be
13| that building? 13| preserved.
14f A Tam. 14| Q. Andis it still preserved, at least to your
15| Q. Allright. Canyou tell me how that 15{ knowledge?
16 | happened, if you know? 16| A. Tomy -- last that I saw, it was preserved.
17| A. Yes. It was during a board meeting that we 17| That's over a year ago.
18| were having, the board was having a conversation, 18| Q. Okay. Other than the picture and the
19] discussion about the litigation, and at that point the 19{ signage -- is that what was removed?
20| board had decided to ask me to have the name removed 20| A. Uh-huh.
21| from the building. 21| Q. Isthata "yes"?
22| Q. The board did? 221 A. Yes.
231 A. Yes. 23| Q. Other than the picture and the signage, were
24| Q. Do you recall when that was? 241 there any other mementos of Milton I. Schwartz around
25 A. No. Just a couple of years ago. 25| the school, like a bust or sculpture, paintings or

702-476-4500
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Page 25

anything like that?

A. Just the painting that I spoke about.

Q. Okay. What about any of the classrooms
within the school? Were there any of those classrooms
that were named after Mr. Schwartz that were removed?

A. No.

Q. At the time that you were given this
directive to remove the namesake of Mr. Schwartz, were
you concurrently provided a directive to change the
letterhead of the school?

A. No.

Q. Okay. Are you aware that the letterhead did
change?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And are you aware that the letterhead
changed which ultimately resulted in The
Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy logo and name being

w @ NN U R W N

[y
o

11
12
13
14
15
16
17

Page 27
you a reason why they made the decision?

MR. BLAKE: Objection. To the extent that
the reason why involves litigation, I would object
that that's work-product-privilege information, and I
would instruct you not to answer.

MR. LEVEQUE: I'm not sure if that's
privileged, Counsel.

MR. BLAKE: If you want to talk about it off
the record, we can, or if you want to talk about it on
the record.

MR. LEVEQUE: We can go off the record.

(Off record.)

MR. LEVEQUE: Okay. With respect to the last
question that was asked, Counsel instructed his client
not to answer. We attempted to contact the discovery
commissioner to resolve the discovery dispute. We
were advised we might have a chance of getting ahold

18} removed from the letterhead? 18] of the discovery commissioner around 1:45 p.m., at
19| A Yes. 19| which time I'll try to re-call the discovery
20| Q. Do yourecall when that occurred? 20| commissioner.
21|  A. That was way on in the beginning of the 21 MR. BLAKE: Can I make a point of
22} school, but I can't recall the date. 22| clarification as well?
23| Q. When was your last date of employment at the 23 MR. LEVEQUE: Sure.
24 | school? 24 MR. BLAKE: Just to clarify, I instructed the
25|  A. Middle of August of this past year. So it 25| witness not to answer to the extent that a response to
Page 26 Page 28
1| would have been 2015. 11 the question called for a discussion regarding the
2| Q. Okay. And would that be the expiration of a 2| litigation that we were involved in.
3| contract that you had? 3 THE REPORTER: Two.
4! A. 1did not have a contract. 4 (Exhibit 2 was marked for identification.)
5| Q. Oh, okay. At some point you had a contract, 51 BY MR. LEVEQUE:
6| though; correct? 6| Q. Okay. Showing you what's been marked as
7] A. Yes. 7| Exhibit 2, Mr. Schiffman, are more board
8! Q. Okay. Did that contract expire on its own 8| meeting minutes. This time it's from a board meeting
9| terms? 9} on February 21st, 2006. Do you recognize it as such?
10| A. Yes. 10 A. Ido.
11 Q. Allright. Following that, were you deemed 11| Q. AndI just want to direct your attention to
121 as an at-will employee? Do you know? 12| the second paragraph where it states "Victor
13|  A. Tasked thatI be deemed an at-will employee. 131 discussed." Do you see that sentence?
14 Q. AndIunderstand that you are retired? 14  A. Yes.
15|  A. Yes, I am. 15| Q. (Reading):
16| Q. Congratulations. 16 "Victor discussed the Dr. Miriam &
171 A. Thank you. 17 Sheldon Adelson College Preparatory School.”
18 Q. How many years were you employed? 18 Do you see that?
19| A. Forty-three. 19| A. Yes.
20! Q. Did you have any of your relatives attend the 20| Q. Is this the name you took issue with because
21| school? 21} of "College Preparatory School"?
22|  A. No. 22]  A. Idid.
23 Q. Going back to your prior testimony concerning (23 Q. Allright. Just a forewarning, we are going
24| the direction you received from the board to remove  [24] to go through a Jot of extremely boring board minutes
25] the namesake of Mr. Schwartz, did the board ever give |25} today.

702-476-4500

OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC

Page: 7
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DECLARATION OF SUSAN PACHECO

I, Susan Pacheco, under penalty of perjury in the State of Nevada, state:

1. I make this Declaration in support of the Estate’s Opposition to Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment. I have knowledge of the matters stated herein and would be competent to
testify about them if called upon to do so.

2. I served as Milton I. Schwartz’s personal secretary from May 27, 1987 until his
death. My job duties included, but were not limited to, managing Mr. Schwartz’s daily calendar,
including Milton’s telephone calls, which he typically engaged in over a speaker phone and there
were times he asked me to join him on the calls or I was able to hear the conversation when my
office was adjacent to his.

3. I observed and/or assisted Mr. Schwartz facilitate countless charitable
transactions. Although Mr. Schwartz made minor donations to various causes and charitable
organizations, the major monetary donations made by Mr. Schwartz were used to create a legacy
bearing his name such as the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy (“MISHA”). 1 observed a
few situations wherein Mr. Schwartz refrained from making donations to charitable
organizations because there was no name recognition. For example, I recall that he wanted to
make a donation to the Jewish Community Day School and he did not do so because there was
no name recognition available.

4. In or around 1989, Mr. Schwartz became very involved with the Hebrew
Academy because he wanted Jewish children to have a great Jewish education, and he did not
feel that there were any quality Jewish schools at that time. Because of Mr. Schwartz’s
involvement with MISHA, 1 was appointed to and served on the Board of Trustees of MISHA in
or about 1988 until 1990, wherein I served as Acting Secretary. In light of my service as Mr.

Schwartz’s personal secretary for such a long period of time, and member of the Board of
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Trustees, I have first-hand knowledge regarding the significant contributions that Mr. Schwartz
made to MISHA.

5. Mr. Schwarz made substantial monetary donations to the MISHA, loaned money
to the school and was instrumental in the Howard HugheswC01p0ration’s gift of land where the
Adelson High School sits. Indeed, there were several occasions when MISHA would call Mr.
Schwartz needing a donation so the school could cover payroll. 1 participated in the Special
Meeting of the Board of Trustees on August 14, 1989, wherein the Board decided to name
MISHA after Mr. Schwartz in perpetuity in light of a $500,000 donation made by Mr. Schwartz,
and requested that “a letter should be written to Milton Schwartz stating the Academy will be
named after him.” In fact, I served as the Acting Secretary of such meeting. A true and correct
copy of the Minutes are attached hereto as Exhibit 1. It was my understanding from my
participation in this meeting, and other documents that [ have seen, that MISHA would be named
after Mr. Schwartz forever.

6. It was also important for Mr. Schwartz to donate time as well as money to the
MISHA. Consequently, I routinely spent approximately five (5) hours out of my eight (8) hour
work day working on issues relating to MISHA. Although Mr. Schwartz made substantial
donations and spent a significant amount on other charities, he did not spend nearly as much
money and/or ‘time on those charities as he did on MISHA.

7. It was always important for Mr. Schwartz to have MISHA named after him. Mr.
Schwartz often referred to MISHA as “his school” and that it would be named after him
“forever” or “in perpetuity.” In fact, when Mr. Schwartz said “in perpetuity” he would often
slow down and clearly annunciate that phrase for added emphasis. During one conversation I

had with Mr. Schwartz he told me: “when I die my name will remain on MISHA, and my
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children’s children and great-grandchildren will know 1 was part of Jewish education in Las
Vegas.” It was common for Mr. Schwartz to correct others when they referred to MISHA
merely as the Hebrew Academy. For example, on or around February 22, 1994, 1 drafted
correspondence to Ms. Ronni Epstein’s for Milton I. Schwartz’s signature which states “[p]lease
accept this note as a gentle reminder. The name of the school is The Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew

3

Academy.” See correspondence from Milton 1. Schwartz to Ms. Ronni Epstein dated February
22,1994, attached hereto as Exhibit 2.

8. When MISHA removed Mr. Schwartz’s name off the school in or around 1993 he
stopped making donations, and told me that “we are going to war to get my name back on the
Hebrew Academy.” Mr. Schwartz resumed making donations to MISHA after he received a
copy of Dr. Roberta Sabbath’s correspondence dated May 23, 1996, a copy of which is attached
hereto as Exhibit 3. In response to the letter, Mr. Schwartz stated “well finally” as he was glad
to see that it had been agreed to change the name back to MISHA. A short time later Mr.
Schwartz regained his position on the Board of Directors at MISHA and resumed his duties. Mr.
Schwartz donated over $1,000,000.00 to MISHA throughout his life as evidenced by the
donation schedule that I prepared, which is attached hereto as Exhibit 4.

9. Mr. Schwartz was also instrumental in causing others to make donations to
MISHA. He was also awére of and welcomed MISHA’s attempt to attract donors by providing
naming rights to certain classrooms because its served a dual purpose by preserving his legacy
and allowing others to become associated with portions (i.e. certain class rooms, library, etc.) of
MISHA.

10.  Mr. Schwartz encouraged Sheldon Adelson to build a high school next to MISHA

because it would bring all sorts of amenities to MISHA. Mr. Schwartz knew and understood
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from discussions with Victor Chaltiel and Mr. Adelson that the Adelson High School and
MISHA would maintain distinct identities. Mr. Schwartz did not worry that the MISHA would
remove his name after he died because the language contained in many of the school’s
documents stated it would be named after him “in perpetuity.” Further, while Mr. Schwartz was
alive MISHA and The Dr. Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson School were always referred to as
two separate entities in conversation, on stationary and in other organizational documents. In
fact, The Dr. Mlnam and Sheldon G. Adelson School was often referred to as being located on
the MISHA campus. |

11.  Based upon my relationship with Mr. Schwartz, and the numerous conversations
that I had with him, I do not believe that Mr. Schwartz would want the $500,000.00 bequest in
his Last Will and Testament to go to The Dr. Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson Educational
Campus because he intended the money to go to the MISHA, an entity which no longer exists.

Dated this o7 day of May, 2014, |

71 N A
[ I e e (R FRA G SR

SUSAN PACHECO
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D | [Milton I Schwartz Hebrew Academy ‘; [
= [MIS Contributions/dorations 5
= 1 .- -
'S Per HA ycs VGC loans return of loans |
ad) 1988 $ 50.00 5 - 1$ -
1989 $  500,900.00 $  1,20000% 600,00 | $ - 1§ -
1990 S 9,000.00 $ - $ -
1991 $ 150.00 $  1,30000 S - ]S -
1992 $ 69.66 $ - |8 -
1993 $ . 5 - s -
1994 $ - $ - 1S -
1995 $ - $ - 1% -
1996 $ . $ - 1§ -
1997 3 2,100.00 $ - s -
1998 $  22,500.00 $ - - |8 -
1999 $  26,600.00 $ - |$ -
2000 s 7,400.00 $ - 1§ -
2001 $  88,535.00 | $ 88,535.00 | 5  1,200.00 S - |8 -
2002 $  57,130.00 $ 150,000.00 | $ <]
2003 $  51,323.00 $ 83,000.00] ¢ (40,000.00)
2004 $  135,277.00 | $
2005 $ 9,622.00 ;
2006 < 100,000.00
2007
_|Total $ 1,010,656.66 | & 88,535.00 | $  2,400.00 | $  1,900.00 | $ 233,000.00 | $ (40,000.00)
cLT $  45,247.09
Grand Total $ 1,055,903.75
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Milton | Schwartz Hebrew Academy |

CLT #45 Contributions/donations (12/90- 2005)
T T

1991

-

1852

8,052.09

1953

1954

1995

1996

1997

1998

1998

2000

7,000.00

2001

2002

30,000.00

2003

2004

2005

195.00

Total

5
$
$
s
$
5
$
3
g -
5
5
$
5
$
s
$

45,247.09 |
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DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

* % * * * %

In the Matter of the Estate

of,

MILTON I. SCHWARTZ,

Deceased.

Case No.
Dept. No.

VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF

JONATHAN SCHWARTZ

Volume I

Las Vegas, Nevada

July 28, 2016

9:40 a.m.

Reported by: Heidi K. Konsten,

Nevada CCR No. 845
JOB NO.

NCRA RPR No.
322729

P061300
26 /Probate

RPR, CCR
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JONATHAN SCHWARTZ, VOL. I - 07/28/2016
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‘ Page 2
Videotaped deposition of JONATHAN

SCHWARTZ, Volume 1, taken at 3800 Howard Hughes
Parkway, Suite 1700, Las Vegas, Nevada, on
Thursday, July 28, 2016, at 9:40 a.m., before Heidi
K. Konsten, Certified Court Reporter in and for the

State of Nevada.

APPEARANCES OF COUNSEL

For the Dr. Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson
Educational Institute:

WILLIAM S. KEMP, ESQ.
DAVID T. BLAKE, ESQ.

Kemp, Jones & Coulthard
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway
Seventeenth Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
(702) 385-6000

(702) 385-6001 Fax
w.kemp@kempjones.com

For the Estate of Milton I. Schwartz:

ALAN D. FREER, ESQ.

Solomon, Dwiggins, Freer, Ltd.
9060 West Cheyenne Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89129

(702) 853-5483

(702) 853-5485 Fax
alevequee@sdfnvlaw.com

Also present: Terrell Holloway, Videographer

x *x *x *x * %

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www.litigationservices.com
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Page 14
time.

Q Okay. But in any event, your
understanding is that the board came to your
father's house, and that's when this agreement was
made?

A Correct.

Q And is this based on what your father
told you, or is this based on your being present
at the meeting?

A It's based on what my father told me.
And it's also based on testimony I've heard during
this litigation. And it's based upon
conversations I've had with Sam Ventura. It's
based on lots and lots of information and
discussion and -- and practice over many, many
years.

Q Okay. And it was your -- was it your

understanding that the agreement was that there

would be 500,000 given to the school, or that
there was a million, as Dr. Lubin said in her
book?

A No. Here's -- here's what the agreement
was: The agreement was that my father give
500,000 and raise 500,000. That's how the million

was arrived at, and that's what he did. He

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www.litigationservices.com
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Page 15
personally gave half a million dollars, and then

he rose -- raised another half a million dollars
to total the million.

I think one of the other donors was Paul
Sogg, and I'm -- I think Mr. Sogg donated
$300,000. And whoever donated the other $200,000
escapes me at the moment.

Q Okay. You do understand that this is
not the version that -- that Dr. Lubin says in the
book. In the book, she says that he was to give a
million dollars and he only gave 500,000. That's
what the book says.

If you want me to show it to you, I'll

be happy to.

A It's not relevant, one way or the other,
to me.

Q Okay. All right. Why is it not
relevant?

A Because I know what the agreement was.

The agreement was that he donate half a million
and raise half a million, regardless of whether
the entire million came from him or came from him
and other parties --

Q It's your position that you know what

the agreement was better than Dr. Lubin, one of

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www.litigationservices.com
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the parties to the agreement?

A I don't know that Tamar Lubin was even
at the meeting. I don't know. I just know what
my father told me, and I know what I've heard from
the other board members that I've discussed it
with. I know what I've heard from the testimony
during this case, and I know what the -- the
practice of the scthl was for years.

And besides that -- this whole issue of
what that agreement was was resolved in a prior
litigation.

Q Okay. Let's -- let's stick with 1989.

You understand what a naming rights

agreement is; right?

A Not really.
Q Didn't you prepare a naming rights
agreement and attach it to the May -- May 10,

2010, letter that we have here as Exhibit 3?

A We prepared a settlement agreement.
Q Okay. A settlement agreement that is
entitled -- and by the way, I think I should start

out by saying I admired your father greatly, and I
think the contribution he gave to the school
and -- you know, the fact that we're in this

adversarial relationship does not mean that, you

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www.litigationservices.com
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ERRATA TO OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR PARTIAL SUMMARY JUDGMENT
REGARDING STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS

A. Jonathan Schwartz, Executor of the Estate of Milton I. Schwartz (“Executor”), by and
through his Counsel of Record, the law firm Solomon Dwiggins & Freer, Ltd., hereby files this
Errata to his Opposition to Motion for Partial Summary Judgment Regarding Statute of
Limitations, filed with this Court on July 6, 2018.

The Declaration of A. Johnathan Schwartz, at Exhibit A, was not executed.

/17
/17
/17
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Therefore, attached hereto, as Exhibit A, is a copy of the executed Declaration of A.
Johnathan Schwartz as should have been filed and incorporated within the Opposition as though

originally filed.

DATED this 10" day of July, 2018.

SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER

oL

ALAN D. FREER, ESQ:”
Nevada State Bar No. 7706
afreer@sdfnvlaw.com
ALEXANDER G. LEVEQUE, ESQ.
Nevada State Bar No. 11183
aleveque(@sdfnvlaw.com

9060 West Cheyenne Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89129
Telephone: (702) §53-5483
Facsimile: (702) 853-5485

Attorneys for A. Jonathan Schwartz,
Executor of the Estate of Milton 1. Schwartz
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on July 10, 2018, I caused a true and correct copy of the

foregoing ERRATA TO OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR PARTIAL SUMMARY

JUDGMENT REGARDING STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS to be served via the Court’s

Odyssey/Wiznet service provider, pursuant to NRCP 5(b)(2)(D), EDCR 8.05 (a-f) and Rule 9 of
N.E.F.C.R., to the following party(ies):

J. Randall Jones, Esq.

Dave Blake, Esq.

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17™ Floor

Las Vegas, NV 89169

r.jones@kempjones.com

d.blake@kempjones.com

Attorneys for The Dr. Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson
Educational Institute
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DECLARATION OF A. JONATHAN SCHWARTZ, EXECUTOR OF THE ESTATE OF
MILTON L. SCHWARTZ, IN SUPPORT OF OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR PARTIAL
SUMMARY JUDGMENT REGARDING STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS

I, A. Jonathan Schwartz, Executbr of the Esfate of Milton I. Schwartz, hereby declare
under penafty of perjury under the laws of the State of Nevada as follows: .

1. This Declaration and the assertions contained herein are based upon my personal
knowledge, except that which is stated upon information and belief, and as to such matters, I
believe them to be true.

2. I am the Executor of the Estate of Milton 1. Schwartz.

3. I make this Declaration in Support of the Opposition to Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment Regarding Statute of Limitations (the “Opposition”).

4, In August, 1989, my father Milton I. Schwartz (hereinafter to as “Mr. Schwartz” or
“my father”), entered into an agreement to rename the Hebrew Academy as “The Milton L

Schwartz Hebrew Academy” in perpetuity.

5. On December 18, 1990, the Board of Trustees executed a docunent entitled-

“Bylaws of the Milton 1. Schwartz Hebrew Academy,” which provided, in relevant part, that
“[t]he name of this corporation is The Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy (hereinafter referred
to as The Academy) and shall remain so in perpetuity.” See, Opposition, at Exhibit 5.

6. As the result of a dispute that arose between Mr. Schwartz and the Board of
Trustees in or about 1992, the Board of Trustees filed a Certificate of Amendment of Articles of
Incorporation on October 19, 1994, changing the name of the school back to the “Hebrew
Academy.” See, Opposition, at Exhibit 12. |

7. In or about May, 1996, the Board of Trustees, by and through Dr. Roberta Sabbath,
reached out to Mr. Schwartz in an eﬁoﬁ to reconcile the dispute, and offered to rename the school
back to the Milton 1. Schwartz Hebrew Academy as originally intended in 1989. See, Opposition,
at Exhibit 14.

8. As aresult of the agreement made between my father and the Board of Directors to

reinstate Mr. Schwartz’s name as originally intended, on April 13, 1999, the Board of Trustees

Tof5
4832-8362-0204, v. 1

1002153

002153



¥S1200

(38
=

E8ay
<3333
z;<mm8
ZO0RZA 2
LLJ(’_\__‘;
= > NN
LwhooS
TZRS
8";‘“&1%
25625
Twr2?
o>&8;.
325(5
ol 3
7t
oS
[saficy
e Y
O#t
2
Za
V) E
Oz
it
wnHE
LS

¥
By

O 0 3 N W N ==

[\®] [\ N N — — — — — = — —_ = —
ggggﬁwt\)»—ao@m\lmmg-hwwwo

executed a document entitled “BYLAWS OF THE MILTON 1. SCHWARTZ HEBREW
ACADEMY,” which provides in relevant part: “The name of the Corporation is the Milton I.
Schwartz Hebrew Academy and will remain so in perpetuity.

9. Based upon numerous conversations with my father and documents he provided to
me prior to his death, it was my understanding that, notwithstanding the donations made by Dr.
Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson, the school, specifically grades Pre-K through Fighth and the
campus would remain the “Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy,” while the high school, grades
9 through 12, would be named the Adelson School.

10. My father passed away on August 9, 2007.

11.  Indeed, the School’s actions prior to my father’s death were consistent with this
understanding. Specifically, prior to my father’s death, in 2007 School held its annual Gala
fundraiser (the “2007 Gala”), at which my father was the honorary attendee. Included within

invitations and advertisements disseminated by the School for the 2007 Gala was a letter (the

12007 Gala Letter”) which included the following provisions consistent with the agreement |

between the Board of Directors and my father:

0 “It 1s an inspiration to see so many in the community supporting not
only The MLL.S. Hebrew Academy, but also The Adelson School.
At last year’s event, we presented plans to create a world class high
school adjacent to The Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy.”
See, 2007 Gala Letter, a true and correct copy of which is attached
hereto as Exhibit A-I. (Emphasis added).

(1)  Many people have worked hard to create the success of our current
Pre-X through 8th grade program and the beginning of our new
high school. /d. (Emphasis added).

(i11))  With vision and foresight, Mr. Schwartz and a few others
generously answered the need in Las Vegas for a strong secular and
Judaic educational institution for elementary school-aged children
by creating and continuously supporting The Milton I. Schwartz
Hebrew Academy. The School, established in 1988, has since
expanded to include preschool through 8th grade” Id
(Emphasis added).
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12.  Unbeknownst to me, approximately four (4) months after my father’s death, on
December 13, 2007, the Board of Trustees executed a document entitled “THE MILTON 1L
SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY RESOLUTIONS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES,”
which included a Resolution: as follows (the “2007 Resolutions™): Article I. of the Corporate
Articles be and hereby is amended and restated in its entirety to state that: “This corporation shall
be known in perpetuity as ‘The Dr. Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson Educational Institute.”” See,
Opposition, at Exhibit 24 »

13. Additionally, and also unbeknownst to me, on March 21, 2008, the Board of
Trustees filed a Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation for Nonprofit Corporation
(the “2008 Amendment™), which, in relevant part, provides that “This Corporaﬁon shall be known
in perpetuity as ‘The Dr. Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson Educational Institute.”” See,
Opposition, at Exhibit 26. |

14. 1 had no knowledge of the 2007 Resolutions or 2008 Amendment at the time they
were effectuated. The first I became aware of the documents was when the School diselosed the
same during the discovery period of this litigation.

15.  Although I began to hear rumors that the School had taken actions contrary to the
agreement between the Board of Trustees and my father shortly after his death regarding the name
of the school, I did not rely upon such rumors because the School’s actions and conduct after my
father’s death were contrary thereto, and appeared reasonably consistent with the agreement
between the Board of Directors and my father. Specifically:

(a) After my father’s death, I continued to make donations payable to the
Milton 1. Schwartz Hebrew Academy, which the School accepted;

(b) The School sent me several correspondences acknowledging the donations;

(©) The correspondences sent to me by the School were on letterhead that bore
the name “Milton 1. Schwartz Hebrew Academy,” see, Opposition, at

Exhibats, 28, 29, 30, 31, and 32;
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.11 School continued to honor its agreement with my father. -

()  Each of the correspondences and envelopes attached as Exhibits 28, 29, 30,
31, and 32 are true and correct copies of the same that were sent by the

School and received by me;

i (e) At no time during the years following my father’s:death did the School

inform me that they would not accept my donations because they were
made payable to the Milton 1. Schwartz Hebrew Academy. Rather, each of
my donations were accepted without question; and |
® I visited the School several times after my father died in 2009, 2010, 2011,
and 2012, and at such times I saw that the signaée on the Pre-K through
Eighth grade buildings still bore the name “The Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew
Academy” and my father’s picture was still present.
16.  Based upon the School’s conduct, as set forth above, I reasonably relied upon its

continued use of the name “The Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy,” and believed that the

17.  Had I been made aware of the true facts and circumstances of the School’s breach
of the agreement between my father and the Board of Directors, I would have proceeded with
court intervention immediately.

18.  As aresult of the rumors, of which I did not rely upon due to the School’s conduct,
I wrote a letter to the Board of Directors on May 10, 2010, with a proposed settlement agreement
attached thereto out of an abundance of caution so as to resolve any alleged issues. See, May 10,
2010 Letter, a true and correct copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A-IL
/"

/"
/1
"
"
"
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19.  Although I bad heard the rumors regarding the School’s actions (alleged actions at
the time of such rumors) and proposed an agreement out of an abundance of caution, as of at least |
2011, the School’s conduct continued lead me to believe that it had not breached its agreement |
and I reasonably relied upon such conduct.

Dated this 5th day of July, 2018.

A. Jonathan Schwartz, Execiior—of The Estate of
Milton T” Schwartz ’ . :
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J. Randall Jones, Esq. (#1927)

Joshua D. Carlson, Esq. (#11781)

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17th Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Telephone: (702) 385-6000

Facstmile: (702) 385-6001

Attorneys for The Dr. Miriam and

Sheldon G. Adelson Educational Institute

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the Matter of the Estate of Case No.: P061300
Dept. No.: 26/Probate
MILTON I. SCHWARTZ,

Deceased. THE ADELSON CAMPUS’ OPPOSITIONTO
THE ESTATE’S COUNTERMOTION FOR
ADVISORY JURY

Hearing Date: August 9, 2018
Hearing Time: 9:30 am

The Dr. Miriam Adelson and Sheldon G. Adelson Educational Institute (the “Adelson
Campus™) by and through its counsel, hereby submits its Opposition to the Estate of Milton L
Schwartz’s (the “Estate™) Countermotion for Advisory Jury.

This Opposition is made and based upon the following Points and Authorities, any exhibits
attached thereto, the pleadings and papers on file herein, the oral argument of counsel, and such other

or further information as this Honorable Court may request.

e
DATED this /23 day of July, 2018.
KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP

S T —
/:;iwpﬂ%?
1. Ramdall Jones, Esq. (#1927)

Joshua D, Carlson, Esq. (#11781)

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17 Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for The Dr. Miriam and
Sheldon G. Adelson Educational Institute
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

L.
INTRODUCTION
In an unrelated countermotion to its opposition to the Adelson Campus’s Motion for Summary
Judgment Regarding Breach of Contract, the Fstate requests this Court issue an order declaring that all
claims of all parties shall be determined by the jury. As explained below, the Court should deny the
Estate’s request for an advisory jury as (1) Nevada legal authority provides that the Court should allow
the jury to make all legal determinations and reserve all equitable determinations for itself; and (2) the
Estate’s Countermotion is improper because it violates EDCR 2.20(f) as it is completely unrelated to
the subject matter of the Estate’s Opposition.
II.

LEGAL ARGUMENT

A. It is Appropriate for the Court to Allow the Jury to Decide the Legal Issues and Reserve
for Court Determination All Equitable Issues

“The decision whether to grant a request for an advisory jury is within the district court's
discretion.” Harmon v. Tanner Motor Tours, 79 Nev. 4,20, 377 P.2d 622, 630-31 (1963). However, “it
is elemental that in a suit in equity, the judgment or decree must be based upon findings of the court
rather than a jury verdict...” Musgrave v. Casey, 68 Nev. 471235 P.2d 729, 731, (1951). In an action
in equity, there is no right to a trial by jury, so even if a court impanels an advisory jury to assist in its
determinations, the jury verdict may be entirely disregarded by the court as the verdict of an advisory
jury is non-binding. See Johnston v. De Lay, 63 Nev. 1, 158 P.2d 547 (1945); Misty Management Corp.
v. First Judicial Dist. Court, 783 Nev. 253, 428 P.2d 196 (1967).

The Estate’s specific performance claim, seeking an order compelling the Adelson Campus to
change its name to the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy, is a purely equitable claim, not requiring
an advisory jury. See Holiday Inns of America, Inc. v. Lussi, NDN.Y.1967,42 F.R.D. 27,153 U.S.P.Q.
158. It is proper for the Court to allow the jury to decide the legal issues and reserve for court
determination all equitable issues, including the Estate’s specific performance claim. See Sanguinetti
v, Strecker, 1978, 577 P.2d 404, 94 Nev. 200. Accordingly, pursuant to NRCP 39(c) and the above-

referenced legal authority, the Estate’s Countermotion should be denied.

-
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B. The Estate’s Request for an Advisory Jury Should be Denied as Result of it Being Made
in an Tmproper Countermotion. :

Instead of properly bringing its request for an advisory jury in a motion, the Estate chose to
make its request in a countermotion with its opposition to the Adelson Campus’s Motion for Summary
Judgment Regarding Breach of Contract. EDCR 2.20(f) requires that a proper countermotion must be
“related to the same subject matter.” Here, the Adelson’s Campus Motion for Summary Judgment only
addresses breach of contract arguments., Therefore, the Estate’s instant request for an advisory jury in
a countermotion, a wholly unrelated issue to the subject motion, patently violates EDCR 2.20(f),
requiring the Countermotion’s denial.

L
CONCLUSION

For all the reasons indicated above, the Adelson Campus respectfully requests that this Court
to deny the Estate’s improper Countermotion.

DATED this filay of July, 2018.

Respectfully Submitted,

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP

T T
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} F;:;»f
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J. Reridall Jones, Esq. (#1927)

Joshua D. Carlson, Esq. (#11781)

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17th Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Telephone: (702) 385-6000

Facsimile: (702) 385-6001

Attorneys for The Dr. Miriam and
Sheldon G. Adelson Educational Institute
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

e
T hereby certify that on th z day of July, 2018, T served a true and correct copy of THE
ADELSON CAMPUS’ OPPOSITION TO THE ESTATE’S COUNTERMOTION FOR
ADVISORY JURY via the Eighth Judicial District Court’s CM/ECF electronic filing systen,

addressed to all parties on the e-service list.

(bpine Cbonn 76

oopiel

Areémployee of Kemp, Jones & Coulthard, LLP
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J. Randall Jones, Esq. (#1927)

Joshua D. Carlson, Esq. (#11781)

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17th Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Telephone: (702) 385-6000

Facsimile: (702) 385-6001

Attorneys for The Dr. Miriam and

Sheldon G. Adelson Educational Institute

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Case No.:
Dept. No.:

PO61300
26/Probate

In the Matter of the Estate of
MILTON I, SCHWARTZ,

Deceased. THE ADELSON CAMPUS’ REPLY IN
SUPPORT OF ITS MOTION FOR PARTIAL
SUMMARY JUDGMENT REGARDING

FRAUD

Hearing Date: August 9, 2018
Hearing Time: 9:30 am

The Dr. Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson Educational Institute (the “Adelson Campus” or the
“School”) by and through its counsel, hereby submits its Reply in Support of its Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment Regarding Fraud.

This Reply is made and based upon the following Points and Authorities, any exhibits attached
thereto, the pleadings and papers on file herein, the oral argument of counsel, and such other or further

information as this Honorable Court may request.

DATED this 7ﬁﬁ day of August, 2018.
KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
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J. Randall Jones, Esq. (#1927)

Joshua D. CarIson Esq. (#11781)

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17’th Floor
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Attorneys for The Dr. Miriam and
Sheldon G. Adelson Educational Institute
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
I

INTRODUCTION

The Estate of Milton I. Schwartz (the “Estate™) provides no legitimate factual or legal basis to
deny the Adelson Campus’ request for summary judgment on the Estate’s claim of fraud in the
inducement. A party opposing summary judgment “bears the burden to ‘do more than simply show that
there is some metaphysical doubt’ as to the operative facts in order to avoid summary judgment in the
moving party’s favor.” Woodv. Safeway, Inc., 121 Nev. 724, 731, 121 P.3d 1026, 1031 (2005) (quoting
Matsushita Electric Industrial Co., Ltd,, et al. v. Zenith Radio Corp., et al., 475 U.8. 574, 586 (1986)).
Here, most of the alleged “evidence” that the Estate includes in its Opposition is inadmissible or
immaterial alleged facts and rhetoric in response to the Adelson Campus’ request for summary
judgement, thus it cannot properly preclude entry of summary judgment. See Anderson v. Liberty
Lobby, Inc., 106 8. Ct. 2505, 2510 (1986) (Only disputes over facts that might affect the outcome of
the suit under the governing law will properly preclude the entry of summary judgment. Factual
disputes that are irrelevant or unnecessary will not be counted.)

As explained in the Adelson Campus® Motion, the undisputed facts in this case establish, as a
matter of law, that the Estate cannot meet its burden at trial to prove each essential element of its claim
of fraud in the inducement. Summary judgment shall be entered “against a party who fails to make a
showing sufficient to establish the existence of an element essential to that party’s case, and on which
that party will bear the burden of proof at trial.” See Celotex Corp. v. Catrett, 477 U.S., 317, 322 (1986).
In order to prevail on a claim of fraud in the inducement, the moving party must prove that “the
promisor had no intention to perform af the time the promise was made.” See Menalco v. Buchan, 2010
WL 428911, *30 (D. Nev. Feb. 1, 2010)emphasis added). However, the Estate’s Opposition fails to
identify any testimony or evidence demonstrating an actual genuine issue of material fact that at the
time the Board of Trustees allegedly agreed to name the school after Milton Schwartz they had no
intention to do so. As result of this overt failure, summary judgment should be granted in the Adelson

Campus’ favor as to the Estate’s claim for fraud in the inducement.
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LEGAL ARGUMENT

A. The Estate Submitted No Evidence, Let Alone Admissible Evidence, Demonstrating that
School had No Intention to Perform at the Time the Promise was Made.

In order to prevail on its fraud in the inducement claim, the Estate must establish intentional
wrongful conduct, such as evidence that “the promisor had no intention to perform at the time the
promise was made.” See Menalco v. Buchan, 2010 WI. 428911, at *31 (D. Nev. Feb. 1, 2010)
(emphasis added) (citing Bulbman, Inc. v. Nevada Bell, 108 Nev. 105, 825 P.2d 588, 592 (Nev.1992));
J.A. Jones Const. Co. v. Lehrer McGovern Bovis, Inc., 120 Nev. 277,291, 89 P.3d 1009, 1018 (2004).
Unsurprisingly, and in the face of the deposition testimony of the former Board members', the Estate
provides no deposition testimony or any other admissible evidence raising a genuine issue of material
fact that the Board of Trustees had no intention to actually name the school after Milton Schwartz at
the time it allegedly agreed to name school after Mr. Schwartz. Merely characterizing the Board of

Trustee’s actions in 19967 as an “empty promise” without any actual evidence of the Board of Trustee’s

002164

lack of intent in 1996 to fulfill the alleged promise to name the school after Milton Schwartz is the very
specious rhetoric, conclusory statements, and gossamer threads of whimsy that cannot defeat summary
judgment. See Wood v. Safeway, Inc., 121 P.3d 1026, 1031 (Nev. 2005).

Instead of attempting to meet its substantial burden, the Estate relies on the conclusory argument
that fraud in the inducement exists solely because the name of the school was changed in December
2007. See Opp. at 9:18-19. However, “the mere failure to fulfill a promise or perform in the future,
however, will not give rise to a fraud claim absent evidence that the promisor had no intention to
perform at the time the promise was made.” See Bulbman, Inc. v. Nevada Bell, 108 Nev. 105, 112, 825
P.2d 588, 592 (1992)(emphasis added) citing Webb v. Clark, 274 Or. 387, 546 P.2d 1078 (1976). At
the summary judgment phase, mere allegations that the School breached an alleged agreement nearly

11 years after it was allegedly agreed to is not enough demonstrate a genuine issue of material fact as

! See Exhibits 1-5 to Motion for Partial Summary Judgment Regarding Fraud.

2 Interestingly, the Estate contends in its Opposition to the Adelson’s Campus Motion for Summary Judgment
Regarding Breach of Contract that the contract was formed in 1989, yet in its opposition to this Motion, the
Estate asserts the naming rights agreement that was breached was formed in 1996.

3-
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to a fraud claim. See id and Oppo at 9:1-3. Again, the Estate has failed to point to any evidence that af
the time Milton Schwartz agreed to donate money and drafted his will leaving money to School, the
Board had the intention of removing Milton Schwartz’s name from the school. The absence of such
evidence is fatal to the Estate’s fraud in the inducement claim requiring summary judgment be entered

in the Adelson Campus’ favor.

B. Like Fraud in the Inducement, a Claim for Intentional Misrepresentation Requires the
Promisor to Have Knowledge that the Representation was False When It was Made.

The Adelson’s Campus’ Motion seeks summary judgment on the Estate’s fraud in the
inducement claim. Yet, in a desperate and misguided attempt to avoid summary judgment, the Estate
argues that summary judgment is precluded because there is a genuine issue of material fact as to the
existence of an intentional misrepresentation, a claim not currently asserted in this action by the Estate,
and it is entitled to present this evidence in support of a claim for intentional misrepresentation for
consideration at trial. See Opp. at 12:6-17. This argument is nothing but a red herring and should be
summarily disregarded.

Nevertheless, any request by the Estate to amend its operative Petition to include a claim for
intentional misrepresentation should fail as the claim is futile because the Estate cannot provide the
Court any admissible evidence the Board had any knowledge that its alleged representations to Milton
Schwattz about naming the school after him were false at the time they were allegedly made. See supra
II{A). Under Nevada law, a claim for intentional misrepresentation requires the following elements: (1)
a false representation by defendant; (2) defendant's knowledge that the representation was false
when made; (3) an intent by defendant to induce plaintiff to act or refrain from acting; (4) justifiable
reliance by plaintiff; and (5) damages to plaintiff resulting from the fraud. See Bergsrud v. Bank of Am.,
NA,2017 WL 4560185, at *5 (D. Nev. Oct. 11, 2017) (emphasis added) (citing Bulbman, Inc. v. Nevada
Bell, 825 P.2d 588, 592 (Nev. 1992). Like its claim for fraud in the inducement, the Estate cannot
produce any admissible deposition testimony or evidence that demonstrates that the School had any
knowledge that its alleged representations to Milton Schwartz about naming rights were false at the

time they were allegedly made. Due to the Estate’s inability to establish all of the essential elements
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for a claim of intentional misrepresentation, the claim is futile and any request for leave to amend

should be denied.

C. Contrary to the Estate’s Contention, Not All of the Evidence It Cites in Support of Its
Opposition is Admissible.
Much of the Estate’s statement of disputed facts are supported only by inadmissible hearsay

that cannot support a basis for denying the Adelson Campus’ pending dispositive motions. Contrary to
the Estate’s argument the following documents do not fall within any of the exception to the generally

applicable prohibitions on hearsay.

1. Exhibit 1 to Opp. — Supplemental Affidavit of Milton I Schwartz dated February 22, 1993
in support of Plaintiffs’ Reply to Defendant’s Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion for
Declaratory Judgment and Injunctive Relief; Plaintiff’s Opposition to Defendant’s
Countermotion for Sanctions; Plaintiff's Opposition to Defendant’s Countermotion to
Dismiss or, in the Alternative, for a More Definite Statement; and Plaintiffs
Countermotion to Strike Defendant’s Opposition (hereinafter the “Supplemental
Affidavit of Milton Schwartz”).

The Estate telies on the Supplemental Affidavit of Milton Schwartz for the purpose of

002166

demonstrating that the Board of Trustees allegedly agreed to change the name of the school to the
“Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy™ in perpetuity. See Opp. at 2:13-14. Therefore, the out-of-court
statements in the Supplemental Affidavit are being sought to be introduced for the truth of the matters
asserted therein. However, the Supplemental Affidavit of Milton Schwartz is inadmissible hearsay
with no exception due to the untrustworthy and self-serving nature of the Affidavit as result of it being
prepared in support of litigation, as demonstrated by the pleadings the Supplemental Affidavit was
submitted in support. See Ex. 1 to Opp. at § 3. The hearsay statements made in the Supplemental

Affidavit of Milton Schwartz are too untrustworthy to be admissible.

“It is a general rule that self-serving declarations-that is, statements favorable to the
interest of the declarant-are not admissible in evidence as proof of the facts asserted,
regardless of whether they were implied by acts or conduct, were made orally, or
were reduced to writing. The rule which renders self-serving statements
inadmissible is the same in criminal prosecutions as in civil actions. The vital
objection to the admission of this kind of evidence is its hearsay character; the
phrase ‘self-serving’ does not describe an independent ground of objection. Such
declarations are untrustworthy; their introduction in evidence would open the door
to frauds and perjuries, and the manufacturing of evidence. The fact that the
declarant has since died does not alter the general exclusionary rule.”

-5-
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Chrysler Motors Corp. v. Davis, 226 Ga 221, 173 S.E.2d 691 (1970). “The party wishing to introduce
hearsay evidence must rebut the presumption of unreliability by appropriate proof of trustworthiness.
A witness's death is not enough to justify discarding the trustworthiness requirement of the residual
hearsay exception.” Stolarczyk v. Senator Int'l Freight Forwarding, LLC, 376 F. Supp. 2d 834, 841
(N.D. Ill. 2005).

Nothing in Supplemental Affidavit of Milton Schwartz suggests circumstances under which
one can be assured of accuracy. Statements made in anticipation of litigation are suspect: “Precedent
teaches that courts typically should not admit documents made in anticipation of litigation as
they ‘lack sufficient guarantees of trustworthiness to be excepted from the hearsay rule.”” See id
(emphasis added) (citing Moffett v. McCauley, 724 F.2d 581, 584 n. 1 (7th Cir.1984) (citing Palmer v.
Hoffiman, 318 U.S. 109, 111, 63 S.Ct. 477, 87 L.Ed. 645 (1943)). The statements contained in the
Supplemental Affidavit are favorable to Milton Schwartz and to him alone, and he had substantial
motivation, with all respect, to embellish, as he clearly appreciated that he was laying out his litigation
position. While the Estate argues that Milton’s statements were given under the penalty of perjury,
Milton Schwartz was never subject to cross-examination by anyone concerning the statements and there
is nothing inherently trustworthy about the statements. Therefore, the Estate has failed to rebut the

applicable presumption of inadmissibility of hearsay statements,

2. Exhibit 3 to Opp. — Is an unsigned letter dated August 14, 1989 addressed to Milton
Schwartz (*August 14, 1989 Letter™).

Like the Supplemental Affidavit of Milton Schwartz, the Estate is secking to utilize the out-of
—court statements contained in the August 14, 1989 Letter to show that the Board allegedly agreed to
name the school after Milton Schwartz in perpetuity. See Opp. at 2:18-19. Contrary to the Estate’s
argument August 14, 1989 Letter does not qualify under the business records exception to hearsay. It
was produced by Susan Pacheco and not on any school or business letterhead. See Ex. 3 to Opp.
Furthermore, it is unsigned and does not even reference the individual or organization that was
allegedly sending the letter to Milton Schwartz and whom was to sign the letter. Susan Pachcco, Milton
Schwartz’s secretary, testified in her deposition that Milton Schwartz dictated the letter to het, but there
was no indication that he did so in an official business capacity. See Exhibit 1, S. Pacheco Dep. at

15:20-16:3. Ms. Pacheco confirmed the purported letter was never signed:

-6-
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Do vou know if he obtained a signature from the school on this letter?
A. No.

Q. Did he ever tell you whether he obtained a signature from anybody at the
school on this letter?

A, I don't recall.
Q. Have you ever seen a copy of this letter that's been signed?

A. [ don't recall.

See id at 18:6-15. The August 14, 1989 Letter in reality is more akin to a self-serving declaration by
Milton Schwartz than anything else. Thus, the business records exception is inapplicable.

The business records exception is also inapplicable because the circumstances surrounding the
preparation of August 14, 1989 Letter indicates a lack of trustworthiness. As discussed previously, the
statements contained in the letter are favorable to Milton Schwartz and to him alone, and he had
substantial motivation to aggrandize, as he clearly appreciated that he was preparing a self-serving
letter that has not been seen by the school or signed by a representative of the school. See id. Lastly,
the risk of irreparable prejudice to the Adelson Campus substantially outweighs any probative value
this document may have at trial. See NRS 48.035. For these reasons, the Estate’s proffered exceptions

to the hearsay rule are inapplicable and the August 14, 1989 Letter is inadmissible.

3. Exhibit 13 to Opp. — Spreadsheet of donations allegedly made and solicited by Milton
Schwartz.

Generally, the Rule authorizing the admission of an exhibit summarizing contents of
voluminous documents is not a back-door vehicle for introduction of evidence which is otherwise
inadmissible. See Peat, Inc. v. Vanguard Research, Inc., 378 F.3d 1154, 1160 (11th Cir. 2004). The
Estate’s spreadsheet summary of donations that Milton Schwartz allegedly made to the school between
1988 and 2007 (“Donation Litigation Spreadsheet™) is inadmissible hearsay that does not fall within
any exceptions. As discussed above, “courts typically should not admit documents made in anticipation
of litigation as they ‘lack sufficient guarantees of trustworthiness to be excepted from the hearsay
rule.’” See Stolarczyk v. Senator Int'l Freight Forwarding, LLC, 376 F. Supp. 2d 834, 841 (N.D. 1l
2005) (internal citations omitted). Susan Pacheco testified in her deposition that Jonathan Schwartz

asked her to create this spreadsheet specifically for use in this litigation. See Ex. 1 at 44:15-45:25. In

7-
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addition, a summary, such as the Donation Litigation Spreadsheet, may only be admitted into evidence
if the originals or duplicates of the evidence the summary is based upon have been made available to
the other parties at a reasonable time and place. See FRE 1006. Here, Ms. Pacheco testified that she is
unable to produce the checks and check registers the Donation Litigation Spreadsheet allegediy
summarizes because she believes those documents were shredded after she used them to create the
Donation Litigation Spreadsheet. See Ex. 1 at 45:15-25. Accordingly, the spreadsheet lacks sufficient
guarantees of trustworthiness and the Estate is unable lay any evidentiary foundation (i.e, receipts,
checks, ledgers, etc.) to substantiate the Donation Litigation Spreadsheet at the time of trial. For these

reasons, the Donation Litigation Spreadsheet is inadmissible.

HE.
CONCLUSION
For all the reasons indicated above, the Adelson Campus respectfully requests this Court to

grant its Motion for Summary Judgment Regarding Fraud.

002169

DATED this2* day of August, 2018,
Respectfully Submitted,

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP

ey

L. R'fdall Jones, Esq (#1927)

Joshua D. Carlson Esq. (#11781)

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17th Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for The Dr. Miriam and
Sheldon G. Adelson Educational Institute

3 The destruction of relevant evidence is telling and adds further concern as to the reliability of this summary.
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on the o ﬂ day of August, 2018, I served a true and correct copy of THE
ADELSON CAMPUS’ REPLY IN SUPPORT OF ITS MOTION FOR PARTIAL SUMMARY
JUDGMENT REGARDING FRAUD via the Eighth Judicial District Court’s CM/ECF electronic
filing system, addressed to all parties on the e-service list.

Dot Wi

An employee of Kemp, ] ones & Coﬁ@érd, LLP
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In the Matter of the Estate of
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Page 15

A. The files that I keep at my office.
They're not personal.

Q. Where is your office located?

A. 6050 South Ft. Apache Road, Suite 200 A,
as in apple, Las Vegas, Nevada 89148.

Q. And why would you have a copy of this
letter in your files?

A. I kept -- I was Mr. Schwartz's pefsonal
secretary and I kept all the documents that -- all

his documents that have to do with his businesses
and with the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy. He
also kept files. So I'm not going to say i kept
every single piece of paper. Let me clarify that.
Q. Besides yourself and Mr. Schwartz, do

you know anybody else that kept copies of his: .-

files ~--
A, No.
Q. -- regarding the school?
A, No.
Q. Do you know who prepared this letter?
A, Yes.
Q. Who prepared the letter?
A. Milton Schwartz.
Q. Do you know when he prepared it?
A. August 1l4th, 1989.

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www.litigationservices.com
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Q. Did Mr. Schwartz himself preparé the
letter? |

Al He dictated it to me and I typed it.

Q. Was there anybody else present:when he
dictated the letter to you?

A, Probably not.

Q. Why do you say that?

A, Because normally it was he andii in ﬁhe

office, and in 1989, I don't remember the exact date

of August 1l4th, 1989, where I was sitting, so.’
probably not. 99.9 percent sure the answer is no
one else was there.
Q. And I understand it's been a while. So
I ask for just your best testimony and your best
recollection. |
After Mr. Schwartz dictated the letter,

what did you do next?

A Handed it back to him.

Q. And what did he do with the letter?

A. I don't recall.

Q. Did he ask you to do anything Wiﬁh the
letter?

A, I don't recall.

Q. Do you recall if you took -- ié you made

copies of the letter?

Page 16

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112 -
www.litigationservices,com
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. Page 18
be in his name and he was preparing the letter for

them to sign so it would be easier for theﬁ;

He often, when things -- he often put
things in writing -~ as soon as he said soﬁething,
he put it in writing. So that's what he did here.

Q. Do you know if he obtained a signature
from the school on this letter?

A, No.

Q. Did he ever tell you whether he obtained

a signature from anybody at the school on this

letter?
A, I don't recall.
Q. Have you ever seen a copy of this letter

that's been signed?

A, I don't recall.

Q. Would there be anything in your files
that you could look at or that maybe I could show

you or Jeff could show you to help refresh;your_:

recollection?
A No, not that I'm aware of.
Q. When did you pull a copy of this letter

from your files?
A. Today .
Q. And besides today, when was the last

time you recall seeing this letter? s

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www.litigationservices.com
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SUSAEN PACHECO - 03/06/2015

Page 44

1 calls for a legal conclusion. Do you want me to

2 just object to form whenever you say that from here

3 on out? Is that easiest?

4 MR. COUVILLIER: Sure.

5 THE WITNESS: That threw me off. Can

6 you ask me again?

7 BY MR. COUVILLIER:

8 Q. Sure. I'll reread it, Ms. Pacheco.

9 Are you aware of any agreementg_between
10 Milton I. Schwartz and the school which required the
11 school to return all monetary gifts to Milﬁou;if the
12 school ever changed its name from the Milton I.

13 Schwartz Hebrew Academy?
14 A. No.
15 Q. Okay. Ms. Pacheco, I'm going to turn
16 now to Exhibit No. 6. And let me have you just look
17 at the first page of Exhibit No. 6. Actually,
18 page 1 and 2 of Exhibit 6. Do you see those?
19 A. Uh-huh.
20 Q. You prepared this document, correct?
21 A Correct. :
22 Q. When did you prepare it? 2And by this
23 document, I'm sorry, pages 1 and 2 of Exhibit”ﬁ; you
24 prepared that, correct?
25 Al Correct.
Litigation Services | 800-330-1112 °

www.litigationservices.com
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Page 45

1 Q. When did you prepare these two pages?

2 A. I didn't date it, so I'm not sure.

3 Q. Did you do page 1 and page 2 of

4 Exhibit 6 at the same time?

5 A, Yes.

6 Q. Is this a document that you prepared

7 within the last three years?

8 A, Yes.

9 Q. Is this a document that you prepared --
10 well, strike that. Why did you prepare this
11 document?

12 A, For this case.

13 Q. Who asked you to prepare it?

14 A. Jonathan.

15 Q. And would you tell me how you then-went
16 about preparing pages 1 and 2 of Exhibit 6%

17 A, To the best of my recollection, I weéent
18 through check registers. I was asked to produce the
19 checks and I have not been able to produce those.
20 We moved our office in September and when we did
21 that, we shredded a lot of documents from 2006 back.
22 And I believe -- I know that we shredded a‘bunch of
23 bank statements and checks and whatnot. So I'm

24 pretty sure that's where they went, 1s in thex

25 shredder.

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112

www.litigationservices.com
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Telephone: (702) 385-6000
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the Matter of the Estate of Case No.: P061300
. No.: 2 bat
MILTON I. SCHWARTZ, Dept. No 6/Probate

Deceased. THE ADELSON CAMPUS’ REPLY IN
SUPPORT OF ITS MOTION FOR PARTIAL
SUMMARY JUDGMENT REGARDING
STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS

Hearing Date: August 9, 2018
Hearing Time: 9:30 am

The Dr. Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson Educational Institute (the “Adelson Campus” or the
“School”) by and through its counsel, hereby submits its Reply in Support of its Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment Regarding Statute of Limitations.

This Reply is made and based upon the following Points and Authorities, any exhibits attached
thereto, the pleadings and papers on file herein, the oral argument of counsel, and such other or further

information as this Honorable Court may request.

DATED this z‘j day of August, 2018.

KEW, LLP
P

J. Randall Jones, Esq. (#1927)

Joshua D. Carlson, Esq. (#11781)

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17% Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for The Dr. Miriam and
Sheldon (. Adelson Educational Institute

-1-

CLERE OF THE COUE :I

178

002178

Case Number: 07P061300 002178



KEmP, JONFGJSSA &ZggULTHARD, LLP

L.as Vepgas, Nevada 89169

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17% Floor
Tel. (702) 385-6000 « Fax; (702) 385-600%

kjo@kempjones.com
b~ b2 |\ r2 [N] [ [x] [R] [\ — —_ — —_ — — — — — —
o0 ~J (=) wn NN (V] [N —_ = O oo ~J [=)) wn =N (V8] [N —_ =

00

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

L.
INTRODUCTION

It is Jonathan Schwartz’s contention in this matter that under the alleged naming agreement, the
corporation, entire campus, the middle school, and any future acquired land and/or buildings were to
be named after Milton Schwartz. See Exhibit 1, I. Schwartz July 28, 2016 Dep. at 23:9-14 and 23:3-7.
Jonathan Schwartz testified that he learned of changes to the name of the school and diminishment of
the perceived naming interest beginning in 2007. See Ex. 2 to Mot. for Partial Summary Judginent
Regarding Statute of Limitations at 51:3-16. Jonathan Schwartz also asserted in his May 10, 2010 letter
to the Board that the School’s actions over the past for 2 ¥ years breached the naming rights agreement,
and specifically referenced the Adelson Educational Campus and Adelson Middle School names as in
violation of the alleged agreement. The irrefutable evidence in this matter also demonstrates that
Jonathan Schwartz was on notice and had reasonable access to information in 2008, including the
publicly filed Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation and the Adelson Campus’ website,
that would have allowed him to discover the alleged violations of the purported naming rights
agreement he asserts form the basis for the Estate’s claims. Notwithstanding the recognized and easily
available facts in 2008, Jonathan Schwartz waited until May 28, 2013, to institute this action. Thus,
there is no genuine issue of material fact that the Estate’s claims for breach of an oral contract and fraud
in the inducement, and all derivative claims, are untiinely.

Yet, in an effort to resuscitate its untimely claims, the Estate now alleges for the first time that
the doctrine of equitable estoppel precludes the Adelson Campus from asserting a statute of limitations
defense. This assertion fails for a variety of reasons, including the fact that the Estate has failed to show
how any action of the Adelson Campus induced Jonathan Schwartz from timely filing his claim. Again,
it is important to note that in May 2010, Jonathan Schwartz told the Board that what it had been doing
for the past 2 % years was in violation of the purported naming rights agreement. This statement
demonstrates that Jonathan was not ignorant to the true state of the facts and was aware of the name
change of the school and the actions of the Board in the years leading up to sending the letter. Even

after sending the May 10, 2010 letter, the Estate waited over three (3) years to finally file its Petition

2-
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premised on the same naming issues that Jonathan Schwartz stated had been occurring for 2 V2 years
prior to his letter. Despite its attempts to distract and muddy the waters, the Estate has presented no
evidence which could support a finding that the Adelson Campus is equitably estopped from seeking
summary judgment on its statute of limitations defense. Moreover, and contrary to the Estate’s
contention, the applicability of equitable estoppel, including any disputed issue of fact, is to be decided
by the court, even if there are disputed issues of fact. See Hopkins v. Kedzierski 170 Cal. Rptr. 3d 551,
568 (2014).

As there is no genuine issﬁe of material fact that the Estate’s claims are time barred under the
applicable statutes of limitations, the Adelson Campus respectfully requests the Court grant summary
judgment in the Adelson Campus’ favor.

IL.
ADDITIONAL STATEMENT OF UNDISPUTED FACTS

It has always been Jonathan Schwartz’s contention that the entire campus and the middle school
were to be named after his father, Milton Schwartz, and the failure to do so would be in breach of the
alleged naming rights agreement his father had with the School. In his deposition, Jonathan Schwartz

confirmed this contention:

Q. So your contention is that in 1989 there was an agreement that both the
lower school and the campus be named after your father; is that correct?

A. Any school that was on that piece of land was the Milton I. Schwartz
Hebrew Academy.

See Ex. 1, J. Schwartz July 28, 2016 Dep. at 23:9-14.

Q. And by the same token, there was never an agreement that it would be called
the Milton 1. Schwartz Educational Campus either; correct?

A No, that's what it was.

See id at 23:3-7.

While Jonathan Schwartz may feign ignorance about his knowledge of the alleged violations of

the purported naming rights agreement by the Adelson Campus, the undisputed evidence irrefutably

-3-
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demonstrates that Jonathan Schwartz was on notice and had reasonable access to information as early
as March 21, 2008 that would have permitted him to discover the alleged violations of the purported
naming rights agreement including:
¢ Jonathan Schwartz testified in his deposition that he learned of changes to the name of the
school and diminishment of the perceived naming interest he alleges his father obtained as

these events happened throughout the years “2007, ‘8, ‘9, °10, ‘11, ©12, *13, ‘14 .., .” See

Exhibit 2 to Mot. for Partial Summary Judgment Regarding Statute of Limitations at 51:3-16,
e The Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation providing notice that The Milton
1. Schwariz Hebrew Academy was being renamed the Dr. Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson
Educational Institute, was filed with the Nevada Secretary of State on March 21, 2008, See
Exhibit 1 to Motion for Partial Summary Judgment Regarding Statute of Limitations.
¢ The Adelson Campus’ website snapshot from September 7, 2008 stated that “[t}he Adelson
Educational Campus consists of three schools:”, including the “The Dr. Miriam and

Sheldon G. Adelson Middle School, spanning grades 5-8...” See Exhibit 2, Wayback

002181

machine screenshot dated September 7, 2008 of Adelsoncampus.org; see also Exhibit 3, J.
Hanlon June 22, 2016 Dep. at 73:16-77:18 (wherein Alex LeVeque, counsel for the Estate,
explains how he got the September 7, 2008 website snapshot from the School’s website.)

e The Estate affirmatively stated in its Petition for Declaratory Relief filed on May 28, 2013,
that the “Executor became aware of the Academy’s breach on or about March 2010.” See the
Estate’s Petition for Declaratory Relief filed May 28, 2013 at 5:10-11.

¢ In early March 2010, Jonathan Schwartz sent a proposed settlement agreement to both the
Head of Schools, Paul Schiffman, and the President of the Adelson School and Adelson
Educational Campus, Victor Chaltiel, regarding the Estate’s purported naming rights
violations. See Exhibit 4, Draft Agreement, EST-0020-23, This Draft Agreement clearly
denotes and demonstrates Jonathan Schwartz understood that the land the School occupies
was named and referred to as the Adeison Educational Campus.

¢ On May 10, 2010, Jonathan Schwartz sent a letter via hand delivery, certified mail, and

facsimile to the Board and a second proposed settlement agreement due to what he perceived

-4-
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as naming rights violations by the School for the past 2 and 1/2 years. See Exhibit A-II to
Opp. to Motion for Partial Summary Judgment Regarding Statute of Limitations, EST-0001-

23. In his letter, Jonathan Schwartz states in pertinent part that:

The fact that the School has apparently been re-titled the Adelson
Educational Campus and that the middle school has been re-named the
Adelson Middle School violated the Agreement and the 2007 Gala Docs.

The Draft Settlement basically accepts what the school is already doing
despite the fact that some of what the school has done in the last 2 and 2
years breached the Agreements. See id at EST-00003 (emphasis added).

Even though the Estate contends that the earliest Jonathan Schwartz could have been on notice
is 2011 or 2012, the undisputed facts demonstrate that he not only had reasomable aceess to
information as of March 21, 2008, that would have allowed him to discover the alleged violations of
the purported naming rights agreement, but he admittedly had notice of the breach as his own letter in
2010 spells out. One cannot get better evidence of the running of the statute of limitations than the
written admission of the Plaintiff of that fact. Accordingly, the statute of limitations for the Estate’s
claims for relief had elapsed by the time the Estate finally filed its Petition on May 28, 2013, and these
claims must be dismissed as a matter of law.

1L
LEGAL ARGUMENT
A. The Estate’s Equitable Estoppel Argument is Meritless.

Recognizing that its claims are time barred under the applicable statute of limitations, the Estate
now argues that it would have timely filed its Petition, but for the fraudulent actions of the School as
evidenced by five (5) letters or envelopes that happened to bear the name “Milton L. Schwartz Hebrew
Academy” in the letterhead and the acceptance of money from Jonathan Schwartz made out to the
“Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy.” See Opp. at 2:8-22. Equitable estoppel “comes into play only
after the limitations period has run and addresses ... the circumstances in which a party will be estopped
from asserting the statute of limitations as a defense to an admittedly untimely action because his

conduct has induced another into forbearing suit within the applicable limitations period.” See Lantzy
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v. Centex Homes, 31 Cal. 4th 363, 383 (2003), as modified (Aug. 27, 2003). However, the doctrine of
equitable estoppel only applies if “the plaintiff proceeds diligently once the truth is discovered.” See id
at 384. Equitable estoppel, including any disputed issue of fact, is to be decided by the court, even
if there are disputed issues of fact. See Hopkins v. Kedzierski 170 Cal. Rptr. 3d 551, 568 (2014).
Here, the Estate’s argument that the Adelson Campus should be equitably estopped from
asserting a statute of limitations defense fails for a variety of reasons. Noticeably absent from the
Estate’s argument is any affirmative assertion that the Adelson Campus prevented or affirmatively
deterred Jonathan Schwartz from timely filing his claim. The five (5) letters or envelopes that the
Estate relies on do not demonstrate any conduct by the School that would prevent Jonathan Schwartz
from timely filing suit. See Fxs. 28-32 to Opp. While the “Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy”
appears on the letterhead, so does the “The Adelson School” logo. See Exs. 28 and 29 to Opp. When
counsel for the Estate asked Board member, Phillip Kantor, in his deposition about the existence of the

dual logos on the May 28, 2008, letterhead he responded:

Q. All right. T know this wasn't sent by you. I just wanted to ask you questions
about the letterhead itself. Do you see on this letter that there are two logos,
one for the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy and then one for the
Adelson school?

A. Yes.

Q. During this period of time, May 2008, was it your recollection that the
schools were still being called two different schools, the Milton I. Schwartz
Hebrew Academy and the Dr. Miriam and Sheldon Adelson School?

A. Yes.
See Exhibit 5, P. Kantor June 23, 2016 Dep. at 81:7-23. Based on Mr. Kantor’s testimony it is clear
the April 17, 2008 and May 28, 2008 letters were accurate. Thus, the Estate’s assertion that these letters
demonstrate misrepresentations is wildly inaccurate. Additionally, the envelopes and letter in Exhibits
30-32, also expressly reference the existence of the “Dr. Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson Educational
Campus.” See Exs. 30-32 to Opp. The School clearly was not hiding the fact that the land where the
school sat was called the “Dr. Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson Educational Campus.” Absent from

these letters are any statements by the School or its Board that Jonathan Schwartz should not take legal
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action or encouragement to wait to file a legal claim that generally support an equitable estoppel
finding.

Morcover, the Estate’s suggestion that Jonathan Schwartz was somehow induced to not timely
file his action is belied by Jonathan Schwartz’s own statements in his May 10, 2010 letter to the Board.
In the letter, Jonathan Schwartz states that some of the actions of the School in the last 2 % years
breached the alleged naming rights agreement. See Ex. A-Il to Opp. to Motion for Partial Summary
Judgment Regarding Statute of Limitations at EST-00003. Based on this statement, it is overtly
apparent that Jonathan Schwartz was not ignorant to the true state of the facts and was aware of the
name change of the school and the actions of the Board in the years leading up to sending the letter. In
fact, Jonathan Schwartz goes as far in the May 2010 letter to detail what he considered as the

objectionable conduct:

The fact that the School has apparently been re-titled the Adelson Educational
Campus and that the middle school has been re-named the Adelson Middle School
violated the Agreement and the 2007 Gala Docs.

Id. at EST-00003.

The doctrine of equitable estoppel is also inapplicable due to the Estate’s failure to diligently
bring the action. See Lantzy v. Centex Homes, 31 Cal. 4th 363, 384 (2003). In his early May 2010 letter
to the Board, Jonathan Schwartz alleges the School had breached the naming rights agreement for 2 %%
years, yet, the Estate waited three (3) more years before filing its Petition.! If the Estate believed it had
been aggrieved for the past 2 2 years then it made little sense why it continued to wait before instituting
an action. This failure to diligently bring the action further precludes the application of equitable

estoppel in this matter.

! Jonathan Schwartz states in his Declaration in support of the Estate’s Opposition that “[hjad I been aware of
the true facts and circumstances of the School’s breach of the agreement...l would have proceeded with court
intervention immediately. See Exhibit A to Opp. at §17. This self-serving statement is completely contradicted
by Jonathan Schwartz’s inaction in this case. Specifically, he affirmatively asserts in his May 10, 2010 letter that
he knew the School had breached the naming rights agreement for 2 ¥ years, but Jonathan did not seek court
intervention until May 28, 2013. There was nothing immediate about Jonathan’s actions in this case. Due to the
contradictory and self-serving nature of the statements, Jonathan Schwartz’s Declaration is wholly unreliable
and, without corroborating evidence, cannot create a genuine issue of material fact necessary to preclude
summary judgment. See Clauson v. Lloyd, 103 Nev. 432, 434-35, 743 P.2d 631, 633 (1987).
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In summary, there is no factual support to the Estate’s contention that equitable estoppel
precludes the Adelson Campus from asserting the statute of limitations as a defense. As such, the
Adelson Campus should be permitted to assert that the Estate’s claims are time barred under the

applicable statute of limitations.

B. There is No Genuine Issue of Material Fact that Jonathan Schwartz had Facts before Him
that Would Have Put Him on Notice in March 2008 as to the Existence of an Alleged
Breach of any Naming Rights Agreement.

It is undisputed that Jonathan Schwartz had reasonable access to facts in 2008, including
publicly filed governance documents and the School’s website, which would put a reasonable person
on notice of any alleged breach of a naming rights agreement. “[T]he statute of limitations begins to
run when the [plaintiff] has before him facts which would put a reasonable person on inquiry notice of
his possible cause of action[.]” Massey v. Litton, 99 Nev. 723, 669 P.2d 248, 251 (1983). “The focus is
on the [plaintiff's] knowledge of or access to facts rather than on her discovery of legal theories.” Id at
252. If a party’s knowledge is not “complete[,] she [is] under a duty to exercise proper diligence to
learn more.” Aldabe v. Adams, 81 Nev. 280, 28485, 402 P.2d 34, 36 (1965), overruled on other
grounds by Siragusa v. Brown, 114 Nev. 1384, 1393, 971 P.2d 801, 807 (1998).

Jonathan Schwartz testified that he learned of changes to the name of the school and

diminishment of the perceived naming interest he alleges his father obtained as these events happened

throughout the years “2007, °8, 9, “10, ‘11, ‘12, *13, ‘14 . .. .” See Ex. 2 to Mot. at 51:3-16. At the
time he began to hear about the purported diminishment of the naming rights in 2007, Jonathan
Schwartz had a duty to exercise proper diligence to learn more regarding the alleged contractual
breaches and tortious conduct that he alleges occurred in this action. See Aldabe v. Adams, 81 Nev.,
280, 28485, 402 P.2d 34, 36 (1965). It is unquestionable that in 2008, Jonathan Schwartz had
reasonable access to at least two (2) sources of information regarding the purported breaches of the
naming rights interest. First, the Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation filed with the
Nevada Secretary of State on March 21, 2008, provided notice that the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew
Academy was being renamed the Dr. Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson Educational Institute. See Ex. 1

to Mot. Second, the Adelson Campus’ website from September 7, 2008, stated that “[t/he Adelson

-8-
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Educational Campus consists of three schools:”, including the “The Dr. Miriam and Sheldon G.
Adelson Middle School, spauning grades 5-8...” See Ex. 2. Therefore, it is irrefutable that Jonathan
Schwartz had access to uncontroverted facts in 2007 and 2008 that would put a rcasonable person on
inquiry notice of his possible causes of action in this matter.

While the Adelson Campus contends that Jonathan Schwartz discovered the name change as of
March 21, 2008, even taking the website snapshot taken on September 7, 2008 as the date of discovery,
the Estate’s claims for breach of an oral contract® and fraud in the inducement’ are time-barred as the
Estate did not file its action uatil May 23, 2013, Accordingly, the Adelson Campus requests that
summary judgment be entered in its favor on the Estate’s the Estate’s second, fourth, fifth, sixth,

seventh, and eighth claims for relief.

C. Alternatively, the Estate’s Claim for Fraud in the Inducement is Time Barred as
Jonathan Schwartz Admits He Became Aware of the School’s Alleged Breach No Later
than March 2010.

Assuming arguendo that the Court is unwilling to find that Jonathan Schwartz had access to
facts in 2007 and 2008 that would put a reasonable person on inquiry notice of his possible causes of
action in this matter, alternatively, the Court should find that the Estate’s causes of action accrued no
later than March 2010 based on the Estate’s admission and the corroborating facts in this matter. The
Estate admits in its Petition for Declaratory Relief filed on May 28, 2013, that the “Executor became
aware of the Academy’s breach on or about March 2010.” See Petition at 5:10-11. That admission
cannot be refuted by the contradictory statement by the Estate in order to gin up a contested fact. That
petition was verified, under oath by Jonathan Schwartz, and this by itself is justification for granting
this Motion. Moreover, in early March 2010, Jonathan Schwartz sent a proposed settlement agreement
to both the Head of Schools, Paul Schiffman, and President of the Adelson School and Adelson
Educational Campus, Victor Chaltiel, regarding the Estate’s purported naming rights violations. See
Ex. 4, Draft March 2010 Settlement Agreement, EST-0020-23. This Draft Settlement Agreement

irrefutably establishes that by no later than March 2010, Jonathan Schwartz discovered and understood

2 The statute of fimitations for breach of an oral agreement is four years. See NRS 11.190(2)(c).
3 The statute of limitations for a claim for fraud in the inducement is three years. See NRS 11.190(3)(d).

9.
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that the 1and the School occupies was named and referred to as the Adelson Educational Campus. See
id. After all, it is Jonathan Schwartz’s contention that the campus should be the Milton 1. Schwartz
Educational Campus under the purported naming interest he alleges his father obtained. See Ex. 1, J.
Schwartz July 28, 2016 Dep. at 23:3-7.

Using the March 2010 draft settlement agreement as the alternative accrual date of the Estate’s
causes of action, the Estate’s fraud in the inducement claim should have been instituted no later than
March 2013. As the Estate did not file its Petition for Declaratory Relief until May 23, 2013, the Estate’s
fraud in the inducement claim is time barred as a matter of law and the Adelson Campus should be
granted summary judgment on this claim.

Iv.
CONCLUSION

For all the reasons indicated above, the Adelson Campus respectfully requests that this Court
enter a summary judgment order dismissing the Estate’s second, fourth, fifth, sixth, seventh, and
eighth claims for relief against the Adelson Campus.

DATED this f day of August, 2018.

Respectfully Submitted,

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP

-

’/f‘f e
w LS
e e
/ !,,ff ey

7. Randall Jones, Esq. (#1927)

Joshua D. Carlson, Esq. (#11781)

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17th Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for The Dr. Miriam and
Sheldon G. Adelson Educational Institute
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on the Q..Mbday.of August, 2018, Iserved a true and correct copy of THE
ADELSON CAMPUS’ REPLY IN SUPPORT OF ITS MOTION FOR PARTIAL SUMMARY
JUDGMENT REGARDING STATUTE OF LIMITATIONS via the Eighth Judicial District

Court’s CM/ECF electronic filing system, addressed to all parties on the e-service list.

00p188

An employee of Kemp, Jones & Coul@rd, LLP
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. Page 23
something that someone made up after my father

died. It was never gomething my father agreed to.
Q Okay. And by the same token, there was
never an agreement that it would be called the

Milton I. Schwartz Educational Campus either;

correct?
A No, that's what it was.
Q Okay. Well, let -- let me back up.

So your contention is that in 1989 there
was an agreement that both the lower schooi:ahd
the campus be named after your father; is that
correct?

A Any school that was on that piece of
land was the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Acaéémy.

Q Okay. But your contention was that
would include both the lower school and any -- any
name of the campus? |

A Your client, I believe, is
differentiating between the lower school, Ehe'high
school, and the campus. And what I'm telliﬁg'you
is there was no -- any school that appeared.on
that land was the Milton I. Schwartsz Hebre@ |
Academy. ﬁ

This whole notion of separate naﬁing

rights as to the campus, again, was something'that

Litigation Services | 800-330-1112
www.litigationservices.com
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Jilt Hanlon In the Matter of the Estate of Milton I. Schwartz
1 agree with me, is -- well, I think in the Hebrew
2 Academy was dgrades K through €, wasn't.it?
3 A. You know, my kids were in public school.
4 It went up to 5th grade --
5 Q. Right.
6 A. -- elementary and then middle school
7 started at 6th, I believe --
8 Q. Right.
9 A. -- go I'm not sure what -- ewverything in
10 that school changed over time.
11 Q. Yeah. Okay. I think T can help you out.
12 (Exhibit No. 21 marked -
13 for identification.)
14
15 BY MR. LEVEQUE:
16 0. All right. Exhibit 21 -- well, lét me
17 ask you this:
18 Are you familiar with the Wayback
19 Machine?
20 A. No.
21 Q. All right. 1I'll represent to you it's a
22 Web site that archives other Web sites over a period
23 of time, and essentially takes snapshots of the Web
24 site as they appeared on a given date, 'S0 -~
25 A. Wow.
702-476-4500 QASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC - Page: 73
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Jill Hanlon
1 Q. -- you could go back, for example, look
2 to see how Yahoo locked in 1996. 1It's actually kind
3 of fun.
4 But what I did in this exhibit‘is:l took
5 snapshots through the Wayback Machine Q? ;heiURL
& known as adelsoncampus.org, and I want to ask you
7 some guestions about it because it goes tg your
8 previous testimony concerning your recollection that
9 the middle school was eventually part of Adelson --
10 the Adelson School.
11 MR. BLAKE: Can I interpose an;objection
12 just on this line of gquestioning as I hgvgfiq the
13 past? I would just object to the foundation of this
14 document being established by your représentation on
15 the record.
16 You can go ahead and answer the
17 guestions.
18 But, Alex, do you want to agree just to
19 have a running objection as to any foundation -- a
20 running objection as to the foundation:of‘any
21 gquestions asked about this document?
22 I mean, I can object every guestion,
23 but --
24 MR. LEVEQUE: Yes, unless ---I mean, I'll
25 ask the witness if she has a recollection of the Web
702-476-4500 OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 74
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Jill Hanlon artz

1 site content, and then I think that would:resolve

2 the foundation issue you have.

3 MR. BLAKE: Okay.

4 MR. LEVEQUE: So saying "objection" and

5 then I'11 ask specifically if she has recollections

6 of the content of the Web site.

7 BY MR. LEVEQUE:

8 Q. Okay. The first page of Exhibit 21 is a

9 gnapshot, and if you lock -- and I apokogizef- The

10 font's kind of small.

11 If you look at the top of the document,

12 you'll see a date in black that says September 7,

13 2008. \%

)

14 Do you see that? ©
15 A, Ckay. Now I'm old because it locks like

16 '05 to me.

17 MR. BLAKE: I think he's pointing:--

18 THE WITNESS: I'm looking over ‘here.

19 MR. BLAKE: I think he's referring to

20 right there.

21 THE WITNESS: Ch, okay.

22 BY MR. LEVEQUE:

23 Q. Do you see 1t?

24 A. I see -- yes.

25 Q. September 7, 20087?
702-476-4500 OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC N Page: 75
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Jit{ Hanlon In the Matter of the Estate qf Milton I. Schwartz
1 A. Yes.
2 Q. Okay. My representation to you is that
3 this is a page from the adelsoncampus.org Web site
4 as of September 7, 2008.
5 Fair enough?
6 A. Yes.
7 Q. Okay. Did you ever go on the Web site
8 during your tenure?
9 A, I'm sure I did.
10 Q. Okay. Do you recall this Web page,
11 Educational for Life?
12 A. Yes. I know they had something titled
13 Education for Life, ves. %
14 Q. Okay. If you go down to the bottom of S
15 this -- of the description of the school, dyou'll see
16 some text that says, "The Adelson Educational Campus
17 congists of three schools.
18 "The Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy
19 provides students from 18 months through 4th grade
20 with a highly nurturing academic environment."
21 Then it goes down and says, -"The
22 Dr. Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson Middle School,
23 span grades 5 through 8, offers students meaningful
24 and exciting opportunities for scholarly personal
25 growth.™
702-476-4500 OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC : Page: 76
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Jill Hanlon In the Matter of the Estate of Milton 1. Schwartz
1 And then the third bullet point is, "The
2 Dr. Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson Upper ' School,

3 encompassing grades 9 through 12, educates students
4 to hone their critical thinking skills ‘and- prepares
5 them for higher education.”
6 Do you see all three of those?
7 Al Yes.
8 0. Is that consistent with your' récollection
9 of how the school was divided as of September 7,

10 20087

11 A, Probably, ves.

12 Q. All right. 2And welve -- . & I

13 A. I just don't recall where gréde 5 fell.
14 Q. Sure. Falr enough.

15 Do you have any reascon to dispute the

le accuracy of the information provided orl the school's
17 Web site?

18 A, No.

19 Q. Okay. And do you see at the bottom of

20 the summary of the school, it's provided by Paul

21 Schiffman, Head of Schocl?

22 A. Yes.

23 MR, BLAKE: Objection. Foundation on

24 that one.

25 | ////

702-476-4500 ASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC o Page: 77
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AGRE/ EMENT BETWEEN THE, ESTATE OF MILTQN L. SCHWARTZ .
AND THE MH,TON L. SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY

This Agreement (ke “Agreemcnt”) madg:land mtared o this _ day of March,
2010 by and between the Estate.of Milton L. Schwirtz (“Estate™), the Mitton 1. Schwartz '
Revocable Family Trast.(“Trust™), by and througl its Exectttor and Trustee, A. Jonathan
Schwartz (“Schwartz”).and: the: Mﬂton I_ SchWartz cbrew Aeademy (“IVfU.SHA "Yand the
Adelson Fducationak Campus and or the ‘Adelson School (collectively, “Adelson School™), by
and through its President, Victor Chaltiel (*Chaltiel”) with reference to the following facts:

A.  Atsection 2.3 of the Last Will and Testament of Milton I. Schwartz dated February 5,
2004 (the “Will%), the Wﬂl provides, in pertmem part, a-beguest to.the MISHA in the
amount of $500,000 in the form 'of securities. (stotks bonds or cash). with'the’ lalgest
profit 5o thabthe Estate can'take advantage of the Tovr codt basis' ‘and increased price'as

directed in-the 5ol discretion of fhe Executor (Jonathan: Schwartz) (the “Bequest”). The

purpose of the Bequest isto ﬁmd scholarships fm' J ewish children only (“Purpose™.

B. Pursuant-to the Ciark County Assessors Office, the MISHA is situated on the iand known

as (parcel number 138-19-516-001) (the “Land”).

C. ‘The term the *“Schoul” or. thc “Sﬁd{'éls hergin sha]l refer coljctively to the Milton L.
Schwartz, Hebrew Academy the @;}School and ot the Adelson Edugational
Campus. J,u ;"

ﬂ«b ‘

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mumaf prormses, covenants and agreements herein

canteined, the parties promise, covenant and agree as foliows

W

m Contingent upon all signatories gxeculion-of the Agreement by March 8, ?DIOand

delivery of the Agreement by that date to Schwartz ‘the' Bequest shali be made to MISHA

1o Jater than March 12, 2010,

{2)  Theschool located on flie Land fgrad@s Pre’K through Fourth) and at any new Iocafi_hp .
shall be known in perpetuity as the Milton I Schwariz Hebrew Academy. Any and all by-

faws, agreements, articles of § moorporat:on opctatmg agreemenits or other documents
asspciated with the Schoﬂls 1ocated onthe Land. or. at any new.location shall heretofore,
and in perpetuity, identify grades Pré-K- ﬂ]rough Foutth asthe M’zlmn L Schwartz Hebrew
Acaderay.

(3)  The MISHA shall prominently depict signage on the face of the building housing the Pre-
K. through Fourth grades (facing Hillpointe Ave.) (situated on the Land) and at any new
Tocation, and at all enrandes therefore, exclusively identifying it (and regularly

_ rmuntammg zt) as 1he Mslron L Scléwartv Hebrew Acadcmy 50° that it is clemly cvident to

Hﬂlpomte Ave located on the MISHA as of Mamh 3 2010 18 acqeptab!e to Schwartz,

DR AFT o
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(6)

(7

(8)

(9)

(10)

DR f,_LFT

All letter—head statwnaxy, correspﬂndence pmmouona] matendl webmtes, business. -
cards, fundra;sers advertisements, ete, (hemmaﬁe: “Media™) associated with the Schools
shall cleatly and prominently identify the Milton I Schwartz Hebrew Academy as grades
Pre-K through Fourth in perpetuity. All Mediashall depict a logo bearing the name, the
Milton I Schwartz Hebrew Academy Gn bold all capped letters), no smaller than any
other logo lucatcd on, theface of said be ropsenably-approved of by the Trust
and the Schools- {“Logo”) “The oregoing shialt he completcd roJater than.the start of the
2010-2011 school year, For purposes of Qlanﬂcanon, the 2008 Logo of the Milton L.
Schwartz Hebrew Auademy whith appeared on that certain tax receipt dated May 28,
2008 (attached hereto) is accepitsble with the exception that the wording “MILTON I
SCHWARTZ" shall be in all capital letters, bolded.

The interion ma.m enfrance of the MISHA simll pwmmentiy house a pmntmg andor
photograph of’ Milton, L Schwanz (“MIS”) in. pemetmty, to'be appx ‘oved ofby’ Schwartz, .
which shall include a plaque. hstmg Miitonl. Schwartz and 1dent1ﬁ'mg Milton E Schwartz
as the founder of the Mﬂtﬁn I. Schwartz, chraw -Academy.

The website of the Schools sl'i’éle ominently (in perpetuity) list the MISI—IA as grades
28

Pre-K through Fourth and. sﬁ"ali mci_- ma desgription as follows

The Milton I Schwariz Hebrew Acade&gﬁ&‘}% e {0 the Jower school, grades pre-X .
through Fourth.- The Milton I Schweinz Heb}gew Academywas established | In 1958
through the.generosity of Las Vegas businessmian Milton I. Schwartz.and others who:
answered a need in the Southetn Nevadla community for a strong secular and Juddaic: .
educational institution for elememary schoo{—agcd chzldren ,

When the Bequest is funded, it shall act to-satisfy m full any obiigation lial:}ility or duty

of Milton 1. Schwartz, the Estate or the Trust teward or aS§M1ated with the MISHA or the
Adelson Schoe], Upon MISHA’s Iecelpt of the:Bequest, a full and final release of Milton
1. Schwm:tz the Estate the Trust, A. Ionathan Schwartz and the heirs, assigns and '

beneficiaries of Mziton 1. Schwariz, the Estatc .or Trust shalt be effectuated,

"The MISHA shall supply the Esiate of Milton-1. Schwartz and the Mitton 1, Schwartz
Revocable Family Trust (at the direction of the Trust) with a receipt for tax purposes from
the MISHA listing its iRS 501 (€)(3) non-proflt tzx. id aumber for the Bequest.

Ag specified in the Will, fhc Bequest shall be used sclely for the purpose of fuudmg
scholarships for Tewmh children’ cnly it the MISHA

Qnee per year, the MISHA agrees to rcasqnably cooperate with members of the Milton 1.
Schwartz family, at a time when it v-:foul_cl.ngt interfere with school activities, for the™
Schwartz, Family’s access to the School for viewing and verification of compliance with
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the foregoing terms-and condltlons The Schwartz Famliy, its agents, ete. shall mdenmlfy
and hold harmless the Schoal for its access to the premises,

(1) . Miscellaneous. This Agresment con:stltutes the entire Agreement between the Estate the
Trust, SchWartz, the §chwariz Fﬁmﬂy, its heirs, as:ilgns, and benefigiaries and the
MISHA, Aﬂelson School and or the Adelson Educannnal Campus This Agreemem.
confirms the understanding of the par;_ rega:dmgthﬂ ‘natog Aghts of the Estate of
Milion T, Schwartz with. regard to the Schools. N o umendinent, alleration or withdrawal
of the Agreement shaltbe valid or bmdmg upléss made in writing and signed by each of

‘the parties atfected by such provision, This- Agreement shall be binding upon the heirs,
successors and assignees of all of the parties associated with the Schools. Each of the
parties acknowledges thatit has been advised. to obtmn leg#l counsel, of its own choosing
reparding: thls Agreement and.that t,‘ as availed itself af said ]egai coungel. The terms
and condmens of this Agnsemen lﬁu;t be constmed agdinstany party regardiess of
whom the Agreement was drafted by ri‘f‘o.glpﬂy to this Agreement shall assign its right or
delegate its.duties hereunder withautths pugﬁhr n consent of the other parties,
Whenever possible, each provision of this A.g_re;;\éht shall be interpreted so as to be
effective and valid vmder applicable law, but if any proyision of the Agreement shail be
prohibited or invalid under appligable lav, the remainder of such provision and the -
remaining provisions of thls Agreement shall continue in full force.and effect. Thls
Agreement represents a settlement of disputed-facts. In the cvent of any dispute or
litigation concerning the:terms ofthis Ag;reemem, the prevailing party shall receive:
-reftibursement forits: reasonable legal fees., Each of the signatories to this Agreement
warrant and cettify that 1hey have the authority to.execute the Agreement int the capacity -
indicted herein.- This Agreement may be-executed in counterparts which all together shall

- constitute one Agreement, binding on alf parties, Th.lS Agrcement sha. I be oonstrued

" under the laws of the State of Nevadd ,

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the undenslgned Parties. hmeta have. mceouted thig Agreement asof |
the date first written above

Fstate of Milten I, Schwartz, . - Milton T, Schwartz Hebrew Academy,
A Jonathan Schwartz, Executor Victor Chattiel, President
Mifion [ Schwariz Revocanie: Fa:cmly _ N The Adelson Sthool, Victor th_ar el_

Trust, A. Jonathan Schwartz, Trustee } President

[l
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.+ Chaltiel, President
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. The Adelson Fdneational Campis, Victor
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Deposition of:

Phitip A. Kantor, Esq.

Case:
In the Matter of the Estate of Milton [. Schwartz
P0B1300
Date:
06/23/2016

002208

J;ﬁ,d,;,, ﬁmﬂlﬂﬂ REPORTING SERVICES

400 South Seventh Street © Suite 400, Box 7 ¢ Las Vegas, NV 39101
702-476-4500 | www.oasisreporting.com | info@oasisreporting.com
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Philip A. Kantor, Fsq. In the Matter of the .Estate of Milton I. Schwartz
1 A. I do not recall the specific acﬁion, but it is
2 part of that struggle that I talked about earlier to
3 come up with the right marketing message for the
4 community.

5 (Exhibit 18 marked)
6 BY MR. LeVEQUE:
7 Q. Exhibit 18, Mr. Kantor, is a letter that my
8 client received from the Hebrew Academy ﬁhatﬁwas
9 produced in discovery from the 2008 Gala{COmmittee, and
10 do you see that the letter is dated May 20th, 20087
11 A Yes.
12 Q. All right. I know this wasn't sent by you. I
13 just wanted to ask you questions about the letterhead
14 itself. Do you see on this letter that there are two
15 logos, one for the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy
16 and then one for the Adelson school? -
17 A Yes.
18 Q. During this period of time, May52008, was it
19 your recollection that the schools were étill being
20 called two different schools, the Milton I. Schwart:z
21 Hebrew Academy and the Dr. Miriam and Sheldon Adelson
22 School?
23 A, Yes. ?'
24 MR. BLAKE: Object to form, vague.:
25 AR :
702-476-4500 OASIS REPORTING SERVICES, LLC Con Page: 81
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CLERE OF THE COUE :I

J. Randall Jones, Esq. (#1927)

Joshua D. Carlson, Esq. (#11781)

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17th Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Telephone: (702) 385-6000

Facsimile: (702) 385-6001

Attorneys for The Dr. Miriam and
Sheldon G. Adelson Educational Institute

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the Matter of the Estate of Case No.; P061300

Dept. No.:  26/Probat
MILTON I. SCHWARTZ, pt- No robate

REPLY IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR
Deceased. SUMMARY JUDGMENT REGARDING
BREACH OF CONTRACT

The Dr. Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson Educational Institute (the “Adelson Campus” or the
“School”) by and through its counsel, hereby submits its Reply in Support of its Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment Regarding Breach of Contract.

This Reply is made and based upon the following Points and Authorities, any exhibits attached
thereto, the pleadings and papers on file herein, the oral argument of counsel, and such other or further

information as this Honorable Court may request.

|
DATED this 2 day of August, 2018.
KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP

%ﬁfw

J. Randall Jones, Esq. (#1927)

Joshua D. Carlson, Esq. (#11781)

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17" Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for The Dr. Miriam and
Sheldon G. Adelson Educational Institute

-1-

210

002210

Case Number: 07P061300 00

2210



— = e e
L N R N = S = = L I o Y

,_.
.

Las Vegag, Nevada 89169
kjc@kempiones.com

Tel. {702} 383-6000 « Fax; {702) 385-6001

—
Ln

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, ! 7™ Fioor

112200
KEMP, JONES &Zz @OULTHARD, LLP
(o] ) ) (o] ) o] (o] (o] — — —_ —
-] oyt L PN %] (8] — < O oo ~J =)

)
oo

002211

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

L
INTRODUCTION

The Estate’s Opposition simply fails to set forth any admissible evidence that Milton Schwartz
had an enforceable naming rights contract under Nevada law. Even after years of discovery, and 4
twenty-seven (27) page opposition with twenty-four (24) exhibits, the Estate still cannot identify exactly
what document constitutcs the written agreement it claims establishes Milton Schwartz’s naming rights.
And as for the myriad of different, and conflicting documents that the Estate points to as evidence of]
the Schwartz agreement, none of them provide the necessary, material terms of a naming rights
agreement to render any one of them enforceable. Rather, the evidence simply shows that in the past the
School’s Boards made wholly revocable and voluntary decisions to name the Corporation after Milton|
Schwartz to honor his contribution and to foster present and future support, and to put his name on aj
building with no enforceable agreement to do so in perpetuity.

The Estate attempts to provide evidence of the agreement through inadmissible hearsay,

002211

conflicting and contradictory testimony, and miscellaneous documents which clearly do not create an|
enforceable naming rights agreement, Rather than supporting the Estate’s contentions, the Estate’s
reliance on this information — it is simply inappropriate to call it evidence — actually demonstrates the;
appropriateness of granting summary judgment on the Estate’s contract claims. In other words, the
Estate’s conflicting and inconsistent testimony, documents, and theories regarding the terms of the
alleged agreement show that the Estate itself cannot establish what the terms of the alleged agreement
were and, therefore, cannot establish that the Estate ever had an enforceable naming rights agreement
as a matter of law.

An example of the inconsistent and contradictory claims of the Estate is the latest iteration of]
Milton Schwartz’s alleged naming rights agreement. Materially contrary to other alleged agreements,
the Estate now claims that the terms of the agreement are as follows: that Milton Schwartz would donate
$500,000 in exchange for legally enforceable naming rights against the “school” in perpetuity. Even if
the Court accepted this latest version of the Estate’s contract claims they would still fail because, as

alleged, this bare-bones agreement is legally insufficiently as it clearly lacks sufficient details such as

-
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the scope of the agreement, i.c., which document is the Estate even referring to, does it cover the one
building that existed at the time or all buildings that might be built on the property in the future, does i
cover other property and buildings that the School might acquire in the future, does it cover the name of
the corporation, and is missing numerous material terms, including terms related to breach and remedies.
The Estate’s litigation position as to the scope of the alleged naming rights agreement directly conflicts
with its own evidence, and serves only to demonstrate that the scope of the alleged agreement is nof
sufficiently definite to permit enforcement of its terms.

Further, the Estate’s failure to establish the existence of a valid, written agreement fo satisfy the
statute of frauds that sets forth all of the required terms in sufficient detail or otherwise establish the
existence of enforceable agreement precludes the Estate’s contract claims as a matter of law.

Finally, even if the Estate can show the existence of an enforceable agreement between Milton|
Schwartz and the School, the admissible evidence shows that Milton Schwartz failed to perform under
the terms of the parties’ agreement. Therefore, even assuming the Estate could overcome the enormous
hurdle of proving the existence of a legally enforceable naming rights agreement that can bind the School
in perpetuity in spite of the lack of an actual written contract, the Estate cannot demonstrate that Milton|
Schwartz lived up to his end of the bargain. Accordingly, the Court must grant summary judgment on|
all of the Estate’s contract claims.

11.

LEGAL ARGUMENT

A. The Estate Failed to Meet its Burden to Show the Existence of an Enforceable Naming
Rights Agreement under Nevada Law.

The Estate failed and cannot meet its burden to establish by a preponderance of the evidence the
existence and terms of a legally enforceable contract. A valid contract cannot exist when material terms
are lacking or are insufficiently certain and definite. See May v. Anderson, 121 Nev. 668, 672, 119 P.3d|
1254, 1257 (2005). The court must be able to ascertain what is required of the respective parties. See id.
Here, the Estate failed produce the requisite written agreement, setting forth the material terms of the
contract, as required to satisfy the statute of frauds, and instead rely solely on inadmissibly hearsay,

conflicting testimony, and miscellaneous documents that cannot constitute an enforceable agreement,

3
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even if read together. Furthermore, even assuming the Estate could proceed on the two basic terms 1t
now contends form the entirety of the alleged naming rights agreement, these minimal terms cannot
withstand scrutiny to constitute an enforceable agreement because they are woefully vague as to scope.
Moreover, material terms are missing altogether. The Estate’s failure to produce admissible evidence to
establish the existence of a legally enforceable agreement that sets forth the requisite material terms with

sufficient detail is fatal to the Estate’s breach of contract claims.

1. The Estate’s own changing theories and conflicting evidence demonstrates that the
Estate cannot meet its burden to establish the existence of a valid and enforceabie
contract.

The Estate’s own conflicting theories regarding the terms of the alleged naming rights agreement
conclusively establishes the Estate’s inability to succeed on its contract claims. Even at this stage in the
proceedings, the Estate cannot provide the material terms of the alleged agreement.

At the onset of this litigation, the Estatc alleged that Milton Schwartz donated $500,000 to the
school in return for which the school would change its name “in perpetuity” to the “Milton L. Schwartz
Hebrew Academy.” See Petition for Declaratory Relief, filed on May 28, 2013, at 2:13-15. Then, after!
Jonathan Schwartz was confronted with conflicting evidence that the terms of the alleged agreement
were actually that Milton Schwartz would donate $1 million in exchange for naming rights, Jonathan|
Schwartz testified that the agreement was actually that Milton Schwartz would donate $500,000 and|
raise $500,000 in exchange for the alleged naming rights. Ex. 9 at 14:17-24. Specifically, Jonathan

Schwartz testified to the following:

Q: And it was your ~ was it your understanding that the agreement was that
there would be 500,000 given to the school, or that there was a million, as Dr.
Lubin said in her book?

A:No. Here’s — here’s what the agreement was: The agreement was that my

father give 500,000 and raise 500,000. That’s how the million was arrived at,
and that’s what he did. He personally gave half a million dollars, and then he
rose — raised another half a million dollars to total the million.

Id Tndeed, this was Milton Schwartz’s version of the story, as the Estate well knows as it relied on
Milton Schwartz’s statement to that effect in prior pleadings. See Opposition to Motion for Partial

Summary Judgment, filed on May 27, 2014, at 1:24-25 (Citing to the following statement from

A-
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videotaped interview with Milton Schwartz: “I raised a half a million and gave half a million and they
agreed to name the school the Milton I. Schwart; Hebrew Academy in perpetuity.”). Thus, the “donate
$500,000 / raise $500,000” issue is not a “straw man” set up by the school, but is Estate’s own position
regarding the terms of the alleged agreement,

In its Opposition, the Estate has now reverted back to the position that the terms of the alleged|
agreement were simply that Milton Schwartz would donate $500,000, and in exchange the “school
would name itself the Milton 1. Schwartz Hebrew Academy in perpetuity. See Opp. at 18:12-13. The|
Estate’s ever changing and inconsistent positions throughout the litigation demonstrate that]
Estate itself is not certain as to the material terms of the alleged contract. This is made worse by
the fact that the Estate’s position directly conflicts with Milton Schwartz’s own beliefl as to terms of the
alleged agreement. Therefore, the School is entitled to summary judgment as a matter of law on the|
Estate’s breach of contract claims because the Estate failed to demonstrate the existence of a valid and

enforceable contract.

a. The evidence relied on by the Estate serves only to demonstrate that the material ferms of|
the alleged agreement are not sufficiently definite.

002214

The evidence the Estate relies on further demonstrates that the Estate cannot establish the terms
of the alleged agreement with any measure of certainty, let alone by a preponderance of the evidence.
For instance, although the Estate selectively references a portion of Tamar Lubin’s deposition testimony
to support its original theory that Milton only had to donate $500,000 for naming rights in perpetuity,
Opp. at 6:6-12, Tamar Lubin clarified that Milton Schwartz actually pledged $1 million to the school,
and that the agreement by the school to change its name was bésed on Milton Schwartz’s $1 million|
dollar pledge, but that the school only ever received $500,000. See June 9, 2016 Deposition Transcript
of Tamar Lubin Saposhnik, at 67:16-20, 68:10-71:11, attached hereto as Exhibit 21.

The Estate’s reliance on statements from Tamar Lubin’s 1993 affidavit are likewise unavailing
because these statements fail to set forth the amount of the donation or otherwise mention an actual
agreement. Opp. at 6:1-5. Thus, even assuming Tamar’s hearsay statements were admissible, they do

not support the Estate’s position. Moreover, as discussed below, statements in that same affidavit
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contradict and discount statements in Milton Schwartz’s affidavit, which the Estate attempts to rely onl
to show the existence and terms of the alleged agreement.

Finally, the witness testimony the Estate relies on to show the terms of the alleged agreement]
likewise demonstrates its terms have not been established by a preponderance of the evidence. Lenard:
Schwartzer testified that it was his understanding that the school would be named after Milton Schwartz]
“as long as it was a Hebrew day school.” Opp. at 7:11-13. Roberta Sabbath testified that Milton
Schwartz’s million dollar (not $500,000) pledge was “to name the building after him.” See Opp. at
7:17-22 (emphasis added). Conversely, the Estate contends that the terms of the alleged agreement
required that the corporation, entire campus, the middle school, and any future acquired land and/ox
buildings were to be named after Milton Schwartz in perpetuity, regardless of any other considerations.
See Ex. 22, July 28, 2016 Deposition Transcript of Jonathan Schwartz, at 20:21-21:18, 22:11-27:4.
These discrepancies in the Estate’s own evidence regarding the terms and scope of the alleged naming
rights agreement demonstrate that the terms are unknown, even to the witnesses who were allegedly

present when the agreement was entered into, and necessitating summary judgment.

b. The Estate also cannot rely on Milton Schwarty’s self-serving affidavit statements to
establish the existence of an enforceable contract.

Milton Schwartz’s affidavits constitute inadmissible hearsay and cannot be considered.'
Milton’s self-serving affidavits were prepared in support of prior litigation in which he was a party is
the perfect example of hearsay that provides no assurances of accuracy.?

While the Estate relies on statements from Tamar Lubin’s 1993 affidavit to support its claim that]
an agreement exists, Opp. at 15:15-22, that very same affidavit contains statements that directly conflict

with Milton Schwartz’s affidavit statements.? Further, in her affidavit Tamar Lubin states “I have read

! See The Adelson Campus’ Motion in Limine No. 6 to Preclude Respondent from Introducing or Relying on the
Affidavit of Milton L. Schwartz, and the Reply in Support thereof.
1 Id.

3 Compare Opp. at Ex. A, § 6 of the Second Supplemental Affidavit of Milton [ Schwartz, Opp. at Ex. A (“That
Affiant solicited contributions from Paul Sogg and Robert Cohen, That as a result of Affiant’s efforts, Paul Sogg
pledged to donate $300,000, and that as a result of Affiant’s efforts Robert Cohen pledged to donate $100,000),
with Opp. at Ex. E, at § 21 (“Prior to Mr. Schwartz’s chairmanship, I initiated the contribution from Paul Sogg,
from Robert Cohen, from George Rudiak and others. Although these contributions were initiated prior to Mr.
Schwartz’s chairmanship, they were paid during his chairmanship in the amount of $300,000, $100,000 and|
$50,000, respectively.”).

-6-
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the Affidavits of Milton Schwartz and others filed by the Plaintiff and must express my genuine shock
and dismay that intentional misrepresentations have been made in such a cavalier fashion.” Opp. at Ex.
E, at § 40. The Estate’s own evidence calls into question the reliability of Milton Schwartz’s hearsay
statements, providing further support that Milton Schwartz’s self-scrving affidavit statements do not
contain the requisite assurances of accuracy. Therefore, while these statements are clearly inadmissible
and cannot be considered by the Court, it is telling that the Estate must rely on evidence that directly
contradicts itself to attempt to provide evidence of the terms of the alleged agreement.

Regardless, Milton Schwartz’s self-serving affidavit statements do not establish the existence of]
a contract for irrevocable naming rights between Milton Schwartz and the school. At best, these
statements show that Milton Schwartz subjectively believed he had a naming rights agreement with the
school. However, Milton Schwartz’s subjective belicfs about the existence of a naming rights contract;
with the School is irrelevant. Although mutual assent is required to form a valid contract, a party’s
subjective intent is immaterial when determining the existence of a contract. May v. Anderson, 121 Nev.
668,672, 119 P.3d 1254, 1257 (2005); James Hardie Gypsum (Nevada) Inc. v. Inquipco, 112 Nev. 1397,
1402, 929 P.2d 903, 906 (1996), overruled on other grounds by Sandy Valley Assocs. v. Sky Ranch
Estates Owners Ass'n, 117 Nev. 948, 955 n. 6, 35 P.3d 964, 968-69 n .6 (2001). Thus, “self-serving
testimony of the parties as to their subjective intentions or understandings is not probative evidence of]
whether the parties entered into a contract.” Id. (quoting Mullen v. Christiansen, 642 P.2d 1345, 1350

(Alaska 1982)).

2. The alleged agreement is unenforceable because it lacks sufficiently specific terms
and is missing material terms altogether.

Here, no enforceable contract exists because Court is unable to ascertain what is required of the|
parties and to compel compliance because the terms as alleged by the Estate are insutficiently definite:
and numerous material terms are lacking. May, 121 Nev. at 672, 119 P.3d at 1257. (*A valid contract
cannot exist when material terms are lacking or are insufficiently certain and definite” for a court “to
ascertain what is required of the respective parties” and to “compel compliancce” if necessary. ).

The different positions taken by the Estate, as set forth above, is the best evidence that a

sufficiently definite and enforceable naming rights agreement was never entered into between the Schook

7.
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and Milton Schwartz, If the Estate itself is not even sure what the terms of the alleged agreement are,
then there can be no question that its terms are not sufticiently definite for the Court to determine 2
contract exists.

Assuming the terms of the agreement are simply that (1) Milton would give $500,000; and in
exchange (2) the “school” would be named after him forever and ever no matter what, as the Estate
contends, the Estate cannot succeed on its breach of contract claims as a matter of law because these
terms are not sufficiently definite to enforce and material terms are notably absent.

First, the scope of the agreement is not sufficiently definite. The agreement does not define what
the “school” is such that the parties know what must be named after Milton I. Schwartz. Because no
term defining “school” exists, the Court cannot determine whether the “school” constitutes the operating]
entity, the original building, all new buildings, the entire campus, any annexed land, and/or some
combination of the above, and, therefore, cannot determine whether a breach occurred or conpel
performance as requested by the Estate.

The conflicting testimony regarding what was to be named after Milton Schwartz demonstrates

002217

that no agreement exists. Lenard Schwartzer testified that it was his understanding that the school would
be named after Milton Schwartz “as long as it was a Hebrew day school.” Opp. at 7:11-13. Roberta;
Sahbath testified that Milton Schwartz’s million dellar (not $500,000) pledge was “to name the building
after him.” See Opp. at 7:17-22 (emphasis added). Conversely, the Estate contends that the terms of the
alleged agreement required that the corporation, entire campus, the middle school, and any future]
acquired land and/or buildings were to be named after Milton Schwartz in perpetuity, regardless of any
other considerations. See Ex. 22, J. Schwartz Dep., at 20:21-21:18, 22:11-27:4. Thus, because it is still
not clear what precisely was to be named after Milton Schwartz, the terms of the agreement as alleged;
by the Estate is wholly lacking the requisite specificity and cannot constitute an enforceable contract.

The detailed agreement prepared by Jonathan Schwartz in an attempt to memorialize and enforce
the alleged naming right agreement between Milton Schwartz and the School is highly probative
evidence that the two basic terms of the naming rights agreement as alleged by the Estate do not
constitute all of the necessary terms to create an enforceable contract or set forth the agreement in

sufficient detail for a court to enforce it as required under Nevada law. See proposed Agreement between

-8-
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the Estate of Milton 1. Schwartz and the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy, attached hereto as
Exhibit 22 at EST-0004-7. Jonathan Schwartz’s proposed agreement contains the following specific
and detailed terms:

o “All letter-head, stationary, correspondence, promotional material, websites,
business cards, fundraisers, advertisements, etc. (hereinafter, "Media") associated
with the Schools shall clearly and prominently identify the Milton 1. Schwartz
Hebrew Academy as grades Pre-K through Fourth in perpetuity. All Media shall
depict a logo bearing the name, the Milton I. Schwartz [febrew Academy (in bold,
all capped letters), no smaller than any other logo located on the face of said Media,
to be reasonably approved of by the Trust and the Schools ("Logo"). The foregoing
shall be completed no later than the start of the 2010-2011 school year. For purposes
of clarification, the 2008 Logo of the Milton I. Schwartz Mebrew Academy which
appeared on that certain tax receipt dated May 28, 2008 (attached hereto) is
acceptable with the exception that the wording "MILTON [. SCHWARTZ" shall be
in all capital letters, bolded.”

o The interior main entrance of the MISHA shall prominently house a painting and or
photograph of Milton 1. Schwartz ("MIS") in perpetuity, to be approved of by
Schwartz, which shall include a plaque listing Milton [. Schwartz and identifying
Milton I. Schwartz as the founder of the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy.

o The website of the Schools shall prominently (in perpetuity) list the MISHA as
grades Pre-K through Fourth and shall include a description as follows:

The Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy is home to the lower school,
grades pre-K through Fourth. The Milton I Schwartz Hebrew Academy
was established in 1988 through the generosity of Las Vegas
businessman Milton 1 Schwartz and others who answered a need in
the Southern Nevada community for a strong secular and Judaic
educational institution for elementary school-aged children.

Id at § (4)-(6).

These notably specific and detailed terms attempting to memorialize Milton Schwartz’s alleged|
naming rights agreement serve only to demonstrate that the basic terms of the contract as alleged by the)
Estate cannot possibly constitute an enforceable agreement because those terms are not sufficiently|
detailed and material terms are missing. The Estate cannot point to any evidence that adequately
addresses what the parties agreed to regarding the scope of the alleged naming agreement, including]
precisely what was to be named after Milton Schwartz and how and where such naming rights were to

be displayed as is set forth in the draft agreement from Jonathan Schwartz.
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Second, terms regarding what would happen in the event of a breach and the applicable remedies
are conspicuously absent from the alleged agreement. The Estate’s position is that the gift was &
conditional gift and that the entire $500,000 must be returned in the event of a breach. However, the
Estate cannot point to any admissible evidence that establishes with certainty that this was the
agreement, The Estate’s position also fails to account for the over twenty-years that the school bore
Milton’s name and highlights the lack the requisite meeting of the minds. Pursuant to the Estate’s
position, if the school (and the campus, and the corporation, and website, and letterhead, and marketing
materials, and all other printed materials, etc.) bore Milton Schwartz’s name as allegedly required for
ninety-eight years and eleven months, and then changed its name (or anything else) before the ninety-
nine year mark, then the School would have to return the entire $500,000. It is inconceivable that the
School would have agreed to such a provision. The Estate’s position on this issue only highlights
precisely why the agreement as alleged by the Estate was required to have been in writing, so that thej
parties would understand what would happen in the event of a breach, and show that the School actually]

agreed to such a one-sided term.

3. The Estate’s breach of contract claim is precluded under the statute of frauds
because no written agreement exists setting forth all the essential elements of the
contract.

Even if the terms of the agreement are as the Estate now contends: (1) Milton would give
$500,000; and in exchange (2) the “school” would be named after him forever, no matter what, the
Estate’s breach of contract claim nonetheless fails as a matter of law because no written contract exists
to satisfy the statute of frauds. The statute of frauds requires that all agreements that cannot be
performed within a year must be in writing. NRS 111.220(1).

Here, the statute of frauds applies to the alleged naming rights agreement because it requires the
School to perform in “perpetuity,” and, therefore, its performance clearly cannot be completed within
one year. The Estate does not dispute that the statute of frauds generally applies to this agreement, but
contends the statute of frauds does not preclude their breach of contract claim because multiple writings

provide evidence of the contract terms, both parties fully performed, the School allegedly acknowledged
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the agreement, and because the Adelson School is estopped from asserting this defense. All of these

contentions fail.

a. The “multiple writings” relied on by the Estate do not constitute an
enforceable contract.

The Estate summarily concludes it can satisfy the statute of frauds based on four (4)
miscellaneous documents: checks, board meeting minutes, school bylaws, and the school’s articles of
incorporation. This contention fails as a matter of law.

First, the documents cited by the Esfate, even when viewed together, do not evidence an
enforceable contract. Nevada law permits multiple writings to be considered together to establish an
enforceable contract. “Separate writings may be considered together to establish a sufficient writing or
memorandum, “even though one of them was not signed by the party to be charged, and neither was a
sufficient memorandum in itself.” Edwards Indus., Inc. v. DTE/BTE, Inc., 112 Nev. 1025, 1032-33, 923
P.2d 569, 574 (1996) (citing Ray Motor Lodge, Inc. v. Shatz, 80 Nev. 114, 11819, 390 P.2d 42, 44
(1964)). “It is the consensus of judicial opinion that such writing must contain all the essential elements
of the contract. The substantial parts of the contract must be embodied in the writing with such a
degree of certainty as to make clear and definite the intention of the parties without resort to orall
evidence.” Stanley v. A. Levy & J. Zentner Co., 60 Nev, 432, 112 P.2d 1047, 1053 (1941) (emphasis
added). Whether a writing is legally sufficient to comply with the statute of frauds presents a question|

of law. See Edwards, 112 Nev. 1025, 103233, 923 P.2d 569, 574.

A memorandum, in order to make enforceable a contract within the statute, may
be any document or writing, formal or informal, signed by the party to be charged
or by his agent actually or apparently authorized thereunto, which states with
reasonable certainty, (a) each party to the contract either by his own name, or by
such a description as will serve to identify him, or by the name or description of
his agent, and (b) the land, goods or other subject-matter to which the contract
relates, and (c) the terms and conditions of all the promises constituting the contract
and by whom and to whom the promises are made.

Id. (citing Restatement of Law Contracts, § 207).
In Edwards, the appellant also presented four documents which it contended constituted
sufficient memoranda of the alleged agreement. Jd. at 1032-33, 923 P.2d at 574. However, the Nevada

Supreme Court determined that the documents did not constitute sufficient memoranda of the alleged
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agreement, either individually or collectively. /d. at 1033, 923 P.2d at 574. The Court reasoned that there
was conflicting testimony regarding two of the documents, one of those two documents merely indicated|
a factual circumstance, but did not establish any of the terms or promises in the alleged agreement, and
a letter between the parties was insufficient because it did not establish the consequence of a defauft oy
establish liability., /d Therefore, the statutes of frauds precluded enforcement of an alleged oral
agreement. /d.

Similarly here, even when viewed together, the miscellaneous documents relied on by the Estate
are not sufficient memoranda of an alleged oral agreement because they do not sufficiently establish the;
substance of the agreement as alleged by the Estate, and material terms of the agreement, mecluding
breach or liability, are lacking altogether.

The three (3) checks from Milton Schwartz to the Hebrew Academy show only that Milton|
Schwartz donated $500,000 to the Hebrew Academy in August of 1989. See Mot. at Ex. 8. The board
meecting minutes from August 14, 1989 merely state that the school recognizes a gift from Milton
Schwartz of an unspecified aﬁlount, and that a letter should be written to him stating the school will be
named after him. See Mot. at Ex. 10. The minutes do not mention any other details and make no
reference to an agreement or contract. See id.

The 1990 Amendment to the Hebrew Academy’s bylaws state that the legal name of the school,
i.e., the name of the corporation only, would be changed to the “Milton 1. Schwartz Hebrew Academy
in perpetuity.” See Opp. at Ex. C. Importantly, the bylaws expressly provide that the bylaws can be|
amended, altered, and repealed by a majority vote of the full board at a duly noticed meeting. See
Opp. at Ex. C at Art. VIII. And, indeed, the bylaws were amended to change name of the school’s
operating entity to the “Hebrew Academy” in 1994. See Opp. at Ex. M. Therefore, the bylaws, which
are clearly subject to change merely by a wajority vote of the board and, in fact, did change during
Milton’s lifetime, cannot possibly form the basis of an enforceable naming rights agreement in
perpetuity.

For the same reasons, the 1990 Certificate of Amendment to the Hebrew Academy’s Articles of]
Incorporation is not sufficient, even when viewed with the other documents, to establish the naming

rights agreement as alleged by the Estate. See Opp. at Ex. K. The articles of incorporation likewise only|
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address the name of the operating entity and could be and, in fact, were amended during Milton
Schwartz’s lifetime. Moreover, the Certificate of Amendment does not contain the phrase “in
perpetuity.” See id Therefore, even when viewed together, these documents cannot constitute an
enforceable contract because, as sct forth above, the terms of the alleged agreement are not sufficiently
definite and several material terms are missing.

At most, these documents show that Milton Schwartz donated $500,000 to the school in 1989,
and as a result, the school voluntarily decided to name its operating entity after Milton Schwartz, 4
decision which could be revoked at any time with a majority vote by the board members. The Adelson|
Campus does not dispute that the school initially decided to name itself after him as a result of his
generous contribution. However, a voluntary and revocable decision by various Boards to recognize and
honor Milton Schwartz for his contribution is simply not the same as an enforceable contract for naming
rights in perpetuity. The extensive and potentially burdensome term of performance required under a
contract “in perpetuity” is the precise reason why the statute of frauds applies to long-term agreements.

Accordingly, the Estate’s failure to adduce sufficient memoranda containing “all the essential
elements of the contract” such that the “substantial parts of the contract” were “embodied in the writing
with such a degree of certainty as to make clear and definite the intention of the parties without resort

to oral evidence,” renders the Estate’s alleged agreement unenforceable as a matter of law.

b. The parties’ alleged performance does not remove the alleged naming rights
agreement from the statute of frauds.

The Estate also incorrectly contends that the statute of frauds does not apply because both parties
fully performed. The fact remains that it is simply not possible for the school to fully perform under the
terms of the agreement as alleged by the Estate because it requires the school to perform in perpetuity,
or ninety-nine years. The Estate fails to provide any authority for its position that Milton Schwartz’s
performance would remove the alleged agreement from the purvicw of the statute of frauds. In Almeciga
v. Ctr. for Investigative Reporting, Inc., 185 F. Supp. 3d 401, 410 (S.D.N.Y. 2016}, the court rejected;
an argument similar to the Estate’s argument here, that both parties fully performed on an agreement
that was meant to apply “in perpetuity” because the plaintiff performed within one year. “[TThe fact that

the plaintiff has fully completed her performance under the contract as that contract is described by her
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is of no moment” where “the defendant's performance ... will continue in perpetuity... Nor would it
matter if defendants had performed for a year or more after entering into the alleged agreement and then
breached. The dispositive point is that defendants could not complete their performance within one year
since their obligation was an ongoing one.” Id, (citations omittcd). The Almeciga court’s reasoning and
application of the statute of frauds is instructive here. Milton Schwartz’s alleged performance and the
School’s decision to name the School after him from 1989 to 1993, and 1999 to 2013 does not constitute]
full performance where the contract is alleged to last “in perpetuity.” Therefore, the parties’ alleged|

performance cannot and does not remove the alleged agreement from the statute of frauds.

c. Testimony of past board members based on their individual understanding of
the facts do not remove the alleged agreement from the statute of frauds.

The Estate contends that the testimony of prior board members regarding their individual
understanding of circumstances that took place over twenty-five years ago are sufficient to demonstrate;
that an enforceable agreement was entered into between Milton Schwartz and the School, and to remove
the agreement from the statute of frauds. The Estate provides no support for its assertion. More
importantly, none of these former board member witnesses testified that they entered into any agreement

with Milton Schwartz in their official capacity and on behalf of the Board.

d. The Estate did not and cannot produce any evidence to support its claim that
the School is equitably estopped from asserting a statute of frauds defense.

The Estate provides no persuasive support for its position that the Adelson School should be]
estopped from asserting a statute of frauds defense. “Estoppel or part performance must be proved by
some extraordinary measure or quantum of evidence.” Zunino v. Paramore, 83 Nev. 506, 509, 435 P.2d
196, 197 (1967). However, the Estate cites to no evidence to support its estoppel argument, let alone an
extraordinary measure or quantum of evidence as required under Nevada law. Therefore, the Court must

reject this argument outright.

B. The Doctrine of Promissory Estoppel Does Not Apply Because No Enforceable Agreement
Exists and, Regardless, the Required Elements are Absent.

The Estate appears to contend that the doctrine of promissory estoppel applies to save their

defective breach of contract claim. The Estate has taken the unfortunate position that Milton Schwartz’s
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generosity to the school and its students over the ycars is now a detriment suffered by Milton Schwartz
simply because the name of the school no longer bears his name due to changed circumstances, and nowj
secks to claw back all of the amounts that Milton Schwartz donated to the school.

As set forth in the Adelson Campus’s Motion, promissory estoppel does not apply here because
the issue is not one of a failure of consideration ~ the issue is the lack of an enforceable agreement
altogether. Even assuming the Estate could show the existence of an enforceable agreement, the
elements of promissory estoppel are also missing here. The Estate has failed to provide any evidence
that any of the 1989 board members knew that the school’s name would change decades after the fact
as a result of unforeseen future circumstances. Moreover, while there is no dispute that the school bore
Milton 1. Schwartz’s name from 1989 to 1993 and 1996 to 2013, the Estate has failed to produce the
requisite evidence to show that this was pursuant to a legally cognizable contractual agreement as
opposed to a voluntary decision to honor Milton Schwartz’s generous contribution and to foster a

continuing relationship of support.

C. Fven Assuming an Enforceable Naming Rights Agreement Exists, There is No Admissible
Evidence Demonstrating that Milton Schwartz Fully Performed.

Assuming for argument’s sake that the Estate can show that an enforceable agreement exists,
which it cannot, all of the admissible evidence shows that Milton Schwartz failed to live up to his side
of the alleged agreement. Specifically, thc only admissible evidence shows that Milton Schwartz
pledged a least $1 million to the school, but only ever paid $500,000. See Mot. at 4:20-5:11, 13:22-14:7.

In the alternative, even under the Estate’s donate $500,000 / raise $500,000 theory, construing
all of the admissible evidence in the Estate’s favor and accepting Milton Schwartz’s version of the events
as true, the evidence shows that Milton Schwartz raised at most $425,000 of the $500,000 he had to
raise at that time. See Mot. at 15:14-18:21; see also Exs. 9, 18-19. In fact, document relied on by the
Estate to show that Milton Schwartz pledged $500,000 shows that Paul Sogg, Robert Cohen, and George
Rudiak (the only donors even Milton Schwartz himself took credit for) pledged only $425,000, and of]
the that $425,00 he allegedly raised, only $325,000 was paid. Opp. at Ex. D. Accordingly, the Estate]
has failed to set forth admissible evidence to show Milton Schwartz did, in fact, raise $500,000 as be

himself has said he was required to do under the alleged naming rights agreement. Therefore, even if
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the Court finds the existence of an enforceable agreement, under the Estate and Milton Schwartz’s ownj
version of the naming rights agreement, summary judgment is required because Milton Schwartz did
not hold up his end of the alleged bargain.

D. Infer Vivos Gift Principles Rather than Contract Principles Should Apply to the Alleged
Naming Rights Agreement Because None of the Factors Used by Courts to Determine
Contract Principles Should Apply are Present Here.

The Estate failed to set forth any applicable precedent that the alleged naming agreement should
be analyzed under contract principles rather than inter vivos gift principles. The non-Nevada cases relied
on by the Estate are inapposite to the facts here because the charitable organization was the party
attempting to enforce a charitable gift, a written agreement existed, and/or the charitable organization|
had incurred liability as a result of the donor’s promise.

Notably, Massachusetts Eye is inapplicable because that case involved an actual contract under|
which the court could apply contract principles. 417 F.Supp.2d 192. Further, the court in that case
determined that the plaintiff charitable organization had stated a claim for breach of contract because
the existence of consideration in the form of express instructions for how the gift was to be used and|
other requirements, but no such designation of the use of the funds is present here. Id

In East Carolina University Foundation, the court, applying North Carolina law, merely
determined that the plaintiff had stated a claim for breach of contract relating to a charitable gift, and|
that the issue of whether a meeting of the minds occurred to create an enforceable contract was a question
for the trier of fact. 767 S.E.2d 150. That case further differs from our case because the charitable
organization was the party trying to enforce the gift, and, as in Massachusetts Eye, the alleged]
consideration was in the form of a designation by the donor and an agreement by the donee that the
funds would be used in a certain way, neither of which are present here.

In the Maiter of Versailles Foundation, the court noted that charitable donations become a
binding contract where the charity incurs liability in reliance thereon. 202 A.D.2d 334. Clearly this case
is inapplicable because it is the Estate secking to enforce its alleged rights against the school, no such
liability has been incurred by the Estate. Similarly, the Fstate of Tinko does not support the Estate’s

contention that promissory estoppel applies. In that case, the charitable organization relied to its
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detriment on the decedent’s promise to pay off the mortgage on a building by making a down payment
on the building. Jd Although the Estate has taken the unfortunate position that Milton Schwartz’s
contributions to the School constitute a similar type of detriment, the Estate’s position is wholly,
dissimilar, and this case is inapplicable to the Estate’s promissory estoppel claim.

Regardless, the fact remains that even if the Court analyzes the alleged naming rights agreement
under contract rather than inter vivos gift principles, the Estate’s claims fail as a matter of law and must
be dismissed. As aresult, all of the Estate’s contract claims, as well as its claims for offset of the bequest,
revocation, and constructive trust must all be dismissed.

ETE,
CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, the School respectfully requests that this Court enter a summary
judgment order dismissing each of the Estate’s second, fourth, fifth, sixth, seventh, and eighth claims
for relief against the Adelson Campus.

el
Dated this 7, day of August, 2018.

KEM%%EQQL:Q’IARD, LLP
/ lw/&}¢ D%/

J. Randall Jones, Esq. (#1927)

Joshua D. Carlson, Esq. (#11781)

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17" Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for The Dr. Miriam and
Sheldon G. Adelson Educational Institute
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on the 2KA day of August, 2018, service of the foregoing REPLY IN
SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT REGARDING BREACH OF
CONTRACT was electronically served on counsel for the Estate of Milton T, Schwartz via the Court’s

electronic filing system. }‘F_,ﬂ.m_{;; B
e -

( éf’;?f’f e
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S

An-employee of Kemp, Jones & Coulthard, LLP
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2 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
3
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20
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1 THURSDAY, JUNE 9, 2016; LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
2 9:36 a. m
3 -000-
4 Wher eupon,
5 (I'n an off-the-record discussion held prior to the
6 commencenent of the proceedi ngs, counsel agreed to waive the
7 court reporter's requirenents under Rule 30(b)(4) of the
8 Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure.)
9 Wher eupon,
10
TAVAR LUBI N SAPOSHNI K, Ph.D.,
H having been first duly sworn to testify to the truth, the
e whol e truth, and nothing but the truth, was exam ned and >
13 N\
testified as follows: S
14
15 MR LeVEQUE: Could you mark this as Exhibit 1,
16 pl ease?
17 (Exhibit 1 marked for identification.)
18 MR. LeVEQUE: Thank you.
19 EXAM NATI ON
20 BY MR LeVEQUE
21 Q Good norning, Doctor. Could you please state and
22 spell your full nanme for the record?
23 A Tamar, T-a-ma-r, Lubin, L-u-b-i-n, Saposhnik,
24 S-a-p-0-s-h-n-i-k.
25 Q Thank you very mnuch.
702-476-4500 OASISREPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 4
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Tamar Lubin Saposhnik, Ph.D., Volumell

1 M. Schwartz, "donated $500,000 to The Hebrew Acadeny in
2 return for which it would guarantee that its nane woul d change
3 in perpetuity with the MIton |I. Schwartz Hebrew Acadeny."
4 Do you see where | read that?
5 A Yes.
6 Q Any di sagreenment with M. Schwartz's testinony here?
7 A No.
8 Q Ckay. "Affiant was first elected" --
9 A The only --
10 Q Sorry?
11 A The only thing that I would add to this would be --
12 and that would be later, that we never received the other
13 | $500, 000.
14 MR KEMP: Right.
15 | BY MR LeVEQUE:
16 Q Do you know what bequests M. Schwartz made in his
17 last will and testanent?
18 A The only thing I know is he nade a prom se to nake
19 the contribution of a mllion dollars, and we got $500,000. |
20 know t hat we never received the other $500, 000.
21 Q Okay. Wen | say the word "pl edge,” do you
22 under st and what that neans?
23 A O course. Prom se, another word.
24 Q Ckay. Wen you were principal of the school, do you
25 recall any of the benefactors of the school, the
702-476-4500 OASISREPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 67
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Tamar Lubin Saposhnik, Ph.D., Volumell

1 phi | ant hropi sts maki ng testanentary pl edges? Do you know what
2 t hat phrase neans?
3 A Yeah.
4 Q Wen | die, I"'mgiving the school --
5 A | under st and.
6 Q -- noney?
7 A Yeah.
8 Q Ckay.
9 A Yeah.
10 Q Al right. D d you have an understanding with
11 respect to the mllion dollars that M. Schwartz pl edged how
12 and when it was going to be paid to the school ?
13 A How and when? | -- | know we received a half a
14 mllion dollars, and the expectation was to receive anot her
15 half a million dollars within a given tinme. How nuch, | don't
16 know.
17 Q Okay. | will represent to you that M. Schwartz in
18 his last will and testanent nade a $500, 000 specific bequest
19 to The MIton |I. Schwartz Hebrew Acadeny. Fair enough?
20 A Yes. Yes. Yes.
21 Q Ckay. Assuning that that $500,000 was paid to The
22 MIlton |I. Schwartz Hebrew Acadeny, would he have satisfied his
23| $1 mllion pledge to the school ?
24 MR. KEMP: Form Foundati on.
25 THE WTNESS: | don't understand the question.
702-476-4500 OASISREPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 68
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Tamar Lubin Saposhnik, Ph.D., Volumell

1 BY MR LeVEQUE:
2 Q Ckay. One of the issues in this case is that the
3 estate of MIton I. Schwartz believes based upon the
4 interpretation of the last will and testanent that a $500, 000
5 speci fic bequest can be paid to the school only if the
6 school -- school's nane stays The MIton |I. Schwartz Hebrew
7 Acadeny.
8 Do you understand that?
9 A | understand --
10 MR. KEMP: Form Foundati on.
11 THE WTNESS: -- it, but | don't see it connecting.
12 There was a -- there was a promse or -- to offer a mllion
13 dollars. W did receive $500,000. That, |I know for a fact.
14 BY MR LeVEQUE:
15 Q Ri ght .
16 A Did we ever receive the other half, the 500,000? |
17 did not personally.
18 Q Ckay. Wen we tal ked about earlier in your
19 deposition M. Schwartz giving the half a mllion dollars in
20 exchange for the school being naned for himin perpetuity, do
21 you renenber that |ine of questioning?
22 MR. KEMP: (bjection. Mscharacterizes prior
23 testi nony.
24 BY MR LeVEQUE:
25 Q Do you recall that |ine of questioning when we were
702-476-4500 OASISREPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 69
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Tamar Lubin Saposhnik, Ph.D., Volumell

In the Matter of the Estate of Milton |. Schp@p236

1 tal ki ng about that?
2 A | understand that at the tine, MIton nade a prom se
3 to provide a million dollars to the school and we did receive
4 | $500, 000 --
5 Q And what --
6 A -- inreturn --
7 Q Sorry.
8 A -- for placing his name on the school.
9 Q For a mllion dollars?
10 A Yes. The MIton I. Schwartz Hebrew Acadeny. That's
11 what the nane woul d --
12 Q I n exchange for the pledge of a mllion dollars?
(o]
13 MR KEMP: (bjection. Form Foundati on. §
14 THE WTNESS: |In other words, we received $500, 000 °
15 | and we did not receive the other $500, 000.
16 BY MR LeVEQUE:
17 Q And here's what I"'mtrying to clarify.
18 A Yes.
19 Q I think we can all agree that M. Schwartz
20 pl edged -- initially pledged a mllion dollars for the school.
21 A That's what he pl edged, yes.
22 Q What | -- what | need to knowis, in exchange for
23 his pledge, | understand your testinony to nmean that the
24 school is going to be naned after himin perpetuity.
25 A Yes.
702-476-4500 OASISREPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 70
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Tamar Lubin Saposhnik, Ph.D., Volumell

In the Matter of the Estate of Milton |. Schg@g237

1 Q AmI| with you so far?

2 A Yes. Yes.

3 Q Ckay.

4 A Yes.

5 Q You' re saying that he paid half of that pledge?

6 A Correct.

7 Q Okay. But the agreenent to change the name was for

8 the full mllion-dollar pledge, is that fair, or was it just

9 for the half mllion dollars?

10 A For the mllion.

11 Q Thank you.

12 (Exhibit 12 marked for identification.)

~

13 | BY MR LeVEQUE: §
14 Q Al right. Doctor, the court reporter has just °
15 handed you what's been marked as Exhibit 12 to your

16 deposition, and it is nore neeting mnutes, but this tinme it's

17 for a neeting -- the neeting of August 25th, 1994.

18 Do you see that up at the top?

19 A Yes.

20 Q And do you see that in the nenbers attending

21 section, it identifies you as being one of the board nenbers

22 that was present during that neeting?

23 A Yes.

24 Q Ckay. And the second paragraph of the actual

25 m nutes state that "M . Sternberg was asked by a notion to
702-476-4500 OASISREPORTING SERVICES, LLC Page: 71
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" A. Jonathan Schwartz

ESTATE OF MILTON L. SCHWARTYZ
2293 Duneville Street
Las Vegas, NV 89146

May10, 2010

Mr. Sheldon G. Adelson

MILTON L. SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY BOARD
9700 W. Hillpointe Road

Las Vegas, NV 89134

Via: Hand Delivery, Certified Mail & Facsimile
Dear Board Members:

1 am writing this letter in an attempt to finalize a bequest made by my father in his Will to
the Milton L. Schwartz Hebrew Academy (“MISHA™) in the amount of $500,000 (the “Bequest™).
I have made several attempts to finalize the Bequest to the MISHA since my father passed away
in 2007. Itake my duty to fulfill my Dad’s wishes extremely seriously. Thave done everything
within my power over the last two and one half years to make certain that my Dad’s wishes are
carried out precisely as provided for in his Will.

1 have met with Paul Schiffman (“Paul™) at least four times about the Bequest and I have
met with Victor Chaltiel (“Victor™) twice. While Paul has been very gracious, my attempts to
legally finalize the Bequest have been ignored by the Board. I'm not certain why the Board has
reacted this way, but I know it would be in the best interest of the MISHA to have the Bequest
completed. Again, I'm writing this last letter as a final attempt to conclude the Bequest.

- A knowledge of the history of the MISHA is important. My Dad’s history with the School
pre-dates its cutrent location by several years. To list everything my Dad did for the MISHA and
its predecessors would fill volumes. My Dad was instrumental in the Howard Hughes
Corporation’s gift of the land where the MISHA and the Adelson High School currently sits (the
“Land’”). My Dad was instrumental in developing the- original MISHA building. My Dad
financially supported the school for years and managed its day to day affairs lovingly. At the end
of every school year, my Dad, along with a few other families, stepped up and funded whatever
cash flow losses the MISHA had incurred. Tuition revenue was never enough to fund the
MISHA’s operations. Without those critical donations from my Dad years ago, the MISHA would
have ceased operating long ago. '

Milton I. Schwartz personally gave, and more importantly raised, several million dollars for
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the MISHA before many of the current board members became involved. Some of you are aware
of my Dad’s fund-raising because he raised those dollars from you or your families. Beyond the
money, my Dad loved the school and was proud to spend his time making certain that kids in Las
Vegas could obtain a quality Jewish education. Please remember, without Milton L Schwartz,
there would be no school. There would be nothing for generous philanthropists like the Adelsons
and others to build upon. I urge you not to forget about the MISHA’s history.

As I’m sure you're aware, the purpose of the Bequest was to fund scholarships for Jewish
Children only. As the executor of my Dad’s estate, I have a fiduciary duty to make certain that my
Dad’s wishes are respected and carried out. Ihave numerous letters, contracts, by-laws,
documents, ete. (the “Agreements”) between the school and my Dad which clearly spell out that
the school is to be known as the MILTON 1. SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY in perpetuity.
To be clear, “in perpetuity” means forever; that’s not something one can change. I've included just
of few of the Agreements for your reference.

I met with Victor Chaltiel twice in February and March of 2010 during which I made
another attempt to finalize the Bequest. Mr, Chaltiel-and I had lunch together with Paul Schiffman
and met another time at the School to talk about ways we could satisfy my family and the
Adelsons. I clearly realize that the Adelsons have made a tremendous gift to the School and they
deserve to be recognized for their gift.: However, the Adelson’s recognition cannot be at the
expense of the history of the School. Milton I. Schwartz is a big part of the history of the school
and that’s why the school agreed to be named after him (in writing, several times):

The attached agreement is what I supplied to both Paul Schiffiman and Victor Chaltiel back
in early March (“Draft Settlement”). The Draft Settlement substantially represents what was
discussed in my meetings with Victor and Paul, although it was never signed. I simply can’t
understand why the Draft Settlement didn’t get signed so that we could complete this matter. By
the way, despite my attempts to finalize the Bequest being 1gnored I have continued to financially
support the MISHA.

1 feel compelled to mention a few things regarding how the School is named. While the
Adelson’s gifts have been remarkable and they deserve to be commemorated, it was.agreed that -
only the High School would be known as the “Adelson High School”. The fact that the School on
Hillpointe was named the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy in perpetuity pre-dates the
Adelsons involvement by several years (“High School Naming™). The High School Naming and
the fact that the Milton L Schwartz Hebrew Academy constitutes grades K-Eighth is clearly
evidenced by the Agreements and the gala documents (signed by Mr. Adelson and Mr. Chaltiel)
from 2007 (“2007 Gala Docs™)(enclosed). I regret having to state the following but given what
I’ve been told by one member of the Board, I have no choice; should my Dad’s memory and its
commemoration at the MISHA be reduced or comprormsed in any manner, [ will be compelled to
take appropriate legal acuon_

The fact that the School has apparently been re-titled the Adelson Edéuational Campus and
that the middle school has been re-named the Adelson Middle School violates the Agreements and

the 2007 Gala Docs. Again, the Adelsons made a tremendous gift and it deserves to be recognized.

EST-00002

002240

002240

002240



T¥2200

Despite the terms of the Agreements and the 2007 Gala Docs, for purposes of settlement and to do
what is best for the schools, [ believe (contingent upon the Settlement Agreement being executed)
that the naming of the various institutions should be left as they currently are. Please refer to the
attached Settlement Agreement for a complete explanation.

The Draft Settlement basically accepts what the school is already doing despite the fact that
some of what the school has done in the last 2 and '% years breaches the Agreements. This
settlement is meant to respect the history of the school and to facilitate its future. 1am sorry to
have to go to the lengths of creating a settlement agreement to complete this Bequest, but a
settlement agreement was necessary given the circumstances.

As I’ve commented, my Dad left $500,000 to the MISHA. The amount of the Bequest
clearly says $500,000 in his Will. As my Dad’s Executor, I don’t have the authority to give any
more money to the MISHA from my Dad’s Estate. My Dad never committed to giving any amount
in excess of the Bequest in his Will. If he had agreed to give more, itwould have been
memorialized in his Will the same day.

I have included a new draft settlement agreement which simply changes the dates for
execution and provides two weeks to fund the Bequest should the settlement be executed. If the
attached settlement agreement is not executed and returned to me by May 31, 2010, my offer to
settle this dispute will automatically terminate. Ireally hope that we can conclude this matter
amicably as I frankly find the whole issue to be distasteful. - Any kind of dispute reflects poorly on
the School, the Board and all of the parties involved. 1urge the board of the MISHA to vote to
adopt the attached settlement so that I can oomplete the Bequest.

Sincerely yours:

A f =

A. Jondthan Schw
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(1) Contingent upon all signatories execution of the Agreement by May 31, 2010 and

002242

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE ESTATE OF MILTON 1. SCHWARTZ
AND THE MILTON I. SCHWARTZ HEBREW ACADEMY

This Agreement (the “Agreement™), made and entered into this day of May, 2010
by and between the Estate of Milton I. Schwartz (“Estate™), the Milton 1. Schwartz Revocable
Family Trust (“Trust™), by and through its Executor and Trustee, A. Jonathan Schwartz
(“Schwartz”) and the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy (“MISHA”) and the Adelson
Educational Campus and or the Adelson School (collectively, “Adelson School”), by and through
its President, Victor Chaltiel (“Chaltiel’”) with reference to the following facts:

A. At section 2.3 of the Last Will and Testament of Milton I. Schwartz dated February 5,
2004 (the “Will”), the Will provides, in pertinent part, a bequest to the MISHA in the
amount of $500,000 in the form of securities (stocks, bonds or cash) with the largest
profit so that the Estate can take advantage of the low cost basis and increased price as
directed in the sole discretion of the Executor (Jonathan Schwartz) (the “Bequest™). The
purpose of the Bequest is to fund scholarships for Jewish children only (“Purpose™).

B. Pursuant to the Clark County Assessors Office, the MISHA is situated on the land known
as (parcel number 138-19-516-001) (the “Land”).

C. The term the “School” or the “Schools” herein shall refer collectively to the Milton 1.
Schwartz Hebrew Academy, the Adelson School, and or the Adelson Educational
Campus.

002242

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and agreements herein
contained, the parties promise, covenant and agree as follows:

delivery of the Agreement by that date to Schwartz, the Bequest shall be made to MISHA
no later than June 14, 2010.

(2)  The school located on the Land (grades Pre-K through Fourth) and at any new location
shall be known in perpetuity as the Milton I Schwartz Hebrew Academy. Any and all by-
laws, agreements, articles of incorporation, operating agreements or other documents
associated with the Schools located on the Land or at any new location shall heretofore,
and in perpetuity, identify grades Pre-K through Fourth as the Milton I Schwartz Hebrew
Academy.

(3)  The MISHA shall prominently depict signage on the face of the building housing the Pre-
K through Fourth grades (facing Hillpointe Ave.) (situated on the Land) and at any new
focation, and at all entrances therefore, exclusively identifying it (and regularly
maintaining it) as the Milton I Schwartz Hebrew Academy so that it is clearly evident to
the public that it is known as the Milton I Schwartz Hebrew Academy. The sign facing
Hillpointe Ave., located on the MISHA as of March 3, 2010 is acceptable to Schwartz.
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All letter-head, stationary, correspondence, promotional material, websites, business
cards, fundraisers, advertisements, etc. (hereinafter, “Media™) associated with the Schools
shall clearly and prominently identify the Milton . Schwartz Hebrew Academy as grades
Pre-K through Fourth in pérpetuity. All Media shall depict a logo bearing the name, the
Milton L. Schwartz Hebrew Academy (in bold, all capped letters), no smaller than any
other logo located on the face of said Media, to be reasonably approved of by the Trust
and the Schools (“Logo”). The foregoing shall be completed no later than the start of the
2010-2011 school year. For purposes of clarification, the 2008 Logo of the Milton 1.
Schwartz Hebrew Academy which appeared on that certain tax receipt dated May 28,
2008 (attached hereto) is acceptable with the exception that the wording “MILTON 1.
SCHWARTZ” shall be in all capital letters, bolded.

The interior main entrance of the MISHA shall prominently house a painting and or
photograph of Milton I. Schwartz (“MIS”) in perpetuity, to be approved of by Schwartz,
which shall include a plaque listing Milton I. Schwartz and identifying Milton I. Schwartz
as the founder of the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy.

The website of the Schools shall prominently (in perpetuity) list fhe MISHA as grades
Pre-K through Fourth and shall include a description as follows:

The Milton I Schwartz Hebrew Academy is home to the lower school, grades pre-K
through Fourth. The Milton I Schwartz Hebrew Academy was established in 1988
through the generosity of Las Vegas businessman Milton 1. Schwartz and others who
answered a need in the Southern Nevada community for a strong secular and Judaic
educational institution for elementary school-aged children.

002243

When the Bequest is funded, it shall act to satisfy in full any obligation, liability or duty
of Milton 1. Schwartz, the Estate or the Trust toward or associated with the MISHA or the
Adelson School. Upon MISHA’s receipt of the Bequest, a full and final release of Milton
1. Schwartz, the Estate, the Trust, A. Jonathan Schwartz and their heirs, assigns and
beneficiaries shall be effectuated. '

The MISHA shall supply the Estate of Milton I. Schwartz and the Milton 1. Schwartz
Revocable Family Trust (at the direction of the Trust) with a receipt for tax purposes from
the MISHA listing its IRS 501 (c)(3) non-profit tax id number for the Bequest,

As specified in the Will, the Bequest shall be used solely for the purpose of funding
scholarships for Jewish children only at the MISHA.

Once per year, the MISHA agrees to reasonably cooperate with members of the Milton 1.
Schwartz family, at a time when it would not interfere with school activities, for the
Schwartz Family’s access to the School for viewing and verification of compliance with
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the foregoing terms and conditions. The Schwartz Family, its agents, etc. shall indemnify
and hold harmless the School for its access to the premises.

Miscellaneous. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the Estate, the
Trust, Schwartz, the Schwartz Family, its heirs, assigns, and beneficiaries and the
MISHA, Adelson School and or the Adelson Educational Campus. This Agreement
confirms the understanding of the parties regarding the naming rights of the Estate of
Milton I. Schwartz with regard to the Schools. No amendment, alteration or withdrawal
of the Agreement shall be valid or binding unless made in writing and signed by each of
the parties affected by such provision. This Agreement shall be binding upon the heirs,
successors and assignees of all of the parties associated with the Schools. Each of the
parties acknowledges that it has been advised to obtain legal counsel of its own choosing
regarding this Agreement and that it has availed itself of said legal counsel, The terms
and conditions of this Agreement shall not be construed against any party regardless of
whom the Agreement was drafted by, No party to this Agreement shall assign its right or
delegate its duties hereunder without the prior written consent of the other parties.
Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted so as to be
effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of the Agreement shall be
prohibited or invalid under applicable law, the remainder of such provision and the
remaining provisions of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect, This
Agreement represents a settlement of disputed facts, In the event of any dispute or
litigation concerning the terms of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall receive
reimbursement for its reasonable legal fees. Each of the signatories to this Agreement
watrant and certify that they have the authority to execute the Agreenient in the capacity
indicated herein. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts which all together
shall constitute one Agreement, binding on all parties. This Agreement shall be

construed under the laws of the State of Nevada

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Parties hereto have executed this A greement as of
the date first written above.

Estate of Milton 1. Schwartz, Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy,
A. Jonathan Schwartz, Executor Vietor Chaltiel, President

Milton 1. Schwartz Revocable Family

The Adelson School, Victor Chalfie],

Trust, A. Jonathan Schwartz, Trustee President
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The Adelson Educational Campus, Victor
Chaltlel President

002245

002245

EST-00007

002245






9172200

9060 WEST CHEYENNE AVENUE
LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89129
TELEPHONE (702) 853-5483
FACSIMILE (702) 853-5485

WWW.SDFNVLAW.COM

DWIGGINS & FREER B

L SOLOMON

C

L@’fg

O o0 3 O »n b~ WD

N N NN N N N N N s e e e e e e e
o I O W»n b~ W NND= DO O NN B WLW D= O

Electronically Filed 002
8/6/2018 9:57 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU
Alan D. Freer (#7706) w 'ﬁ;"’“"

Alexander G. LeVeque (#11183)
SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD.
9060 West Cheyenne Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89129
Telephone: (702) 853-5483
Facsimile: (702) 853-5485

Attorneys for A. Jonathan Schwartz,
Executor of the Estate of Milton I. Schwartz

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
In the Matter of the Estate of Case No.: P-13-061300-E
Dept. No.: XXVI/Probate

MILTON I. SCHWARTZ,
Date of Conference: August 3, 2018
Deceased. Time of Conference: 9:30 a.m.

THE ESTATE’S PRETRIAL MEMORANDUM

Date of Pretrial Conference: August 3, 2018

Location of Pretrial Conference: Solomon Dwiggins & Freer, Ltd.
9060 West Cheyenne Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89129

Counsel Present:

Estate of Milton 1. Schwartz: Alexander G. LeVeque, Esq.

The Dr. Miriam & Sheldon G.
Adelson Educational Institute: J. Randall Jones, Esq. & Joshua D. Carlson, Esq.

L.
BRIEF STATEMENT OF FACTS

This case is about a legal dispute between the private school presently known as the Dr.
Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson Educational Institute (the “School”) and the Estate of the late
Milton I. Schwartz (the “Estate’). There are two primary disputes in this lawsuit:

1. The School alleges that the Estate is legally obligated to pay the School $500,000

pursuant to a gift made by the late Milton I. Schwartz in his Last Will and Testament.
2. The Estate alleges that the School violated a legally enforceable agreement between

the School and the late Milton I. Schwartz for naming rights to the School.

1 of 11
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The School initiated this action by filing a petition in probate court to compel the Estate to
pay the $500,000 gift to the School. After the School filed its probate petition, the Estate brought
claims against the School seeking to enforce the alleged naming rights agreement between the late
Milton 1. Schwartz and the School. The Estate has denied the School’s allegations and the School
has denied the Estate’s allegations.

A. THE ESTATE’S STATEMENT OF FACTS

Milton 1. Schwartz (“Milton”) was instrumental in acquiring the land and raising funds for
the construction of the School at its current Hillpointe location back in the late 1980s. In August
of 1989, Milton personally donated $500,000 to the School in return for which the School would
guarantee that its name would change in perpetuity to the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy
(“MISHA”) (the “Schwartz Naming Rights Agreement”). Evidence of both the formation and
performance of the Schwartz Naming Rights Agreement is abundant. Milton testified as to its
formation and terms in two affidavits and did Dr. Roberta Sabbath and Dr. Lubin, both of whom
negotiated the Schwartz Naming Rights Agreement on behalf of the School. In addition, other
board members of the School (e.g. Leonard Schwartzer, Samuel Ventura and Neville Pokroy)
have testified as to its existence. Indeed, the School changed its corporate name from “The
Hebrew Academy” and amended its Bylaws to state that the name of the School shall be MISHA
“in perpetuity.”

Starting in or about 2004, Sheldon and Miriam Adelson began discussions with the
School’s board (which included Milton) about making a charitable contribution to the School to
fund the construction of a high school on the School’s property. The Adelson’s original idea was
to build a high school and a new Jewish Community Center. In 2006, the School began
construction on the high school.

In August of 2007, Milton passed away. Before Milton’s death, MISHA operated as
grades K-8 of the School and the Adelson’s school operated as the high school on the MISHA
campus. However, just four months after Milton’s death, the School’s board passed a resolution
which caused the following: (1) the acceptance of a grant from the Adelson Family Charitable

Foundation subject to certain conditions; (2) the changing, in perpetuity, of the School’s legal

20f11
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name from MISHA to “The Dr. Miriam and Sheldon G. Adelson Educational Institute” (the
“Adelson Institute”); (3) reducing Milton’s namesake from K-8 to K-4 (the elementary grades);
and (4) an amendment to the School’s Bylaws to reflect the School’s corporate name change to

the Adelson Institute in perpetuity. Presently, and notwithstanding the School’s own resolution to

keep the elementary grades of the School named in honor of Milton in perpetuity, the School has
completely removed Milton’s namesake.

This case boils down to a gamble that the School made. The Adelsons have given over
$100 million to the School since they committed to build the high school. At trial, the evidence in
this case will demonstrate that the School took a calculated risk in breaching the Schwartz
Naming Rights Agreement in exchange for the Adelsons’ gift.

The Estate seeks damages and specific performance to remedy the School’s breach of the
Schwartz Naming Rights Agreement. As to the former, the Estate seeks reimbursement of the
initial $500,000 that Milton gave a consideration for the Schwartz Naming Rights Agreement
(restitution damages) and reimbursement of the additional gifts Milton made from 1989 through
his death (reliance damages). According to Milton’s bookkeeper (who was also Acting Secretary
of the School’s Executive Board from 1988-1990), total restitution and reliance damages,
excluding interest, is approximately $1,055,853.75. As to the latter, the Estate seeks an order
mandating that the School restore its legal name to the Milton 1. Schwartz Hebrew Academy as
well as grades K-8, the original building on the Hillpointe campus, and the campus itself.

With regard to the dispute concerning the $500,000 bequest to the School in Milton’s Last
Will and Testament, the Estate claims that the bequest lapsed because it was made specifically to
“The Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy,” the School bearing Milton’s name, which no longer
exists. The Estate contends that the bequest lapses as a matter of law because (1) there is no
“Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy”; (2) there is no successor clause in the Will; and (3) any
failed gifts pass through to the residual beneficiary which is Milton’s trust. Alternatively, if the
Court determines that there is a latent ambiguity, all of the extrinsic evidence that Estate
anticipates will be admitted at trial overwhelmingly demonstrates that Milton’s intent was for the

bequest to be given to the school bearing his name.
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I1.
LIST OF ALL CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

A. THE ESTATE’S CLAIMS (PETITION FOR DECLARATORY RELIEF AND SUPPLEMENT)

1. Construction of Will (First Claim for Relief, pp. 6-7)

The Estate seeks a declaratory judgment from the Court that the $500,000 bequest to the
School in the Last Will and Testament of Milton I. Schwartz lapsed because there is no existing
entity named after Milton I. Schwartz on a perpetual basis.

2. Fraud in the Inducement (Second Claim for Relief, p. 7)

The elements of fraud in the inducement are as follows: (1) a false representation made by
the Board of Trustees to Mr. Schwartz; (2) the Board of Trustees’ knowledge or belief that the
representation was false (or knowledge that it had an insufficient basis for making the
representation); (3) the Board of Trustees’ intention therewith to induce Mr. Schwartz to consent
to the agreement; (4) Mr. Schwartz’s justifiable reliance upon the Board of Trustees’
misrepresentation; and (5) damages to Mr. Schwartz resulting from his reliance. See J.A. Jones
Const. Co. v. Lehrer McGovern Bovis, Inc., 120 Nev. 277, 290 (2004).

Based on the anticipated evidence to be admitted at trial, it is clear that the Board of
Trustees represented to Mr. Schwartz that the name of the School would be changed to MISHA in
perpetuity on multiple occasions. Either these representations were false or the School breached
its agreement when it took affirmative steps to change the name of the school.

After the School’s initial breach of their agreement in the early 1990s, Mr. Schwartz
ceased providing financial support to the School. Realizing the School needed additional funding,
and taking into account that Mr. Schwartz was a major donor, in 1996, the Board of Trustees
again represented to Mr. Schwartz that it would rename the school to MISHA in perpetuity in
order to induce Mr. Schwartz to resume his financial donations and contributions to the School.

As a result of the Board’s representations and conduct, Mr. Schwartz resumed his
financial contributions and solicitation. Moreover, and in reliance upon the School’s
representations, Mr. Schwartz devised a specific bequest within his Will to provide additional

financial assistance to MISHA after his death. As such, Mr. Schwartz justifiably relied upon the

4of11

249

002249

002

249



052200

9060 WEST CHEYENNE AVENUE
LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89129
TELEPHONE (702) 853-5483
FACSIMILE (702) 853-5485

WWW.SDFNVLAW.COM

O o0 3 O »n b~ WD

N N NN N N N N N s e e e e e e e
o I O W»n b~ W NND= DO O NN B WLW D= O

002

school’s representations.

The Estate seeks both declaratory relief concerning the voidability of the $500,000

bequest and damages proximately caused. The Estate also seeks punitive damages.
3. Breach of Contract (Fifth Claim for Relief, p. 9)

The Schwartz Naming Rights Agreement is a valid and enforceable contract under Nevada
law. The Estate seeks damages and specific performance to remedy the School’s breach of the
Schwartz Naming Rights Agreement. As to the former, the Estate seeks reimbursement of the
initial $500,000 that Milton gave a consideration for the Schwartz Naming Rights Agreement
(restitution damages) and reimbursement of the additional gifts Milton made from 1989 through
his death (reliance damages). According to Milton’s bookkeeper (who was also Acting Secretary
of the School’s Executive Board from 1988-1990), total restitution and reliance damages,
excluding interest, is approximately $1,055,853.75. As to the latter, the Estate seeks an order
mandating that the School restore its legal name to the Milton I. Schwartz Hebrew Academy as
well as grades K-8 and the original building on the Hillpointe campus.

4. Promissory Estoppel (Sixth Claim for Relief, pp. 9-10)

Even if the Schwartz Naming Rights Agreement is not a legally enforceable contract,
Milton nevertheless relied on the School’s promise to his detriment. The Estate is, therefore,
entitled to restitution of all monies that Milton gave the School in reliance of the School’s
promise, which, excluding prejudgment interest, is approximately $1,055,853.75.

I11.
LIST OF AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES

A. THE ESTATE’S AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES

1. Bequest Void for Mistake (Third Claim for Relief, p. 8)

2. Offset of Bequest Under Will (Fourth Claim for Relief, p. 8; Objection to School’s
Petition, at p. 7)

3. Revocation of Gift and Constructive Trust

4. Fraud in the Inducement (Objection to School’s Petition, at p. 7)
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